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00 2522

01 2847
02 - 278.0
03 3058
total revenue ‘ .
(in § Millions) 04 - 505.9
00 o 10.9
x .
01 78
0 66
03 108
net income
fin $ Millions) 04 13.2
00 ' 1.62
01 7 117
02 1.01
03 - 1.69
net income per share (basic) :
(in Dollars) 4 . L71
fiscal year ended January 31
In thousands, except per share 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Income Statement Data:
Total Revenue $. 505,916 § 305,841 § 278,000 % 284,700 § 252,389
Net Sales 484,198 3% 277,028 § 251,300 % 258900 % 229,349
Gross Profit 169,494 $ 100,840 $ 83,114 $% 86,532 § 80,976
Operating Income 44,792 % 33,407 % 24,281 § 28,255 % 31,315
Net Income 13,152 § 10,796 § 6,608 § 7,826 § 10,880
Net Income Per Share (Basic) 1.71 § 1.69 § 1.01 8 1.17  § 1.62
Weighted Average Number of
Common Shares (Basic) 7,683 6,387 6,516 6,689 6,726
Balance Sheet Data:
Total Assets $ 480,400 3 331,237  § 234,061 $ 243113 § 224,873
Toral Shareholders’ Equity 150,882 § 99,402 § 87,613 & 82,879 § 76,020
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Perry Ellis Sportswear, Perry Ellis Women's Sportswear, Perry Ellis Sleepwear,

Perry Ellis Women’s Suits, Perry Eilis Children’s wear, Perry Ellis Wallets




George and Oscar Feldenkreis




dear shareholders

This past year was one of the most important in our company’s history. The acquisition of Salant Corp.
in June 2003 generated record revenues and earnings, solidified our balance sheet, and further diversified
our portfolio of brands and product offerings. Today, we are a company of over 1,400 associates.
We have offices and distribution centers on the East and West Coasts of the United States with sourcing
and quality control operations in Hong Kong, Taiwan, Korea, and China. We are now one of the

largest men’s sportswear companies in the world.

The Salant acquisition enabled us to further refine our diversified business strategy. We entered new
upscale distribution channels through the addition of Axis® and Tricots St. Raphael®. We also brought
in-house the business and expertise for products we formerly licensed such as dress shirts and leather
accessories. Moreover, we strengthened our presence in the vouth lifestyle business through our acqui-
sition of the Redsand® trademarks. We are distributing Redsand’s action sports apparel across new

channels of distribution, from youth lifestyle chain stores to single-store surf and specialty boutiques.
portfolie of brands '

We feel strongly that in today’s retail environment, brand awareness is the key to survival. Our brands
define our relationship with consumers, and we are investing heavily in marketing to maximize the
equity of our brands. In addition, we are addressing the challenge of price deflation by focusing our

efforts on our higher margin brands such as Cubavera®, Axis® and Perry Ellis®.

Our lifestyle approach to brands is creating a loyal following among consumers. The success of our
Original Penguin® brand, for example, is due to a revival of the retro-look in the young men’s
market. We recently opened our first Original Penguin store in New York in response to the rise of
'60’s and ’70’ nostalgia. Our lifestyle message also creates opportunities for licensing agreements and

brand product expansions, including non-apparel articles such as home furnishings and furniture.

e/ 25.



oivision eview
PERRY ELLI3®

The Salant acquisition unified the brand’s management team for the first time. We are now able to
run one creative vision across all products and classifications. We are excited about the new fashion
direction in the men’s collection and the spectacular publiciry surrounding the Perry Ellis ladies’ line.
In addition, Perry Ellis is distributing a strong line of leather accessories, from belts to wallets. Perry

Ellis is one of the world’s leading lifestyle brands.

CORE WHOLESALE

Revenue from our core wholesale business began to strengthen in the third and fourth quarter of fiscal
2004. Our Hispanic-inspired sportswear brands continue to exceed our expectations, attracting both
the Hispanic and fashion consumer who are responding to the Hispanic influence on pop culture.
We are experiencing a renewed interest in golf apparel and we continue to develop products that take

advantage of the latest in performance fabric technologies.

SWIMWEAR

Although the swim division did not achieve the profitability that we had hoped for this fiscal year,
we continue to transition the way in which our swimwear is sourced. Prior to our acquisition of
Jantzen®, the brand’s swimwear was produced mostly with domestic fabrics and 807 contractors. Since
2002, we have shifted more than 60 percent of swimwear manufacturing to the Far East, and we hope
to raise this figure to 80 percent by the end of fiscal 2005. Nevertheless, swim division revenue is also

dependent upon seasonal and weather conditions over which we have no control.

Going forward, we are pursuing private label swimwear opportunities that represent entirely new
avenues of business for our company. The Jantzen brand is poised for tremendous growth through
product expansions. Also, we have high hopes for our new Nike® men’s line of swimwear — the first

of its kind — that we began shipping in January 2004.

LICENSING

Our licensing business continues to be an important source of revenue. As we increase our marketing
efforts and expand our brands’ customer base, licensing remains an exceptional growth opportunity.
We capitalized on the success of our Hispanic brands by entering into licensing agreements for a wide
range of product extensions including boys’ and women’s sportswear, shoes, hats, neckwear and
loungewear. We partnered with new licensees to enter markets and promote our core brands around the
globe, including territories in Asia, Europe and Australia. Licensing agreements also added accessories
to our Perry Ellis women’s line and we are delighted with the success that Patrick Robinson’s designs

has brought to the Perry Ellis women’s line.




looking forward

Although we are gratified by our recent accomplishments, we know that chere is still a great deal to
be done. By leveraging our new dress shirt platform, we are poised to become a major player in the
dress shirt business. In fall 2004, we will launch new John Henry®, A{X]IST® and Mondo di Marco®
dress shirt lines. Salant’s sourcing and design capabilities for leather accessories and belts is providing

us with the necessary expertise to develop leather products for a number of our brands.

Qur bottoms business is a rapidly growing segment and opportunities exist to capture additional market
share. Consumers are responding favorably to our strategy built on quality fabrics and attention to
detail. Our gweater business is expanding through our newly acquired luxury brands as well as
through our core wholesale brands. We recognize the challenges that lay ahead in our swim business
and are committed to improving profitability. We will also continue to draw ideas from our Hispanic
roots. Hispanics are the fastest growing segment of the population in the United States and we are

continuously developing products for this market.

We feel that 2004 will be a good year for the United States and the retail community. Qur brand
segmentation policy has enabled the company to capitalize on current opportunities, and we will
continue to invest in this diversification strategy. We will acquire or develop brands and products that

position the company across the spectrum of distribution channels and product categories.

Our company has built strong relationships with our largest customers because of the personal attention
and care with which we approach each retailer. We thank our customers for their partnership and we
look forward to many more years of success together. Our reputation for quality would not exist
without our network of suppliers and colleagues overseas. They work long hours across multiple time
zones to get the product right. We thank our shareholders and investors for recognizing the value
and potential in our company. Most importantly, we are grateful for the talent and dedication of all

our associates.

Sincerely,

George Feldenkreis Oscar Feldenkreis
CHAIRMAN AND CEO PRESIDENT AND COO

page f 27.
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Ocean Pacific.

Axis® is a West Coast lifestyle brand that combines casual sportswear with dressy
pieces to round out a man’s wardrobe. The brand’s shirts are designed for comfort

and manufactured with top quality fabrics for superior look and feel.

Alfx}ist® blends California sophistication with an easy-going lifestyle.

Fashion with Latin Flavor/Moda con Sabor Latino. Cubavera®s modern, tropical

inspired collection translates the joy of Hispanic culture into fashionable apparel.

On course, Off course, Change course...Grand Slam® is an active lifestyle golf

brand offering functional and fashionable sportswear.

Water has inspired our fun, stylish, iconic American brand since 1910. Jantzen®

designs updated classic swim and sportswear for the active consumer.

John Henry® 1s a dress casual sportswear collection reflecting the diverse and versatile

lifestyle of today’s modern man.

For over a century, Manhattan® has meant the very finest in dress shirts for men.
The classic Manhattan remains the dress shirt of choice at finer department stores

throughout Asia and the Americas.

The Mondo di Marco® collection represents the essence of its Italian heritage with

a modern Sportswear approach.

For over 100 years, Munsingwear® has developed ideas and created garments that

have transformed the way men dress.

As the leader in distinctive sportswear, Natural Issue® has been a staple in department

store main floors by offering dress and casual tops and bottoms.

Niké® Swim’s apparel is designed for athletes. Performance fabrics and technologically
superior construction maximize efficiency on land and in water. The brand is
defining the next generation of clothing for sport through constant innovation in

performance technologies — fiber, fabric and garment design.

Ocean Pacific®, an American classic lifestyle brand with a surfing heritage since

1972, offers updated casual apparel with California style.
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PerRry ELLIS

AMERICA

PErRYELLIS PORTFOLIO

PING

COoLLECTION

UReDSaND

TOMMY BHILFIGER”
swim

tricots st raphael’

Original Penguin® is a unique fashion collection of men’s and women’s apparel,
accessories and footwear. The Penguin® originated in 1955 and quickly became
known as the original golf shirt brand. During the 50%, 60’ and 70’s the Penguin
became a classic American sportswear icon. Original Penguin® today is sold at some

of the most discerning retailers throughout the world.

‘When it comes to evoking images of the sophisticated lifestyle, few names are as
magical as Perry Ellis®. For the man looking to make a complete lifestyle statement,
the Perry Ellis® Collection and Perry Ellis Portfolio® offer a full complement of high-

quality apparel and accessories.

Perry Ellis America® jeanswear represents a “new classic” sensibility, reflecting the way

that America has evolved into a diverse, free, confident, cerebral and witty society.

Perry Ellis Portfolio® puts its focus on the classifications area of major department
stores across the country. The brand’s target consumer is a 25-45 year old man who

demands functon, fashion and performance from his purchases.

The Ping® Collection brand prides itself on following Karsten Manufacturing
Corporation’s Ping® Golf Equipment philosophy by combining innovation and

technological excellence to develop the best apparel products.

Redsand® was born on the beach and continues to make its headquarters in
Southern California. The brand supports the synergy between action sports and
music by sponsoring and co-promoting promising bands. It also sponsors team

riders, surf events and regional concerts.

Tommy Hilfiger® Swim is designed to be fun for the young and young at heart.
The brand focuses on fashion and function and appeals to a wide range of customers.
Tommy Hilfiger Swim is sold in upscale department stores and swim specialey

stores. Product offerings include girls, juniors, misses, and plus sizes.

This Latin inspired brand offers updated fabrications with authentic design
inspiration. Like the music of our spokesperson Tito Puente, Jr., the Havanera Co.™

is the perfect fusion of contemporary style and nostalgic flavor.

Tricots St. Raphael® is a 30-year~old brand providing better specialty stores with a
high quality sophisticated product. Tricots St. Raphael® products provide discerning

consumers with a casual, yet elegant alternative for their wardrobe.







United States Securities and Exchange Commission
Washington, D.C. 20549
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Unless the context othenvise requires, all references to “Perry Ellis” the “Company,” “we,” “us” or “our” include Perry Ellis
International, Inc. and its subsidiaries. References in this report to the Jantzen acquisition refer to our acquisition of the Jantzen
swimwear business_from subsidiaries of VF Corporation in March 2002. References in this report to the Salant acquisition refer to our
acquisition of Salant Corporation in_June 2003. References in this report to annual financial data for Perry Ellis refer to fiscal years
ending January 31. This Form 10-K contains trademarks held by us and those of third parties.

General information about Perry Ellis can be found at wuw.pery.com. We make our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly
reports on Form 10-Q, current report on Form 8-K and amendments to these reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13
or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 available free of charge on our website, as soon as reasonably practicable after
they are electronically filed with the SEC.

Forward-Looking Statements

We caution readers that this report and the portions of the proxy statement incorporated by reference into this
report include “forward-looking statements” as that term is used in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995. Forward-locking statements are based on current expectations rather than historical facts and they are

indicated by words or phrases such as “anticipate,” “could,” “may,” “might,
“expect,” “project,” “believe,” “intend,” “plan,” “envision,” and similar words or phrases. We have based such forward-

EENTS

potential,” “predict,” “should,” “estimate,”

looking statements on our current expectations, assumptions, estimates and projections. While we believe these
expectations, assumiptions, estimates and projections are reasonable, such forward-looking statements are only
predictions and involve known and unknown risks and uncertainties, and other factors that may cause actual results,
performance or achievements to be materially different from any future results, performance or achievements
expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements, many of which are beyond our control.

Some of the factors that would affect our financial performance, cause actual results to differ from our estimates, or
underlie such forward-looking statements, are set forth in various places in this report and in the portions of the
proxy statement incorporated by reference, including under the headings Item 1 “Business — Certain Risks,” and
[tem 7 “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in this report.
These factors include:

> general economic conditions,

> asignificant decrease in business from or loss of any of our major customers,

> the effectiveness of our planned advertising, marketing and promotional campaigns,

> our ability to contain costs,

> our future capital needs and our ability to obtain financing,

> our ability to integrate acquired businesses, trademarks, tradenames and licenses, including the Salant acquisition,
> our ability to predict consumer preferences,

> anticipated trends and conditions in our industry, including future consolidation,

> changes in the costs of raw materials, labor and advertising,

> changes in fashion trends and consumer acceptance of both new designs and newly introduced products,
> the level of consumer spending for apparel and other merchandise,

> our ability to compete,

> the termination or non-renewal of any material license agreements to which we are a party,

> the seasonality of our swimwear business,

> exposure to foreign currency risk,

> competition among department and specialty stores,

> possible disruption in commercial activities due to terrorist activity and armed conflict, and

> other factors set forth in this report and in our other Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) filings.

You are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which are valid only as of the
date they were made. We undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements to reflect new

information or the occurrence of unanticipated events or otherwise.




PART I

ftem 1. Business

Overview

We are one of the leading apparel companies in the United States. We control a portfolio of major men’s and women’s
brands, some of which were established over 100 years ago. We design, source, market and license our products
nationally and internationally at multiple price points and across all major levels of retail distribution at more than
20,000 doors. Our portfolio of highly recognized brands includes Perry Ellis® and Perry Ellis America®, which we
believe together generate over $1 billion in annual retail sales, Axis®, Tricots St. Raphael®, Jantzen®, John Henry®,
Cubavera®, the Havanera Co.™, Natural Issue®, Munsingwear?, Grand Slam®, Original Penguin®, and Manhattan®,
We also (i) license the Nike® and Tommy Hilfiger® brands for swimwear and swimwear accessories, (i1) are the
worldwide master licensee for PING® golf apparel, (iii) license the Ocean Pacific® brand for certain men’s sportswear
categories and (iv) license the NAUTICA® brand for our corporate wear business.

We distribute our products primarily to wholesale customers that represent all major levels of retail distribution
including department stores, national and regional chain stores, mass merchants, specialty stores, sporting goods stores,
green grass golf shops, the corporate incentive market, as well as clubs and independent retailers in the United States
and Canada. Our largest customers include Federated Department Stores, Inc., Dillard’s Inc., The May Department
Stores Company, Wal-Mart Stores, Inc., J. C. Penney Company, Kohl’s Corporation, and Sears, Roebuck & Co. We
also operate 38 retail stores located primarily in upscale retail outlet malls across the United States. In addition, we
leverage our design, sourcing and logistics expertise by offering a limited number of private label programs to retailers.
In order to maximize the worldwide exposure of our brands and generate high margin royalty income, we license
our brands through approximately 56 domestic and approximately 79 international license agreements.

Our wholesale business, which is comprised of men’s sportswear and women’s and men’s swimwear and swimwear
accessories, accounted for 96% of our total revenues in fiscal 2004, and our licensing business accounted for 4% of
our total revenues in fiscal 2004. We have traditionally focused on the men’s sportswear market, which represented
approximately 86.7% of our total wholesale revenues in fiscal 2004, while our women’s and men’s swimwear market
represented approximately 13.3% of our total wholesale revenues in fiscal 2004,

Our licensing business is a significant contributor to our operating income. We license the brands we own to third
parties for the manufacturing and marketing of various products in distribution channels in which we do not
distribute those brands, including men’s and women’s footwear, men’s suits, underwear, loungewear, outerwear,
fragrances, eyewear and accessories. In addition, we license our brands internationally for the manufacturing and
marketing of products that we offer domestically such as Jantzen sportswear. These licensing arrangements raise the over-
all awareness of our brands without requiring us to make capital investments or incur additional operating expenses.

In June 2003, we acquired Salant, a leading designer, marketer and distributor of brand name and private label
menswear products and the largest licensee of the Perry Ellis brand. With the Salant acquisition we have consolidaced
control of the Perry Ellis brand, added significant revenues and earnings, solidified our balance sheet, further diversified
our product offerings and customer base, and added to our portfolio of brands. As a result of this acquisition, we
also assumed operation of 39 retail outlet stores, of which four have since been closed.

We employ a three~dimensional strategy in the design, sourcing, marketing and licensing of our products that focuses
on diversity of brands, products and distribution channels. Through this strategy, we provide our products to a broad
range of customers, which reduces our reliance on any single distribution channel, customer, or demographic group
and minimizes competition among our brands.

Diversity of Brands. We maintain a portfolio of 18 highly recognized brands that we either own or license. We are
focused on brands that appeal to fashion conscious consumers across all income levels. We design, source, market
and license most of our products on a brand-by-brand basis targeting distinct consumer demographic and lifestyle
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profiles. We also market the Natural [ssue, John Henry and the Havanera Co. brands, which appeal to the middle-income
consumer. In addition, we market brands that appeal to women through our Jantzen family of swimwear products.

Diversity of Product Categories. We design and market apparel in a broad range of men’s product categories and a
few women’s product categories, which increases the stability of our business. Our menswear offerings include casual
sportswear, dress shirts and pants, jeans wear, golf apparel, sweaters, sports apparel, swimwear and swim accessories,
activewear, and leather accessories. Qur womenswear offerings include swimwear, sportswear and accessories.
We believe that our product diversity decreases our dependence on any one product or fashion trend and has

contributed substantially to our growth.

Diversity of Distribution Channels. We market our products through all major levels of retail distribution, which allows
us to reach a broad range of consumers in the United States and Canada. We distribute through department stores,
national and regional chain stores, mass merchants, specialty stores, sporting goods stores, green grass golf shops, the
corporate incentive market, as well as clubs and other independent retailers in the Umted States and Canada.
We entered the corporate wear market in 2001, where we provide corporate clients with high quality customized
products. Our products are distributed through more than 20,000 doors at some of the nation’s leading retailers,
including Federated, Dillard’s, May Department Stores, Wal-Mart, J. C. Penney, Kohl’s, Sears, and Nordstrom.

The following table illustrates the diversity of the brands and products we produce and market and their respective
distribution channels:

Product Category
Distribution Youth
Channels Casual Dress Casual Jeans Wear Golf Active Sports Swimwear Lifestyle
Tricots
Upscale St. Raphael Redsand
Department Original Axis Original
Stores Penguin Mondo di Marco PING Collection Penguin
Jantzen
Department Cubavera Axis Tommy Hilfiger
Stores Grand Slam Perry Ellis Perry Ellis America Grand Slam Nike Redsand
Natura] Issue
the Havanera Co.
National and Munsingwear Jantzen
Regional Ocear Pacific  Axis Penguin Sport Nike
Chain Stores Jantzen John Henry Natural Issue Munsingwear Pro Player Southpoint
Mass Merchants  Private Label Manhattan Private Label
Green Grass™ Munsingwear  Perry Ellis Ping Collection
NAUTICA Perry Ellis
Corporate Cubavera Ping Collection
Jantzen
Tricots Tommy Hilfiger
Specialty Stores St. Raphael Axis Nike Redsand

(1) This channel includes high-end and specialty golf shops and resorts.

We were incorporated in Florida in April 1967 and changed our name from Supreme International Corporation
to Perry Ellis International, Inc. on June 18, 1999. Our principal executive offices are located at 3000 N.W. 107th
Avenue, Miami, Florida 33172, and our telephone number is (305) 592-2830.

Our Competitive Strengths

We believe that our competitive strengths position us to capitalize on several trends that have affected the apparel
industry in recent years. These trends include:

> the consolidation of the department and chain store distribution channels into a smaller number of larger retailers,




> the increased dependence of retailers on reliable domestic suppliers who have design expertise, advanced
systems and technology, and the ability to quickly meet changing consumer tastes,

> the increased importance of mass merchants in apparel sales, and

> the continued importance of strong brands as a source of product differentiation.

We believe that we have the following competitive strengths in our industry:

Portfolio of nationally and internationally recognized brands. We currently own or license a portfolio of 18 brands,
which enjoy high recognition within their respective consumer segments. We believe that these brands have built a
loyal following of fashion-conscious consumers and retailers who desire high quality, well-designed products.
We license the Nike, Tommy Hilfiger, PING, NAUTICA and Ocean Pacific brands, which we believe are highly
recognizable brands within their various product categories. We also license 14 of our brands to third parties for
products in distribution channels in which we do not market those brands. We believe that brand recognition is critical
in the apparel industry, where strong brand names help define consumer preferences and drive selling space at retailers.

Diversified product offering and distribution model. We market a diverse array of products under our numerous brands
at multiple price points and across multiple levels of retail distribution. Our menswear offerings include casual
sportswear, dress shirts and pants, jeans wear, golf apparel, sweaters, sports apparel, swimwear and swim accessories,
activewear and leather accessories. Our womenswear offerings include swimwear, sportswear and swim accessories.
Our products are distributed through more than 20,000 doors at department stores, national and regional chain
stores, mass merchants, specialty stores, sporting goods stores, green grass golf shops, the corporate incentive market
and independent retailers in the United States and Canada. Our diversified product offerings and distribution model
reduce our reliance on any one product, demographic group, merchandise preference or distribution channel and
nminimizes competition among our brands.

Strong relationships with our retailers. We believe that our established relationships with retailers allow us to maximize
the selling space dedicated to our products, monitor our brand presentation and merchandising selection, and introduce
new brands and products. Because of our quality brands and products, dedication to customer service, design expertise
and sourcing capabilities, we have developed and maintained long-standing relationships with our largest customers,
including Dillard’s (more than 25 years), May Department Stores (more than 25 years), ].C. Penney (more than 25
vears), Sears (25 vears), Federated (16 years), Wal-Mart (14 vears), and Kohl’s (10 years).

Strong licensing capabilities and relationships. We license many of the brands we own, and, as a result, have gained
experience in identifying potential licensing opportunities. We have established relationships with many licensees
and believe these relationships provide opportunities to grow our revenues and earnings. Our brands are solidly
positioned in retail oudets at all major levels of retail distribution and have increased our exposure nationally and
internationally. We believe that our broad portfolio of brands also appeals to licensees because it gives licensees the
opportunity to sell their products into many different distribution channels. For example, 2 manufacturer of men'’s
accessories might license the Cubavera brand to enter the department store channel or license the Munsingwear
brand to target the national and regional chain stores. By licensing our owned brands, we offer consumers a
complete product assortment by brand. We also coordinate our marketing efforts with licensees, thereby maximizing
exposure for our brands and our return on investment.

Sophisticated global low-cost sourcing capabilities. We have sourced our products globally for more than 36 years and
employ sophisticated logistics and supply chain management systems to maintain maximum flexibility. Our netwotk
ot worldwide sourcing partners enables us to meet our customers’ needs in an efficient and high quality manner
without relying on any one vendor, factory, or counctry. In fiscal 2004, based on the cotal dollar value, we sourced
our products from Asia (72%), Central and South America (14%), the Middle East (6%) and other areas of the world
(8%). We maintain a staff of experienced sourcing professionals in five offices in China (including Hong Kong),
as well as in the United States, South Korea and Taiwan. Qur sourcing offices closely monitor our suppliers and provide
strict quality assurance analyses that allow us to consistently maintain our high quality standards for our customers.
We have a compliance department that works closely with our quality assurance staff to ensure that our sourcing
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partners comply with Company-mandated and country-specific labor and employment regulations. We believe that
sourcing our products overseas allows us to manage our inventories more effectively and avoid incurring the costs of
maintaining and operating production facilities. Because of our sourcing experience, capabilities and relationships, we
believe that we are well positioned to take advantage of the 2005 elimination of all textile and apparel quotas for
member countries of the World Trade Organization.

Design expertise and advanced technology. We maintain a staft of 93 designers, merchandisers and artists who are
supported by a staff of 41 design professionals, including assistant designers, technical designers, graphic artists and
production assistants. Our in-house design staff designs substantially all of our products using advanced computer-aided
design technology that minimizes the time-intensive and costly production of sewn prototypes prior to customer
approval. In addition, this technology provides our customers with products that have been custom designed for their
specific needs and meet current fashion trends. We employ advanced fabric and design technologies to ensure a proper
fit and outstanding performance when we create our women’ and men’s swimwear. We regularly upgrade our computer
technology to enhance our design capabilities, facilitate communication with our global suppliers and customers on a
real-time basis, react faster to new product developments by competitors and meet changes in customer needs.

We recently launched PerrySolutions, a software system that enables our sales planners to manage our retail
customers’ inventory at the SKU level. This system helps maximize sales of our products thereby increasing inventory
turns for retailers, which in turn reduces our product returns and markdowns, and increases our profitability.
We also use PerrySolutions during the assortment planning process to allocate the correct quantities for the initial
rollout of product at retail.

Proven ability to integrate acquisitions. Since 1993, we have been successful in selectively acquiring, managing,
developing and positioning 18 highly recognized brands within our business, including Munsingwear (1996), Perry
Ellis (1999), John Henry (1999), Manhattan (1999) and Jantzen (2002). We believe our experience has prepared us
for the integration of the Salant business.

As part of an extensive integration process for each brand, we have:

improved the responsiveness to market trends by applying our design and sourcing expertise,
communicated new positioning of our brands through various wide-ranging marketing programs,
begun or continued licensing operations immediately upon acquisition,

solidified our management team to design, market and license brands,

repositioned the brands into different distribution channels to address the needs in those channels,
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renegotiated existing licensing agreements and developed new licensing agreements in new segments and
markets, and
> extended our sourcing and distribution capabilities to the products.

Experienced management team. Our senior management team averages more than 26 years in the apparel industry
and has extensive experience in growing and rejuvenating brands, structuring licensing agreements, and building
strong relationships with global suppliers and retailers. In addition, George Feldenkreis, our chairman and chief
executive officer, and Oscar Feldenkreis, our president and chief operating officer, have expressed their commitment
to us by maintaining a significant ownership stake in our company.

Our Business Strategy

Our strategy is to continue to pursue our three-dimensional approach by developing and enhancing our portfolio
of brands, increasing the scope of our product offerings and expanding distribution for our brands, while continuing
our focus on growth and profitability through the execution of the following strategies:

Continue to strengthen the competitive position and recognition of our brands. We intend to continue enhancing the
recognition of our brands by aggressively marketing our brands to both consumers and retailers. We have made a
strategic decision to focus on branded apparel and to reduce our private label business. As a result of this shift in




our business strategy and our acquisition and development of certain brands, our branded apparel business has
increased as a percentage of net sales from 75% for fiscal 2003 to 91% for fiscal 2004. We manage each brand
individually, developing a distinct brand and marketing strategy for every product category and distribution channel.
We will continue to participate in cooperative advertising in print and broadcast media, as well as market directly to
consumers through billboards, event sponsorships, celebrity sponsorships, special event advertisements and adver-
tisements in selected periodicals. In addition, we will continue to have a strong presence at trade shows, such as
“M.A.G.I.C” in LasVegas, Market Week in New York, and golf and swim shows and events throughout the country.
Licensing our brands to third parties also enhances brand recognition by providing increased customer exposure
domestically and internationally, as well as opportunities for future product extensions.

Continue to diversify our product line. We intend to continue to expand the range of our product lines, thereby
capitalizing on the name recognition, popularity, and discrete target customer segmentation of our major brands.
For example, we are introducing a line of women’s beachwear and sportswear under the Jantzen brand. We intend
to pursue expansion opportunities in young men’s sportswear, whether through licensing or direct marketing
opportunities. The Salant acquisition takes us into the men’s better market and collection market for sportswear,
dress shirts, bottoms and leather accessories and, through the Axis and Tricots St. Raphael brands, the better sportswear
market. We intend to use Axis and Tricots St. Raphael, as well as the expertise of Salant’s sales and marketing
personnel, to expand our sweater business. In addition, we will continue to seek licensing opportunities that will
expand our collection of products.

Increase penetration in each channel. We will continue to selectively pursue new ways to increase our penetration
of existing channels of distribution for our products, focusing on maintaining the integrity of our products and
reinforcing our image at existing retail stores, as well as introducing our products to geographic areas and consumer
sectors that are presently less familiar with our products. We will also seek to expand our business with our existing
customers by offering them products that are compelling and different from those in the marketplace and by capi-
talizing on our relationships with them by offering them more of our products. As a result of the Salant acquisition,
we have increased the number of retailers that carry our brands and entered certain upscale department stores, such
as Nordstrom, which carry the Axis and Tricots St. Raphael brands.

Adapt to our continually changing marketplace. We will continue to make the necessary investments and implement
strategies to meet the growing needs of our customers on a timely basis in the ever-changing apparel industry. We
have 2 history of successfully adapting our business to meet the challenges of our industry. Some examples include:

> Qur acquisition of Jantzen in fiscal 2002 marked our entry into the women’s and men’s swimwear markets
and formed the basis for our planned entry into the women’s sportswear market. We believe that our design
and sourcing expertise positions us to grow our revenues from these product categories substantially in the
future. We intend to position Jantzen as a premiere casual resort lifestyle brand for women and men.

> From our initial efforts to market guayabera shirts to the Hispanic market 36 years ago, we have focused on
Hispanics, the largest minority group in the United States. We developed the Cubavera and the Havanera
Co. brands in fiscal 2000 and 2002, respectively, to specifically target the Hispanic market and consumers
that embrace the Hispanic lifestyle brands.

> The Salant acquisition provided us with the upscale Axis and Tricots St. Raphael brands, as well as greater
control of designing and marketing the Perry Ellis line of men’s sportswear, dress shirts, bottomns and leather
accessories. With this acquisition, we expect to leverage Salant’s relationships to sell more of our products
through these upscale retailers.

Expand our licensing opportunities. Since our acquisition of Munsingwear in 1996, we have significantly expanded
the licensing of our brands to third parties for various product categories. We intend to continue to license our
brands to existing and new licensees as profitable opportunities arise. We will also use our brand portfolio to expand
our licensing activities in womenswear and sportswear. At the international level, we will continue to explore licensing

opportunities where we see opportunities for growth, such as Latin America, Europe and Asia. We will continue to
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provide our licensing partners with strong brands, design expertise and innovative marketing strategies. In addition
to the revenues and brand awareness that licensing provides us, we also believe that licensing our brands benefits us

by reducing the volatility of our operating income.

Pursue strategic acquisitions and opportunities. We intend to continue our strategy of making selective acquisitions to
expand our portfolio of brands and add new product lines as our industry continues to follow the consolidation
trend of our retailers. We will continue to internally develop new brands and logical extensions of existing brands
as opportunities in the marketplace arise. We intend to pursue acquisition opportunities in a disciplined manner as
they become available and focus on products or categories that have high consumer awareness and are difficult to
duplicate from a technical or logistical standpoint. Since our initial public offering in 1993, we have acquired, or
obtained licenses for, several brands, including Munsingwear, Perry Ellis, John Henry, Manhattan, Jantzen, PING,
Tommy Hilfiger, Nike, NAUTICA, Mondo di Marco, Ocean Pacific, Axis, Tricots St. Raphael and Redsand. We
believe that our history of selectively acquiring under-marketed or under-performing brands and incorporating
them into our efficient infrastructure generates a superior return on investment for our investors.

Brands

In fiscal 2004, approximately 91% of our net sales were from branded products as compared to fiscal 2003 when
75% of our net sales were from branded products. We currently own 13 and license five nationally recognized brands
whose products we source and sell through all major levels of retail distribution. Our owned brands include Perry
Ellis, Perry Ellis America, Axis, Tricots St. Raphael, Jantzen, John Henry, Cubavera, the Havanera Co., Natural Issue,
Munsingwear, Grand Slam, Original Penguin and Manhattan. We have developed over 42 sub-brands from these
brands, including Perry Ellis Portfolio, Southpoint, Penguin Sport and Axist. We also distribute the PING, Nike,
Tommy Hilfiger, NAUTICA and Ocean Pacific brands under license arrangements.

We license the Perry Ellis brand, our premier brand, as well as the Jantzen, John Henry, Natural Issue, Munsingwear and
Manhattan brands, for products in distribution channels in which we do not market directly to retailers. In addition, we
license our brands internationally for products we distribute domestically. Our depth of brand selection enables us
to target consumers across a wide range of ages, incomes and lifestyles, reduces our reliance on any single distribution

channel, customer or demographic group, and minimizes competition among brands.

Perry Ellis. In fiscal 2000, we acquired the Perry Ellis and Perry Ellis America brands, which we believe together
generate over $1 billion in annual retail sales and are associated with elegance, quality, value, comfort and innovative
designs. The Perry Ellis brand appeals primarily to higher-income, status conscious, professional 25-40 year-old
men. As a result of the Salant acquisition, we are now designing and marketing Perry Ellis branded sportswear, dress
shirts, dress pants and leather accessories for the men'’s better market and collection market. We also license the Perry
Ellis brand to third parties for a wide variety of apparel and non-apparel products.

Axis. We acquired the Axis brand when we acquired Salant. This brand is associated with a casual lifestyle that affords
quality, value, comfort and innovative designs. The Axis brand appeals primarily to higher-income, status conscious,
professional 30-50 year-old men. We sell sportswear and activewear under the Axis brand, which are sold primarily
at upscale departiment and specialty stores.

Tricots St. Raphael. We acquired the Tricots St. Raphael brand when we acquired Salant. This brand is associated
with a sophisticated dress casual lifestyle featuring quality, unique designs and fabrics. The Tricots St. Raphael brand
appeals primarily to higher-income, status conscious, professional 40-60 year-old men. We sell sportswear and
sweaters under the Tricots St. Raphael brand, which are sold primarily at upscale department and specialty stores.

Jantzen and Southpoint. We acquired the Jantzen and Southpoint brands as part of the Jantzen acquisition in fiscal 2003.
The Jantzen brand has a history of over 90 years, and its products are sold in upscale department stores, national and
regional chain stores, and specialty stores. We sell men’s and women’s swimwear under the Jantzen brand, as well as
women’s swimwear under the Southpoint brand. We also recently introduced men’s and women’s sportswear under

the Jantzen brand to capitalize on its rich history and reputation for quality.




John Henry. The John Henry brand, which we originally licensed from Salant, and subsequently acquired in fiscal
2000, appeals to middle-income 25-45 year-old men. The brand is well known, is associated with quality and value,
and is primarily sold in national and regional chain stores. Our John Henry product offerings form a “dress casual
collection” as John Henry is considered a designer brand at national and regional chain stores.

Cubavera and the Havanera Co. We introduced the Cubavera brand in fiscal 2000 and followed with the introduction
of the Havanera Co. brand in fiscal 2002. These brands appeal to Hispanic males between the ages of 25-45 and
consumers who embrace Hispanic lifestyle brands. Cubavera is currently sold in major department stores as well as
specialty stores around the country, while the Havanera Co. brand 1s sold in national chain stores.

Natural Issue. We developed the Natural Issue brand in fiscal 1988 to appeal to middle-income 25-55 year-old men.
Natural Issue’s products include dress casual shirts, sweaters and pants. We have expanded our pants products to
include the Natural Issue Executive Khaki pants line with cotton fabric, as well as twill and corduroy fabrics. Natural
Issue is primarily sold in national and regional chain stores.

Munsingwear. We purchased the Munsingwear family of brands along with its associated sub-brands in fiscal 1997
to appeal to middle-income 30-50 year-old men who prefer classic American casual sportswear. Munsingwear and
its sub-brands have over 100 vears of history. Munsingwear apparel categories include sportswear, sweaters,
activewear and casual pants, and are primarily sold in national and regional chain stores. The sub-brands are also sold
primarily to national and regional chain stores.

Grand Slam and Penguin Sport. We purchased the Grand Slam and Penguin Sport brands as part of the
Munsingwear acquisition in fiscal 1997. Grand Slam is an American heritage brand with its signature penguin icon
logo and appeals to middle-income 30-60 year-old men who prefer. classic casual gold apparel. The Grand Slam
brand is primarily sold in department stores.

The Penguin Sport brand offers functional sportswear with a golf edge. It is associated with easy care fabrication,
and its lightweight fabric makes for a comfortable fit. It offers fashionable styling at a moderate price and is sold in
the national and regional chain, specialty and sporting goods stores.

Original Penguin. We re-introduced the Original Penguin brand in fiscal 2003, which is a lifestyle product for the
Generation X and Y males who are suburban upper-middle class, ages 18 to 35. The line offers vintage inspired
sportswear that its targeted consumers’ fathers used to wear. The product line is primarily sold at upscale department
and upper tier specialty stores and includes apparel, shoes and accessory items.

PING. We have a worldwide apparel master license for the prestigious PING golf brand, which appeals to golfers
and high-income, status conscious 25-50 year-old men. The license expires in December 2004, but renews auto-
matically based on performance levels. The brand is a well-known golf brand, which we positioned to be associated
with the highest standard of quality in the golf business. Products under this brand include golf shirts, sweaters, shorts
and outerwear. The brand is sold primarily in golf shops and top-tier specialty and department stores.

Nike. We signed a license agreement with Nike to design and market men’s, women’s, junior’s, boy’s and girls
swimwear, men’s and junior’s competitive swimwear, and swimwear apparel and accessories as part of the Jantzen
acquisition. Swim products are sold through sporting good stores, specialty stores, team dealers and department store
distribution. The license agreement expires on May 31, 2006.

Tommy Hilfiger. We acquired the license for the Tommy Hilfiger brand women’s and junior’s fashion swimwear as part
of the Jantzen acquisition. These products are sold in upscale department and specialty stores. The license agreement
expires on December 31, 2005.

Ocean Pacific. We acquired the license for the Ocean Pacific brand men’ casual sportswear as part of the Salant
acquisition. These products are sold in national and regional chain stores. The license agreement expires on
December 31, 2005.
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Other Brands. We also own the Manhattan, Mondo di Marco, Pro Player and Redsand brands and license the
NAUTICA brand. The Manhattan and Mondo di Marco brands are associated with dress casual apparel sold
primarily at mass merchants and upscale department stores, respectively. The Redsand brand is associated with a youth
lifestyle and is sold primarily at specialty stores. The NAUTICA brand is licensed for our corporate wear business.

Other Markets

Private Label. In addition to our sales of branded products, we sell products to retailexs for marketing as private Jabel for
their own store lines. In fiscal 2004, we sold private label products to Saks, Inc., Dillards, ].C. Penney, Goody’s, Casual
Male, Kmart, Wal-Mart and Meijer. Private label sales generally yield lower gross margins than sales of
comparable branded products. Private label sales accounted for approximately 9%, 25%, and 37% of net sales
during fiscal 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively. The decrease in the private label business as a percentage of our net sales
is a result of the additional net sales of apparel under the brands acquired in the Jantzen acquisition, the subsequent
license agreements with Nike and Tommy Hilfiger and our decision to focus our efforts on selling branded products.

Corporate wear. We entered into the corporate wear business at the end of fiscal 2001. We recognized a change in the
current business environment and have successfully provided a variety of corporations with high quality designer
products. In fiscal 2004, our corporate wear business accounted for 3.3% of net sales. We currently offer the PING,
NAUTICA, Cubavera and Perry Ellis brands in this market and sell primarily to corporate wear distributors.

Products and Product Design

We offer a broad line of high quality men’s casual sportswear, dress shirts and pants, jeans wear, golf apparel, sweaters,
sports apparel, swimwear and swim accessories, activewear and leather accessories. Our womenswear offerings include
swimwear, sportswear and swim accessories. Substantially all of our products are designed by our in-house staff
utilizing our advanced computer-aided design technology. This technology enables us to produce computer-generated
simulated samples that display how a particular style will look in a given color and fabric before it is actually
produced. These samples can be printed on paper or directly onto fabric to accurately present the colors and patterns
to a potential customer. In addition, we can quickly alter the simulated sample in response to our customers’
comments, such as change of color, print layout, collar style and trimming, pocket details and/or placket treatments.
The use of computer-aided design technology minimizes the time-consuming and costly need to produce actual
sewn samples prior to retailer approval, allows us to create custom-designed products meeting the specific needs of
customers and reduces a product’s time to market, from conception to the delivery of the product to customers.

In designing our apparel products, we seek to promote consumer appeal by combining functional, colorful and high
quality fabrics with creative designs and graphics. Styles, color schemes and fabrics are also selected to encourage
consumers to coordinate outfits and form collections, thereby encouraging multiple purchases. Our designers stay abreast
of the latest design trends, fabrics, colors, styles and consumer preferences by attending trade shows, periodically
conducting market research in Europe and the United States and using outside consultants. Our purchasing department
also seeks to improve the quality of our fabrics by staying informed about the latest trends in fabric all over the world.
In addition, we actively monitor the retail sales of our products to determine changes in consumer trends.

In accordance with standard industry practices for licensed products, we have the right to approve the concepts and
designs of all products produced and distributed by our licensees.

Our products include:

Shirts. We offer a broad line of sport shirts, which includes cotton and cotton-blend printed, yarn-dyed and solid
knit shirts, cotton woven shirts, silk, cotton and rayon printed button front sport shirts, linen sport shirts, golf shirts,
and embroidered knits and woven shirts. Qur shirt line also includes dress shirts, dress casual shirts, brushed owill
shirts, jacquard knits and yarn-dyed flannels. Additionally, we are one of the leading distributors of guayabera-style
shirts in the United States. We market shirts under a number of our own brands as well as the private labels of our
retail customers. Our shirts are produced in a wide range of men’s sizes, including sizes for the big and tall men’s




market. Sales of shirts accounted for approximately 57%, 65%, and 74% of our net sales during fiscal 2004, 2003,
and 2002, respectively. The decrease of shirts as a percentage of net sales reflects the addition of swimwear, as a result
of the Jantzen acquisition, and our increased focus on our other products.

Bottoms. Our bottoms line include a variety of styles of wool, wool-blend, linen and polyester/rayon dress pants,
casual pants in cotton and polyester/cotton and linen/cotton walking shorts. We market our bottams as single items
or as a collection to complement our shirt lines. Sales of bottoms accounted for approximately 21%, 21%, and 20%
of our net sales during fiscal 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively.

Swimwear. With the Jantzen acquisition, and upon the successful addition of both the Nike and Tommy Hilfiger
licenses, we entered the women’s, men’s and junior’s swimwear and accessories market. Sales of swimwear and
accessories accounted for approximately 13% and 8% of net sales during fiscal 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Other Products. We also offer sweaters, vests, jackets, pullovers and leather accessories under our existing brands, as
well as private label. The majority of the other products we sell are sweaters and leather accessories. Other products
accounted for approximately 9%, 6%, and 6% of net sales during each of fiscal 2004, 2003 and 2002.

Licensing QOperations

For the past eight years, we have been licensing the brands we own, and sublicensing the brands we license, to third
parties for various product categories. Licensing enhances the images of our brands by widening the range, product
offerings and distribution of products sold under our brands without requiring us to make capital investments or
incur additional operating expenses. As a result of this strategy, we have gained experience in identifying potential
licensing opportunities and have established relationships with many licensees. Our licensing operation is also a
significant contributor to our operating income.

As of April 6, 2004, we were the licensor in approximately 135 license agreements, 56 domestic and 79 international,
with 100 licensees, 40 domestic and 60 international, for various products including footwear, sportswear, dress shirts
and bottoms, underwear, loungewear, outerwear, activewear, neckwear, fragrances, eyewear and accessories. Wholesale
sales of licensed products by our licensees (including Salant) were approximately $434.0 million, §576.0 mullion, and
$534.0 million in fiscal 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively. We received royalties from these sales of approximately
$21.7 million, $28.8 million, and $26.7 million in fiscal 2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively, While our royalties declined
as a result of the Salant acquisition, we believe that our long-term licensing opportunities will continue to grow
domestically and internationally. See our audited Consolidated Financial Statements and the related notes in this report.

Although the Perry Ellis brand has international recognition, we still perceive the brand to be under-penetrated in
international markets such as Europe and Asia. We are actively attempting to obtain licenses for various products
bearing the Perry Ellis brand in these under-performing international markets. We believe that our brand and licensing
experience will enable us to capitalize on these international opportunities and that the Salant acquisition will assist
us in this endeavor. In addition, we believe that the Jantzen brand’s history of over 90 years will allow us to take
advantage of many domestic and international licensing opportunities.

To maintain a brand’s image, we closely monitor our licensees and approve all licensed products. In evaluating a
prospective licensee, we consider the candidate’s experience, financial stability, manufacturing performance and
marketing ability. We also evaluate the marketability and compatibility of the proposed products with our other
products. We regularly monitor product design, development, merchandising and marketing of licensees, and schedule
meetings throughout the year with licensees to ensure quality, uniformity and consistency with our products. We
also give our licensees a view of our products and fashion collections and our expectations of where its products
should be positioned in the marketplace. In addition to approving, in advance, all of our licensees’ products, we also
approve their advertising, promotional and packaging materials.

As part of our licensing strategy, we work with our licensees to further enhance the development, image, and sales of their
products. We offer licensees marketing support, and our relationships with retailers help the licensees generate higher revenues.
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Our license agreements generally extend for a period of three to five years with options to renew prior to expiration
for an additional multi-year period based upon a licensee meeting certain performance criteria. The typical agreement
requires that the licensee pay us the greater of a royalty based on a percentage of the licensee’s net sales of the
licensed products or a guaranteed minimum royalty that typically increases over the term of the agreement.
Generally, licensees are required to contribute to us additional monies for advertising and promotion of the licensed

products in their covered territory.

Marketing, Distribution and Customers

We market our apparel products to customers principally through the direct efforts of our in-house sales staff,
independent commissioned sales representatives who work exclusively for us, and other non-exclusive independent
commissioned sales representatives who generally market other product lines as well as ours. We also attend major

industry trade shows in the fashion, golf, and corporate sales areas.

‘We own a chain of 38 retail outlet stores, 35 of which were acquired as part of the Salant acquisition, through which
we sell Perry Ellis products directly to the public. These retail stores are generally located in upscale retail outlet malls.

We believe that customer service is a key factor in successfully marketing our apparel products. We coordinate efforts
with customers to develop products meeting their specific needs using our design expertise and computer-aided
design technology. Utilizing our sourcing capabilides, we strive to produce and deliver products to our customers

on a timely basis.

Our in-house sales staff is responsible for customer follow-up and support, including monitoring prompt order
fulfillment and timely delivery. We utilize an Electronic Data Interchange, or EDI, system for certain customers in
order to provide advance-shipping notices, process orders and conduct billing operations. In addition, certain
customers use the EDI system to communicate their weekly inventory requirements per store to us. We then fill
these orders either by shipping directly to the individual stores or by sending shipments, individually packaged and
bar coded by store, to a centralized customer distribution center.

We recently launched PerrySolutions, a software system that enables our sales planners to manage our retail
customers’ inventory at the SKU level. This system helps maximize the sales of our products thereby increasing
inventory turns for the retailer, which in turn reduces our product returns and markdowns and increases our
profitability. By using software that provides demographic mapping data, we can develop specific micro-market plans
for our customers that provide them with enhanced returns on our various product lines.

We sell merchandise to a broad spectrum of retailers, including national and regional chain, upscale department,
mass merchants and specialty stores. Qur largest customers include Federated, May Department Stores, Dillard’s,
‘Wal-Mart, ].C. Penney, Kohl’s, and Sears. We have developed and maintained long-standing relationships with these
customers, including Dillard’s (more than 25 years), May Department Stores (more than 25 vears), ].C. Penney (more
than 25 years), Sears (25 vyears), Federated (16 years), Wal-Mart (14 vears) and Kohl’s (10 years).

Net sales to our five largest customers accounted for approximately 39%, 40%, and 47% of net sales in fiscal 2004,
2003, and 2002, respectively. For fiscal 2004, net sales to Kohl’s accounted for approximately 10% of our net sales.
For fiscal 2003, net sales to Wal-Mart accounted for approximately 11% of net sales. For fiscal 2002, net sales to
Target accounted for approximately 12% of net sales, while net sales to J. C. Penney and Wal-Mart each accounted
for approximately 11% of net sales. No other single customer accounted for more than 10% of net sales during such

fiscal years.

Advertising and Promotions

We advertise to customers through print advertisemnents in a variety of consumer and trade magazines and newspapers
and through outdoor advertising such as billboards strategically placed to be viewed by consumers. For example,
we are continuing Jantzen’s emphasis on print advertisements for our swimwear products in influential magazines




such as Sports [ustrated, In Style, Glamour and Vogue and intend to sponsor selected athletes and celebrities in the
future. In order to promote our men’ sportswear at the retail level, we participate in cooperative advertising in print
and broadcast media, which features our products in our customers’ advertisements. The cost of this cooperative
advertising 1s shared with our customers. We also conduct various in-store marketing activities with our customers,
such as retail events and promotions, the costs of which are shared by our customers. These events and promotions
are in great part orchestrated to coincide with high volume shopping times such as holidays (Christmas and
Thanksgiving) and Father’s Day. In addition to event promotion, we place perennial displays and signs of our products
in retail establishments.

We use direct consumer advertising in selected markets featuring the Perry Ellis, Cubavera, the Havanera Co.,
John Henry, Natural Issue, Munsingwear and Grand Slam brand names through the placement of highly visible
billboards, sponsorships and special event advertising. We also maintain informational websites featuring our brands.
We create and implement editorial and public relations strategies designed to heighten the visibility of our brands.
All of these activities are coordinated around each brand in an integrated marketing approach.

Seasonality and Backlog

Our products have historically been geared towards lighter weight apparel generally worn during the spring and
summer months. We believe that this seasonality has been reduced with our introduction of fall, winter and holiday
merchandise. The swimwear business, however, is highly seasonal in nature, with the vast majority of our sales occurring
in our first and fourth quarter.

‘We generally receive orders from our retailers approximately five to seven months prior to shipment. For approxi-
mately 80% of our sales, we have orders from our retailers before we place orders with our suppliers. A summary
of the order and delivery cycle for our four primary selling seasons, excluding swimwear, is illustrated below:

Merchandise Season Advance Order Period Delivery Period to Retailers
Spring July to September January to March

Summer October to December April and May

Fall January to March June to September

Holiday April to June October and November

Sales and receivables are recorded when inventory is shipped. Our backlog of orders includes confirmed and uncon-
firmed orders, which we believe, based on industry practice and past experience, will be confirmed. As of April 1, 2004,
the backlog for orders of our products, all of which are expected to be shipped during fiscal 2005, was approximately
$221.7 million, as compared to approximately $129.7 million as of March 2, 2003, which was prior to the Salant
acquisition.

The amount of unfilled orders at a point in time is affected by a number of factors, including the mix of product,
the timing of the receipt and processing of customer orders and the scheduling of the sourcing and shipping of the
product, which in most cases depends on the desires of the customer. Backlog is also affected by on-going trends
among customers to reduce the lead-time on their orders. Since the fall of 2001, our customers have been more
cautious of their inventory levels and have delayed placing orders and re-orders compared to our previous experience.
Due to these factors a comparison of unfilled orders from period to period is not necessarily meaningful and may
not be indicative of eventual actual shipments.

Supply of Products and Quality Control

We currently use independent contract manufacturers to supply the substantial majority of the products we sell.
Of the total dollar value of sourced products in fiscal 2004, 72%, 14%, 6% and 8% were sourced from suppliers in
Asia, South and Central America, the Middle East and other areas of the world, respectively. We believe that the use
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of numerous independent contract manufacturers allows us to maximize production flexibility, while avoiding
significant capital expenditures, work-in-process inventory build-ups and the costs of maintaining and operating
production facilities. We have had relationships with some suppliers for as long as 30 years, however, none of these
relationships are formal or require either party to purchase or supply any fixed quantity of product.

The vast majority of our non-swimwear products are purchased as “full packages,” where we place an order with the
supplier and the supplier purchases all the raw materials, assembles the garments and ships them to our distribution
facilities or third party facilities. For some of our swimwear business, which includes the Jantzen, Southpoint, Nike
and Tommy Hilfiger brands, we purchase fabric from domestic and international suppliers. The purchased fabric is
primarily cut in the United States. The cut fabric is matched with various trim components and shipped to off-shore
sewing contractors located primarily in Mexico and the Caribbean Basin enabling us to utilize exemptions under
“807” customs regulations, which provide that certain articles assembled abroad from United States components are
exempt from United States duties on the value of those components. This process is generally referred to as CMT
{cut, make and trim) and differs from “full package” sourcing in that we, not the supplier, purchase and own the fabric
and trim components. We are, however, shifting the production of our swimwear business to the “full package” sourcing
model and anticipate that in the future the vast majority of our purchases will be “full packages.” Finished goods are
generally shipped 1o either our distribution facilities or to third-party warehouses in California for repackaging and

distribution to customers.

We maintain a staff’ of experienced sourcing professionals in five offices in China (including Hong Kong), as well
as the United States, South Korea and Taiwan. This staff sources our products worldwide, monitors our suppliers’
purchases of raw material, and monitors production at contract manufacturing facilities in order to ensure quality
control and timely delivery. We also operate through independent agents in Asia and the Middle East. Our personnel
based in our Miami, Florida office perform similar functions with respect to our suppliers in Central America.
We conduct inspections of samples of each product prior to cutting by contractors during the manufacturing
process and prior to shipment. We also have full-time quality assurance inspectors in Latin America and the

Caribbean and in each of our overseas offices.

We also generally facilitate and aid our foreign contractors in obtaining raw materials. Otherwise, the foreign
contractors purchase the raw material in accordance with our specifications. Raw materials, which are in most
instances made and/or colored especially for us, consist principally of piece goods and yarn and are specified by us
from a number of foreign and domestic textile mills and converters.

We are committed to ethical sourcing standards and require our independent contractors to comply with our code of
conduct. We monitor compliance by our foreign contract manufacturers with applicable laws and regulations relating
to, for example, the payment of wages, working conditions and the environment. As part of our compliance program,
we routinely perform audits of our contract manufacturers and require corrective action when appropriate.

Qur relationship with our foreign suppliers subjects us to the risks of doing business abroad. As a result of our
suppliers, in some instances, being at great geographic distances from us, our transportation costs are increased and
longer lead times are required, which reduces our flexibility. Our finished goods are also subject to import duties,
quotas and other restrictions. The countries that we source our products from may, from time to time, impose new
quotas, duties, tariffs, or other restrictions or adjust prevailing quota, duty or tariff levels, which could affect our
ability to import products at the current or increased levels. Other risks in doing business with foreign suppliers
include political or economic instability, any significant fluctuations in the value of the dollar against foreign
currencies, terrorist activities, and restrictions on the transfer of funds. Although we have not been affected in a
material way by any of the foregoing factors, we cannot predict the likelithood or frequency of any such events
occurring and any material disruption may have an adverse affect on our business.

In order to assist with the timely delivery of finished goods, we function as our own customs broker for a majority
of our deliveries. We prepare our own customs documentation and arrange for any inspections or other clearance
procedures with the United States Customs Service. We are a member of the United States Customs Automated




Interface program. This membership permits us to clear our goods through United States Customs electronically
and generally reduces the necessary clearance time to a matter of hours rather than days.

Import and Import Restrictions

Our import operations are subject to constraints imposed by bilateral textile agreements between the United States
and 2 number of foreign countries including China, Indonesia and Korea. These agreements impose quotas on the
amount and type of goods that can be imported into the United States from these countries. Such agreements also
allow the United States to impose, at any time, restraints on the importation of categories of products that, under
the terms of the agreements, are not subject to specified limits. Most of our imported products are also subject to
United States customs duties and other charges.

We monitor duty, tariff, and quota-related developments and continually seek to minimize our potential exposure
to quota-related risks through, among other measures, geographical diversification of our contract manufacturers,
the maintenance of overseas offices, allocation of overseas production to product categories where more quota is
available and shifts of production among countries and manufacturers.

Under the terms of the World Trade Organization Agreement on Textiles and Clothing, WTO members have agreed
to remove all quotas by January 1, 2005. Because of our sourcing experience, capabilities and relationships, we
believe we are well-positioned to take advantage of the elimination of quotas by 2005.

Competition

The retail apparel industry is highly competitive and fragmented. Our competitors include numerous apparel
designers, manufacturers, importers, licensors, and our own customers’ private label programs, many of which are
larger and have greater financial and marketing resources than we have available to us. We believe that the principal
competitive factors in the industry are: (1) brand name and brand identity, (2) timeliness, reliability and quality of
services provided, (3) market share and visibility, (4) price, and (5) the ability to anticipate customer and consumer
demands and maintain appeal of products to customers.

We strive to focus on these points and have proven our ability to anticipate and respond quickly to customer demands
with our brands, range of products and our ability to operate within the industry’s production and delivery constraints.
We believe that our continued dedication to customer service, product assortment and quality control, as well as our
aggressive pursuit of licensing and acquisition opportunities, directly addresses the competitive factors in all market
segments. Our established brands and relationships with retailers have resulted in a loyal following of customers.

We understand that the level of competition and the nature of our competitors vary by product segment.
In particular, in the mass market channel, manufacturers constitute our main competitors in this less expensive
segment of the market, while high profile domestic and foreign designers and licensors account for our main
competitors in the more upscale segment of the market. Although we have been able to compete successfully to
date, there can be no assurance that significant new competitors will not develop in the future.

Trademarks

Our material trademarks are registered with the United States Patent and Trademark Office and in other countries.
We regard our trademarks and other proprietary rights as valuable assets that are critical in the marketing of our
products, and, therefore, we vigorously protect our trademarks against infringements.

Employees

As of April 6, 2004, we had approximately 1,398 employees compared to approximately 576 employees as of April
6, 2003. Other than some of our employees at our Winnsboro, South Carolina distribution facility, none of our
employees are subject to collective bargaining agreements. In fiscal 2003, however, a labor organization attempted
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to organize certain employees of one of our subsidiaries at our Miami, Florida facility. A National Labor Relations
Board-supervised election was held on September 9, 2002. A majority of the employees at our Miami distribution
center who voted cast their ballots against unionization. The labor organization filed objections to the election, and,
after a lengthy review process, the National Labor Relations Board ordered another election be held on May 30,
2003. At the May 30, 2003 election, a majority of the employees who voted cast their ballots against unionization.
The labor organization filed objections to this second election, which objections are pending before the National
Labor Relations Board. We consider our employee relations to be satisfactory.

Certain Risks

Our business faces certain risks. The risks described below may not be the only risks we face. Additional risks that
we do not yet know of or that we currently think are immaterial may also impair our business. If any of the events
or circumstances described as risks below actually occurs, our business, results of operations or financial condition
could be materially and adversely affected.

We rely on a few key customers, and the loss of any one key customer would substantially reduce our revenues.

We derive a significant amount of our revenues from a few major customers. A significant decrease in business from
or loss of any of our major customers could harm our financial condition by causing a significant decline in
revenues attributable to such customers.

Net sales to our five largest customers totaled approximately 39%, 40%, and 47% of net sales during fiscal 2004, fiscal
2003, and fiscal 2002, respectively. Our five largest customers are J. C. Penney, Kohl’s, Federated, May, and Sears. For
fiscal 2004, Kohl’s represented 10% of our net sales. Net sales to Wal-Mart accounted for approximately 11% of net
sales during fiscal 2003. Net sales to Target Corporation, Wal-Mart, and J. C. Penney accounted for approximately 12%,
11% and 11% of net sales during fiscal 2002, respectively. No other single customer accounted for more than 10% of
our net sales during these fiscal years.

Although we have long-standing relationships with many of our customers, we do not have long-term contracts
with any of them and purchases generally occur on an order-by-order basis. We believe that purchasing decisions
are generally made independently by individual department stores within a company controlled group. There has
been a trend, however, toward more centralized purchasing decisions. As such decisions become more centralized,
the risk to us of such concentration increases. If our customers were to curtail or cease their purchase orders with
us, our revenues could significantly decrease and our financial condition could be significantly harmed.

We may not be able to anticipate consumer preferences and fashion trends, which could negatively affect acceptance of our
products by retailers and consumers and result in a significant decrease in net sales.

Our failure to anticipate, identify and respond effectively to changing consumer demands and fashion trends could
adversely affect acceptance of our products by retailers and consumers and may result in a significant decrease in
net sales or leave us with a substantal amount of unsold inventory. We believe that our success depends on our ability
to anticipate, identify and respond to changing fashion trends in a timely manner. Our products must appeal to a
broad range of consumers whose preferences cannot be predicted with certainty and are subject to rapid change.
We may not be able to continue to develop appealing styles or successfully meet constantly changing consumer
demands in the future. In addition, any new products or brands that we introduce may not be successfully received
by retailers and consumers. Due to the fact that we began marketing women’s apparel with the acquisition of the
Jantzen swimwear business in fiscal 2003, we may be more subject to additional changes in fashion trends as
women’s fashion trends have historically changed more rapidly than men’s. If our products are not successfully
received by retailers and consumers and we are left with a substantial amount of unsold inventory, we may be forced
to rely on markdowns or promotional sales to dispose of excess, slow-moving inventory. If this occurs, our business,
financial condition, tesults of operations and prospects may be harmed.

Our business could be negatively impacted by the financial instability of our customers.




During the past several years, various retailers, including some of our customers, have experienced significant difficulties,
including bankruptcies, liquidations, consolidation of ownership, and increased centralization of buying decisions.
For example, Kmart Corporation and Casual Male Corp. filed for protection from creditors under Chapter 11 of
the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. These and other financial problems of some of our customers increase the risk of
extending credit to these retailers. Consistent with industry practices, we sell products primarily on open account
after completing an appropriate credit review. A significant adverse change in a customer or its financial position
could cause us to limit or discontinue business with that customer, require us to assume more credit risk relating to
that customer’s receivables or limit our ability to collect amounts related to previous purchases by that customer, all
of which could harm our business, financial condition and results of operation by causing a significant decline in
revenues attributable to such customers.

We are dependent upon the revenues generated by our licensing alliances and the loss or inability to renew certain licenses
could reduce our royalty income or net sales and consequently reduce our net income.

A portion of our net income is derived from licensing income received from our licensing partners. The interruption
of the business of several of our licensing partners at any one time could adversely affect our royalty income and
net income. Licensing income accounted for $21.7 million or 4.3% of total revenues for fiscal 2004.

We currently license the PING, Nike, Tommy Hilfiger, NAUTICA and Ocean Pacific brands from third parties.
These licenses vary in length of term, renewal conditions and royalty obligations. The average term of these licenses
is three to five years with automatic renewals depending upon whether we achieve certain targeted sales goals.
We may not be able to renew or extend any of these licenses, on favorable terms, if at all. If we are unable to renew
or extend any of these licenses, we could experience a decrease in net sales.

We may face challenges integrating Salant, which may negatively impact our business.

We will need to integrate Salant’s business into our operations in order to achieve the anticipated benefits of the
Salant acquisition. We may face challenges in consolidating functions and integrating management procedures,
personnel and operations in an efficient and effective manner which may negatively impact our business. Some of
these challenges include increased demands on management related to the significant increase in the size and diversity
of our business after the Salant acquisition, the diversion of management’s attention to implement our strategies for
the Salant business, the retention and integration of key Salant employees, analyzing aspects of Salant’s business that
are to be kept separate and distinct from our other businesses, and difficulties in assimilating Salant’s corporate culture
and practices into ours.

We may not have uncovered all the risks associated with the Salant acquisition or any future acquisitions and a significant
liability may arise after closing.

There may be additional risks that we failed to discover in the course of performing our due diligence investigations
related to the Salant acquisition and any future acquisitions which could result in significant liabilities arising after
the consummation of such transactions. In connection with the Salant acquisition, we assumed all of Salant’s liabilities,
whether pre-existing or contingent, as a matter of law. Moreover, as in the Salant acquisition, to the extent we
acquire all of the capital stock of potential future sellers, we will assume all of the seller’s liabilities as a matter of
law. As is customary in transactions similar to the Salant acquisition, the merger agreement did not provide for our
indemnification against any of Salant’s liabilities should they arise or become known to us after the closing. Such
liabilities could include those arising from the trademarks, employee benefits and pension contribution obligations
of a prior owner, accounting and financial reporting matters, tax matters and noncompliance with applicable federal,
state or local environmental requirements by prior owners for which we, as a successor owner, may potentially be
responsible. While we tried to minimize these risks by conducting such due diligence, including trademark, employee
benefits and environmental reviews, that we deemed appropriate under the circumstances, we may not have identified
all existing or potential risks. Any significant liability that may arise may harm our business, financial condition, results
of operations and prospects by requiring us to expend significant funds to satisfy such hability.
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We need significant working capital to fund our operations, a substantial portion of which is financed, and our inability
to continue to finance such working capital could affect our marketing and sales efforts because owr ability to purchase

inventory would be curtailed.

‘We need significant working capital to purchase inventory and are often required to post letters of credit when placing
an order with one of our foreign manufacturers. We meet our working capital needs through our operating cash flow,
our senior credit facility and letter of credit facilities. If we are unable to extend or renew either our senior credit
facility or letter of credit facilities on satisfactory terms or in the event borrowings thereunder were unavailable to us
as a result of any noncompliance with any covenants contained therein, our ability to purchase inventory would be
curtailed or eliminated, which would significantly affect our marketing and sales efforts, thus harming our business.

We have a significant amount of debt, which could have important negative consequences to us, including making it
difficult for us to satisfy all of our obligations in the event we experience financial difficulties.

We have a significant amount of debt. As of March 31, 2004, we had $265.7 million of debt outstanding (excluding
amounts outstanding under our letter of credit facilities).

Our substantial indebtedness could have important consequences to you, including:

> making it more difficult for us to satisfy our obligations with respect to our senior secured notes and our
senior subordinated notes, including our ability to repurchase such notes upon the occurrence of a change
of control,

> increasing our vulnerability to adverse general economic and industry conditions and adverse changes in
governmental regulations,

> limiting our ability to obtain additional financing to fund capital expenditures, acquisitions and other general
corporate requirements,

> requiring us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to payments on our indebt-
edness, thereby reducing the availability of our cash flow to fund capital expenditures, acquisitions or other
general corporate purposes,

> limiting the rights of our holders of senior subordinated notes to receive payments if holders of our secured
debt have not been paid,

> limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the industry in which we
operate, and

> placing us at a competitive disadvantage compared to our less leveraged competitors.

Our ability to pay interest on our indebtedness and to satisfy our other debt obligations will depend upon, among
other things, our future operating performance and our ability to refinance indebtedness when necessary. Each of
these factors is, to a large extent, dependent on economic, financial, competitive and other factors beyond our
control. If, in the future, we cannot generate sufficient cash from operations to make scheduled payments on
our indebtedness or to meet our other obligations, we will need to refinance our existing debt, obtain additional
financing or sell assets. We cannot assure you that our business will generate cash flow, or that we will be able to

obtain funding, sufficient to satisfy our debt service requitements.
To service our existing and future debt, we will require a significant amount of cash, which may not be available to us.

Our ability to make payments on or refinance our debt will depend largely upon our future operating performance
and cash flow. Our future operating performance and cash flow are subject to many factors, including general
economic, financial, competitive, legislative, regulatory and other factors that are beyond our control.

We cannot assure you that our business will generate cash flow from operations in an amount sufficient to enable
us to pay the interest and principal on our debt or to fund our other liquidity needs. If we are unable to generate
cash to meet our debt service requirements, we may have to renegotiate or refinance the terms of our debt. We
cannot assure you that we will be able to renegotiate or refinance any of our debt on commercially reasonable terms
or at all. In addition, prior to the repayment of our senior subordinated notes, we will be required to repay or refinance




our senior credit facility and, perhaps, any other debt we incur. Any new debt we incur may have a shorter maturity
than our existing debt. Payment of such debt will reduce the amount of funds available to us to make payments on
our existing debt.

If we are unable to refinance our debt or obtain new financing under these circumstances, we would have to
consider other options, such as selling certain assets to meet our debt service obligations or using cash, if available,
that would have been used for other business purposes.

These options may not be feasible or may be inadequate, and may also adversely affect our operations or the
implementation of our business plan. Our senior credit facility and the indentures governing our senior secured
notes and the senior subordinated notes may restrict, or market or business conditions may limit, our ability to do
some of these things. Non-payment or other non-compliance with our senior credit facility, the indentures
governing our senior secured notes and senior subordinated notes or the instruments governing our other debt
could result in an event of default under our other instruments governing our debt.

Our swinnwear business has not been profitable.

We acquired the Jantzen swimwear business in March 2002, which business has not yet been profitable. Our future
results may be adversely impacted if this business remains unprofitable.

Qur swimwear business is highly seasonal in nature and revenue and profitability can be adversely affected by climate
and other factors.

The vast majority of swimwear shipments to our customers occur in our first and fourth quarters. Adverse weather,
temporary disruptions in the supply chain and other factors that result in reduced or delayed shipments to customers could
impact the profitability of the swimwear business, which in turn may negatively impact our consolidated net income.

We operate in a highly competitive and fragmented industry and our failure to successfully compete could result in a loss
of one or more significant customefs.

The retail apparel industry is highly competitive and fragmented. Qur competitors include numerous apparel
designers, manufacturers, importers and licensors, many of which have greater financial and marketing resources than
us. We believe that the principal competitive factors in the apparel industry are:

> brand name and brand identity,

> tmeliness, reliability and quality of services provided,

> market share and visibility,

> oprice, and

> the ability to anticipate customer and consumer demands and maintain appeal of products to customers.

The level of competition and the nature of our competitors varies by product segment with low-margin, mass-
market manufacturers being our main competitors in the less expensive segment of the market and U.S. and foreign
designers and licensors competing with us in the more upscale segment of the market. If we do not maintain our
brand names and identities and continue to provide high quality and reliable services on a timely basis at competitive
prices, we may not be able to continue to compete in our industry. If we are unable to compete successfully, we
could lose one or more of our significant customers which, if not replaced, could negatively impact our sales and
financial performance.

We depend on certain key personnel the loss of which could negatively impact our ability to manage our business.

Our future success depends to a significant extent on retaining the services of certain executive officers and directors,
in particular George Feldenkreis, our chairman of the board and chief executive officer, and Oscar Feldenkreis, our
president and chief operating officer. They are each party to an employment agreement, which was renewed in
December 2002 for an additional two-year period expiring in May 2005. The loss of the services of either George
Feldenkreis or Oscar Feldenkreis, or any other key member of management, could have a material adverse effect on
our ability to manage our business. Our continued success is dependent upon our ability to attract and retain qualified

Perry Ellis International 2004 Antiual Reporr page / 5 1




management, administrative and sales personnel to support our future growth. Our inability to do so may have a
significant negative impact on our ability to manage our business.

[tem 2. Properties

We own our principal executive and administrative office, warehouse and distribution facility, which is located in a
230,000 square foot facility in Miami, Florida. This facility is encumbered by an $11.6 million mortgage. For purposes
of potental future expansion, we own approximately three acres of land adjacent to this facility.

We lease three facilities in Miami, totaling approximately 103,000 square feet, which house distribution and adminis-
trative functions. These facilities are leased on a month-to-month basis from our chairman and chief executive officer.

We own a 345,000 square foot distribution center in Seneca, South Carolina, and in Winnsboro, South Carolina,
we own a 380,000 square foot distribution facility.

We lease several locations in New York City, totaling approximately 97,000 square feet, with leases expiring from
August 2005 to December 2012. These locations are used for office, design, and showroom space.

We lease 45,200 square feet for office space used by our swimwear business in Portland, Oregon, pursuant to a lease
expiring in December 2004.

In order to monitor production of our products in the Far East, we maintain offices in South Korea and China
(including Hong Kong) and also lease offices jointly with GFX, Inc., a company controlled by George Feldenkreis,
our chairman and chief executive officer, in Beijing, China and Taipei, Taiwan.

We also operate 38 retail outlet stores, comprising approximately 94,500 square feet of selling space, all of which
are leased.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Perry Ellis is subject to claims and suits against it, and is the initiator of claims and suits against others in the
ordinary course of business, including claims arising from the use of its trademarks. Perry Ellis does not believe that
the resolution of any pending claims will have a material adverse affect on its business, financial condition or results
of operations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

Not Applicable.




PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity and
Related Shareholder Matters

(a) Market Information

QOur common stock has been listed for trading on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “PERY” since
June 1999. Prior to that date, our trading symbol was “SUPI” based upon our former name, Supreme International
Corporation. The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the range of high and low per share bids of
our common stock as reported by the Nasdaq National Market. Such quotations represent inter-dealer prices, without
retail mark-up, mark-down or commission and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.

High Low
Fiscal Year 2003
First Quarter $ 1225 8 6.65
Second Quarter 17.85 11.50
Third Quarter 15.00 9.40
Fourth Quarter 17.80 11.65
Fiscal Year 2004
First Quarter 20.94 17.54
Second Quarter 23.96 18.25
Third Quarter 29.73 22.41
Fourth Quarter 27.92 22.24
(b) Holders

As of April 6, 2004, there were approximately 276 shareholders of record of our common stock. We believe the
number of beneficial owners of our common stock is in excess of 1,100.

(¢) Dividends

We have not paid any cash dividends since our inception and do not contemplate doing so in the near future.
Payment of cash dividends is prohibited under our senior credit facility and indentures governing our senior secured
notes and senior subordinated notes. See Notes 14 through 17 to the consolidated financial statements of Perry Ellis
included in Item 8 of this Report. Any future decision regarding payment of cash dividends will depend on our
earnings and financial position and such other factors, as our board of directors deems relevant.

(d) Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

The section under the heading “Executive Compensation” entitled “Equity Compensation Plan Information for
Fiscal 2004” in the Company’s proxy statement for the 2004 annual meeting of shareholders is incorporated herein
by reference.

For additional information concerning the Company’s capitalization please see Note 23, “Stock Options and
Warrants” of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

Summary Historical Financial Information
(Dollars in thousands, except for per share data)

The following selected financial data is qualified by reference to, and should be read in conjunction with, the
Consolidated Financial Statements of Perry Ellis and related Notes thereto included in Item 8 of this Report and
“Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” Certain amounts
in prior fiscal years have been reclassified to conform to the 2004 presentation.

Fiscal Year Ended January 31, 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
Income Statement Data:
Net sales § 227,732 $ 258,888 $ 251,310 $ 277,028 $ 484,198
Net royalty income 22,840 25,790 26,681 28,813 21,718
Total revenues 250,572 284,678 277,991 305,841 505,916
Cost of sales 171,413 200,884 191,601 205,001 336,422
Gross profit 79,159 83,794 86,390 100,840 169,494
Selling, general and administrative expenses 42,663 49,408 55,447 63,850 119,659
Depreciation and amortization 5,181 6,130 6,662 3,583 5,043
Operating income 31,315 28,256 24,281 33,407 44,792
Costs on early extinguishment of debt — — — — 7,317
Interest expense 13,905 15,766 13,550 15,795 16,414
Income before minority interest

and income tax provision 17,410 12,490 10,731 17,612 21,061
Minority interest — — 83 89 214
Income taxes 6,530 4,663 4,040 6,726 7,695
Net income § 10,880 $ 7,827 $ 6,608 $ 10,797 $ 13,152
Net income per share:

Basic % 1.62 $ 1.17 $ 1.01 $ 1.69 $ 1.71

Diluted $ 1.59 $ 1.16 $ 1.01 $ 1.65 $ 1.59
Weighted average

number of shares outstanding

Basic 6,726 6,689 6,517 6,387 7,683

Diluted 6,857 6,745 6,535 6,550 8,296
Other Financial Data and Ratios:
EBITDA (a) $ 36,496 $ 34,385 $ 30,860 $ 36,901 $ 49,621
Cash flows from operations 14,047 (2,112 22,375 (16,795) (11,313)
Cash flows from investing (104,091) (5,434) (3,021) (47,349) (44,887)
Cash flows from financing 90,097 7,665 (18,319) 67,479 52,409
Capital expenditures 2,332 2,712 2,922 22,077 8,673
Balance Sheet Data (at year end):
Working capital 70,651 88,879 60,932 119,898 192,930
Total assets 224,873 243,113 234,061 331,237 480,400
Total debt (b) 128,270 137,066 120,828 194,432 257,158
Total stockholders’ equity 76,020 82,879 87,204 99,402 150,882
) EBITDA represents net income before taking into consideration interest expense, costs on the early extinguishment of debe, depreciation expense,

income taxes and amortization expense as outlined below in tabular format. EBITDA is not a measurement of financial performance under generally
accepted accounting principles and does not represent cash flow from operations. Accordingly, do not regard this figure as an alternative to cash flows
as a measure of liquidity. We believe that EBITDA provides an indication of Perry Ellis” ability to satisfy its debt obligations but is not necessarily com-
parable with similarly titled measures for other companies. See “Statement of Cash Flows” in our consolidated financial statements.




Fiscal Year Ended January 31,

(In thousands) 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
Net income $ 10,880 $ 7,827 $ 6,608 $ 10,797 $ 13,152
Depreciation & amortization 5,181 6,130 6,662 3,583 5,043
Interest expense 13,905 15,766 13,550 15,765 16,414
Income taxes 6,530 4,663 4,040 6,726 7,695
Costs on early extinguishment of debt 7,317
EBITDA $ 36,496 $ 34,386 $ 30,860 $ 36,901 $ 49,621

b)  Total debt includes balances outstanding under Perry Ellis’ sentor credit facility, senior secured notes, senior subordinated notes, and real estate mortgage.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations

Overview

We began operations in 1967 as Supreme International Corporation and initially focused our efforts on marketing
guayabera shirts, and other men’s apparel products targeted at the Hispanic market in Florida and Puerto Rico. Over
time we expanded our product line to offer a variety of men’s sport shirts. In 1988, we developed the Natural Issue
brand and completed our initial public offering in 1993. In 1996, we began an expansion strategy through the
acquisition of brands including the Munsingwear family of brands in 1996, the John Henry and Manhattan brands
from Salant in 1999 and the Perry Ellis brand in 1999. Following the Perry Ellis acquisition, we changed our name
from Supreme International Corporation to Perry Ellis International, Inc. to better reflect the name recognition
that the brand provided. In 2002, we acquired the Jantzen brand and in June 2003 we acquired Salant, our largest
licensee, giving us greater control of the Perry Ellis brand, as well as adding other brands owned by Salant.

We believe we are one of the leading apparel companies in the United States. We control a portfolio of major men’s
and women’s brands, some of which were established over 100 years ago. We design, source, market and license our
products nationally and internationally at multiple price points and across all major levels of retail distribution at
more than 20,000 doors. The levels of retail distribution include department stores, national and regional chain
stores, mass merchants, specialty stores, sporting goods stores, green grass golf shops, the corporate incentive market
and independent retailers in the United States and Canada. Our largest customers include Federated, Dillard’s, May
Deparument Stores, Wal-Mart, J.C. Penney, Kohl, and Sears. We also operate 38 retail stores located primarily in
upscale retail outlet malls across the United States. In addition, we leverage our design, sourcing and logistics expertise
by offering a limited number of private label programs to retailers. In order to maximize the worldwide exposure
of our brands and generate high margin royalty income, we license our brands through approximately 56 domestic
and approximately 79 international license agreements. Our licensing business is a significant contributor to our
operating income.

In fiscal 2004, we experienced a 65.4% increase in total revenue and a 21.8% increase in net income. These increases
were primarily due to our acquisition of Salant and organic growth offset by a decrease in royalty income.
The record net income results we realized in fiscal 2004 came despite the fact that our swimwear business
performed at levels below our expectations.

Our wholesale business, which is comprised of men’s sportswear and women’s and men’s swimwear and swimwear
accessories, accounted for 96% of our total revenues in fiscal 2004, and our licensing business accounted for 4% of
our total revenues in fiscal 2004. We have traditionally focused on the men’s sportswear market, which represented
approximately 86.7% of our total wholesale revenues in fiscal 2004, while the women’s and men’s swimwear market
represented approximately 13.3% of our total wholesale revenues in fiscal 2004.

In June 2003, we acquired Salant, a leading designer, marketer and distributor of brand name and private label
menswear products and the largest licensee of the Perry Ellis brand. With the Salant acquisition we have consolidated
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control of the Perry Ellis brand, added significant revenues and earnings, solidified our balance sheet, further diversified
our product offerings and customer base, and added to our portfolio of brands. As a result of this acquisition, we
also assumed operation of 39 retail outlet stores, of which we have since closed four. The Salant business represented
approximately $165 million of the $200 million in total revenue growth we experienced in fiscal 2004.

Qur products have historically been geared towards lighter weight apparel generally worn during the spring and
summer months. We believe that this seasonality has been reduced with our introduction of fall, winter, and
holiday merchandise. Our swimwear business, however, is highly seasonal in nature, with the significant majority of
its sales occurring in our first and fourth quarters. Our higher-priced products generally tend to be less sensitive to
either economic or weather conditions. Seasonality can be affected by a variety of factors, including the mix of
advance and fill-in orders, the amount of sales to different distribution channels, and overall product mix among
traditional merchandise, fashion merchandise and swimwear. We expect that revenues for our second quarter will

typically be lower than our other quarters due to the impact of seasonal sales.

We believe that our future growth will come as a result of our continued emphasis on our existing brands; new and
expanded product lines; increases 1n our sales of bottoms, sweaters, swimwear and accessories; domestic and inter-
national licensing; multi-brand development for the fast-growing Hispanic market; and selective acquisitions and
opportunities that fit strategically with our business model. Our expected future growth in these areas may be offset
somewhat by a decreased focus on private label business.

[n the past few vyears, the general decline in the U.S. economy has resulted in lower consumer spending. Retailers
have responded to the general sense of economic weakness by delaying the placement of orders, reducing orders,
and implementing aggressive price discounting and promotional activities. Many retailers, including some of our
customers, have prioritized their own private label products or have instituted competitive internet-based global
bidding processes for their private label business that, in some cases, are designed to effectively reduce margins to a
level that are no longer attractive to us. In addition, during the past several years various retailers, including some
of our customers, have experienced significant difficulties including bankruptcies, liquidations and reorganizations.
All of these factors have materially adversely affected the apparel industry. Furthermore, the geopolitical situation has
adversely affected the U.S. economy and consequently the apparel industry. We believe, however, that the current U.S.
economy has improved in recent months. This improvement has led to the improved results of our customers. We believe
that the improved economy and the resulting increase in demand for apparel should benefit us for the foreseeable future.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” for

recent accounting pronouncements.

Critical Accounting Policies

Included in the footnotes to the consolidated financial statements in this report is a summary of all significant
accounting policies used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements. We follow the accounting
methods and practices as required by Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America
(“GAAP”). In particular, our critical accounting policies and areas we use judgment in are the areas of revenue
recognition, the estimated collectability of accounts receivable, the recoverability of obsolete or overstocked inventory,
the impairment of long-lived assets that are our trademarks, the recoverability of deferred tax assets and the

measurement of retirement related benefits.

Revenue Recognition. Sales are recognized at the time legal title to the product passes to the customer, generally FOB
Perry Ellis’ distribution facilities, net of trade allowances and a provision for estimated returns and other allowances.
Royalty income is recognized when earned on the basis of the terms specified in the underlying contractual agreements.
We believe that our revenue recognition policies conform to Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101, Revenue Recognition

in Financial Statements.




Accounts Receivable. We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts receivables for estimated trade discounts, co-op
advertising, allowances provided to retail customers to flow goods through the retail channel, and losses resulting
from the inability of our retail customers to make required payments considering historical and anticipated trends.
Judgment is critical because some retail customers are currently operating in bankruptcy or have experienced financial
difficulties. Additional allowances might be required if their financial condition were to worsen.

Inventories. Qur inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market value. We evaluate all of our inventory style-size-
color stock keeping units, or SKUjs, to determine excess or slow-moving SKUs based on orders on hand and projec-
tions of future demand and market conditions. For those units in inventory that are so identified, we estimate their
market value or net sales value based on current realization trends. If the projected net sales value is less than cost, on
an individual SKU basis, we provide an allowance to reflect the lower value of that inventory. This methodology
recognizes projected inventory losses at the time such losses are evident rather than at the time goods are actually sold.

Intangible Assets. We have, at the present time, only one class of indefinite lived assets, trademarks. We review our
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives for possible impairments on an annual basis in accordance with SFAS
No. 142 and perform impairment testing as of February 1% of each year. We evaluate the “fair value” of our identi-
fiable intangible assets for purposes of recognition and measurement of impairment losses. Evaluating indefinite useful
life assets for impairment involves certain judgments and estimates, including the interpretation of current economic
indicators and market valuations, and our strategic plans with regard to our operations, historical and anticipated
performance of our operations and other factors. If we incorrectly anticipate these trends or unexpected events

occur, our results of operations could be materially affected.

Deferred Taxes. We account for income taxes under the liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized based on the differences berween financial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities using presently
enacted tax rates. A valuation allowance is recorded to reduce deferred tax assets to that portion which is expected
to more likely than not be realized. The ultimate realization of the deferred tax asset is dependent upon the generation
of future taxable income during the periods prior to the expiration of the related net operating losses. If our
estimates and assumptions about future taxable income are not appropriate, the value of our deferred tax asset may

not be recoverable.

Retirement-Related Benefits. The pension obligations related to our defined benefit pension plans are developed from
actuarial valuations. Inherent in these valuations are key assumptions, including the discount rate, expected return
of plan assets, future compensation increases, and other factors, which are updated on an annual basis. Management
is required to consider current market conditions, including changes in interest rates, in making these assumptions.
Actual results that differ from the assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future periods, and therefore,
generally affect the recognized pension expense or benefit and our pension obligation in future periods. The fair
value of plan assets is based on the performance of the financial markets, particularly the equity markets. The equity
markets can be, and recently have been, very volatile. Therefore, the market value of the plan assets can change
dramatically in a relatively short period of time. Additionally, the measurement of the plan’s benefit obligation is
highly sensitive to changes in interest rates. As a result, if the equity market declines and/or interest rates decrease,
the plan’s estimated accumulated benefit obligation could exceed the fair value of the plan assets and therefore, we
would be required to establish an additional minimum liability, which would result in a reduction in shareholder’s
equity for the amount of the shortfall. For fiscal 2004, we did not record an additional minimum pension liability

calculated under the provisions of SFAS No. 87.

Items Affecting Comparability of Fiscal Periods

Adoption of SFAS No. 142. As disclosed in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, we adopted SFAS
No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” as of February 1, 2002. Under the provisions of SFAS No. 142,
certain intangibles are no longer amortized after the date of adoption. Intangible assets as of the date of adoption
are evaluated to determine if they have finite or indefinite useful lives. Intangible assets determined to have finite

lives are amortized over those lives and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives are not amortized. SFAS
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No. 142 does not permit the restatement of previously issued financial statements, but does require the disclosure of
prior years results adjusted to exclude amortization expense related to goodwill and intangible assets which are no

longer being amortized.

Adoption of EITF Issue No. 01-09. As disclosed in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, we adopted
EITF Issue No. 01-09, “Accounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer (Including a Reseller of
the Vendor’s Products),” as of February 1,2002.The provisions of EITF No. 01-09, relate to the measurement, recog-
nition and presentation of certain sales incentives offered to the company’s customers. These new accounting rules
apply to certain sales incentives such as discounts, coupons, rebates and certain payments made to retailers for shelf
space or reimbursement of advertising costs. These accounting rules generally require these incentives to be reflected
as a reduction in revenues on the income statement rather than selling, general and administrative expense. Upon
adoption of these rules at the beginning of fiscal 2003, all prior financial statement results have been restated to reflect
the impact of the change. The adoption of this new accounting standard had no impact on our income before minority
interest and income taxes, net income or financial position.

Acquisitions. We completed the Salant acquisition on June 2003, which contributed $164.8 million to our revenue

growth.

Our Results of Operations for Fiscal 2004

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, selected items in our consolidated statements of income

expressed as a percentage of total revenues:

Fiscal Year Ended January 31 2002 2003 2004

Net Sales 90.4% 90.6% 95.7%
Royalty Income 9.6% 9.4% 4.3%
Total Revenues 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of Sales 68.9% 67.0% 66.5%
Gross Profit 31.1% 33.0% 33.5%
Selling, general and administrative expenses 19.9% 20.9% 23.7%
Depreciation and amortization 2.4% 1.1% 1.0%
Operating Income 8.8% 11.0% 8.8%
Costs on early extinguishment of debt 0.0% 0.0% 1.4%
Interest Expense 4.9% 5.2% 3.2%
Income before minority interest and income taxes 3.9% 5.8% 4.2%
Minority interest - — —

Inconie tax provision 1.5% 2.2% 1.5%
Net Income 2.4% 3.6% 2.7%

The following is a discussion of the results of operations for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2004 (“fiscal 2004”7} as
compared with the fiscal year ended January 31, 2003 (“fiscal 2003).

Our Fiscal 2004 Results as compared to our Fiscal 2003 Results

Total revenues. Total revenues consist of net sales and royalty income. Total revenues for fiscal 2004 were $505.9 million,
which is an increase of $§200.1, or 65.4%, from $305.8 for fiscal 2003. The increase was due mainly to an increase of
approximately $164.3 million in net sales generated by the Salant business, which we acquired in the Salant acquisition
in June 2003, an increase of $38.9 million in net sales generated by our swimwear business, and a $3.5 million increase
in net sales in our other men’s sportswear business, which includes all of our businesses other than our Salant business
and swimwear business. This increase was offset in part by a decrease in royalty income of $§7.1 million described below.




Net sales. Net sales in fiscal 2004 were $484.2 million, an increase of $207.2 million, or 74.8%, from $277.0 million
in fiscal 2003. The increase in net sales is primarily attributable to the increases in net sales generated by the Salant
business, by our swimwear business, and other men’s sportswear business.

Royalty income. Royalty income in fiscal 2004 was $21.7 million, a decrease of $7.1 million, or 24.6%, from $28.8
million in fiscal 2003. The decrease in royalty income for fiscal 2004 was due to two reasons. First, the loss of $3.5
million in royalty income we previously received from Salant. We acquired Salant in June 2003. For the fiscal years
2001 through 2003 Salant was our largest licensee, and its results are now recognized in our net sales. Second, the
decrease in royalty income was also attributable to the decreases in royalty income from certain of the licensees of
the Perry Ellis and John Henry brands. Royalty income is derived from agreements entered into by us with our
licensees, which average three vyears in length. The vast majority of our license agreements require licensees to pay
us a royalty, based on net sales and require licensees to pay a guaranteed minimum royalty. Approximately 67% of
our royalty income was attributable to guaranteed minimum royalties with the balance attributable to royalty
income in excess of the guaranteed minimums for each of fiscal 2004 and 2003.

Cost of sales. Cost of sales in fiscal 2004 were $336.4, an increase of $131.4 million, or 64.1%, from $205.0 million
in fiscal 2003. The increase is primarily due to the increase in net sales described above.

As a percentage of revenues, cost of sales decreased from 67.0% in fiscal 2003 to 66.5% in fiscal 2004. Two factors
contributed to this change. First royalty income, which has virtually no cost of sales associated with it decreased,
which drove the average cost of sales as a percentage of total revenues up. Second, primarily as a result of the impact
high margin sales from the Salant acquisition our cost of sales as a percentage of net sales (sales excluding royalty
income) in fiscal 2004 was 69.5% as compared to 74% in fiscal 2003.

Gross profit. Gross profit was $169.5 million in fiscal 2004, as compared to $100.8 million, an increase of 68.1%.
The increase in gross profit in fiscal 2004 as compared to fiscal 2003 was primarily attributed to the impact of our
acquisition of Salant for the 7.5-month period after June 19, 2003. Additionally, we experienced growth in gross
profit dollars in our other wholesale business. These increases were offset by a $7.1 million decrease in royalty
Income. As a percentage of total revenue gross profit margins were 33.5% in fiscal 2004 as compared to 33.0% in
fiscal 2003.The decrease in royalty income mentioned eatlier adversely impacted the overall gross profit margin percent;
however, that decrease was offset by an improvement in our gross margin percent in our wholesale business (that is
cost of sales divided by net sales). The wholesale gross profit margin percent improved in fiscal 2004 to 30.5% as
compared to 26% in fiscal 2003. This improvement came as a result of the impact of sales from the Salant acquisition
and from the Company’s continued success in realigning its business to higher margin branded business as compared
to private label sales. Branded sales accounted for 91% of net sales in fiscal 2004 as compared to 75% in fiscal 2003.

The gross profit percentage for branded label sales typically is 3% to 5% higher than our private label sales depending
on customer and product mix. Qur gross profit percentage may not be comparable to others in our industry, because
our gross profit includes royalty income and others in the apparel industry may not have such income.

Selling, general and administrative expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses in fiscal 2004 were §119.7
million, an increase of $55.8 million, or 87.4%, from $63.9 million in fiscal 2003. As a percentage of total revenues,
selling, general and administrative expenses were 23.7% in fiscal 2004 as compared to 20.9% in fiscal 2003. The
increase in selling, general and administrative costs is primarily attributable to the additional $37.2 million in
expenses incurred by our Salant business and an additional $10.9 million from our swimwear business. The increase
in these costs is also attributable to an increase in expenses we incurred supporting our organic growth, and an
increase in advertising, marketing and design to support our existing brands, such as Perry Ellis, Cubavera, the
Havanera Co., and Original Penguin.

Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization in fiscal 2004 was $5.0 million, an increase of $1.5
million, or 40.7%, from $3.5 million in fiscal 2003. The increase is due to the increase in property and equipment
purchased in fiscal 2004 and a full year of depreciation from the purchase of the main administrative office, warehouse
and distribution facility in Miami and the Seneca distribution center. As of January 31, 2004, we owned approximately
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$36.8 million of property, plant and equipment as compared to $31.0 million of property, plant and equipment as
of January 31, 2003.

Costs on early extinguishment of debt. As a result of redeeming our $100 million in senior subordinated notes in fiscal 2004,
which were scheduled to mature in April 2006, our costs on early extinguishment of debt in fiscal 2004 was $7.3 million.
The costs on early extinguishment of debt include the call premium we paid and other associated redemption costs.

Interest expense. Interest expense in fiscal 2004 was $16.4 million, an increase of $.6 million, or 3.9%, from $15.8
million in fiscal 2003 The increase is mainly due to higher average debt balances, including the $150.0 million
senior subordinated notes issued in September 2003, offset by the impact of certain derivative hedging transactions.

As of January 31, 2004, we had $257.1 million in long-term debt as compared to $194.4 million as of January 31,
2003.The increase in long-term debt is a direct result of the long-term debt we incurred in connection with the
Salant acquisition. In addition, we had an additional $11.8 million outstanding under our senior credit facility as
compared to the prior fiscal year, which resulted in higher interest expense. The interest expense on higher outstanding
debt was offset in part by the impact of certain derivative hedging transactions described in “Item 3: Quantitative
and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risks”

Income taxes. Income taxes in fiscal 2004 were $7.7 million, 2 $1.0 million increase as compared to $6.7 million for
fiscal 2003. For fiscal 2004, our eftective tax rate was 36.5% as compared to 38.2% in fiscal 2003.

Net income. Net income in fiscal 2004 was $13.1 million, an increase of $2.3 million, or 21.8%, as compared to net
income of $10.8 million in fiscal 2003. The increase in net income was due to the changes described above.

Our Fiscal 2003 Results as compared to our Fiscal 2002 Results

Total revenues. Total revenues consist of net sales and royalty income. Total revenues increased $27.8 million, or
10.0%, to $305.8 million in fiscal 2003 from $278.0 million in the prior year. The increase was due predominately
to an increase of $25.3 million in net sales related to the sales generated by the Jantzen swimwear business and an

increase in royalty income of $2.1 million.

Net sales. Net sales increased $25.7 million, or 10.2%, to $277.0 million in fiscal 2003 from $251.3 million in the
comparable period last year. The increase in net sales is primarily attributable to the net sales generated by the Jantzen
swimwear business. Net sales of non-swimwear men’s apparel remained relatively unchanged for the fiscal year.

Royalty income. Royalty income was $28.8 million in fiscal 2003, a $2.1 million, or 7.9% increase over the prior
vear amount of $26.7 million. Royalty income is derived from agreements entered into by us with our licensees
which average three years in length. The vast majority of our license agreements require licensees to pay us a royalty,
based on net sales and require licensees to pay a guaranteed minimum rovyalty. Approximately 67% and 76% of our
royalty income was attributable to guaranteed minimums royalties with the balance attributable to royalty income
in excess of the guaranteed minimums for fiscal 2003 and 2002, respectively. The increase in royalty income was
mainly due to increases in royalty income in excess of guaranteed minimums for certain licensees of the Perry Ellis
brand, including Salant, having strong results despite a slowdown in overall retail sales and the addition of royalty
income generated from the Jantzen brands. The decrease in guaranteed minimums as a percentage of total royalty
income was mainly due to increases in royalty income in excess of guaranteed minimums for certain licenses of the
Perry Ellis brand, and royalty income from the Jantzen brands.

Cost of sales. Cost of sales for fiscal 2003 of $205.0 million was $13.4 million, or 7.0% higher than the prior year
amount of $191.6 million due mainly to the increase in net sales as described above. As a percent of revenues, cost
of sales decreased from 68.9% in fiscal 2002 to 67.0% in fiscal 2003, due primarily to a change in our sales mix
between private label and branded label sales. Cost of sales includes only costs relating to sale of product and
excludes costs relating to royalty income which are immaterial. Gross profit was $100.8 million in fiscal 2003, or
33.0% of revenues, as compared to $86.4 million, or 31.1% of revenues, in the prior year. We increased focus on
branded label sales, which accounted for 75.0% of ocur net sales in fiscal 2003 compared to 70.1% in fiscal 2002,




contributed to greater gross margins because branded label sales typically generate higher gross margins. Our gross
margin percentage for branded label sales typically are 3% to 5% higher than our gross margin percentage for private
label sales depending on customer and product mix. Our gross profit percentage may not be comparable to others
in the industry, because we include royalty income in gross profit and others in the apparel industry may not.

Selling, general and administrative expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses were $63.9 million in fiscal
2003 as compared to $55.4 million in the prior year, an increase of $8.5 million, or 15.2%. As a percent of total
revenues, selling, general and administrative expenses increased from 19.9% in fiscal 2002 to 20.9% in fiscal 2003.
The increase was due primarily to the additional $10.4 million in expenses incurred by the Jantzen operations,
offset by a decrease of $2.0 million in expenses incurred by our European Operations while the selling, general and
administrative expenses relating to our other businesses remained relatively unchanged.

Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization expense in fiscal 2003 was $3.6 million or 1.1% of
revenues as compared to $6.7 million or 2.4% of revenues in fiscal 2002. The decrease is due primarily to the adoption
of SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” as of February 1, 2002. Under the provisions of SFAS
No. 142, goodwill is no longer amortized after the date of adoption. Intangible assets as of the date of adoption are
evaluated to determine if they have finite or indefinite useful lives. Intangible assets determined to have finite lives
are amortized over those lives and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives are not amortized.

Interest expense. Interest expense in fiscal 2003 was $15.8 million as compared to $13.6 million in the prior year.
The increase is primarily attributable to our senior secured notes, which we sold to finance the Jantzen acquisition,
to pay down borrowings under the senior credit facility and to use as additional working capital offset by lower
interest rates and the positive impact of certain derivative hedging transactions described herein.

Income taxes. Income taxes in fiscal 2003 were $6.7 million, a $2.7 million increase as compared to $4.0 million in
fiscal 2002. The increase was due primarily to an increase in pretax income. The effective tax rates for fiscal years
2003 and 2002 were 38.2% and 37.9%, respectively.

Net income. Fiscal 2003 net income increased $4.2 million, or 63.4%, to $10.8 million from the prior year, primarily
as a result of the increase in net sales of $25.7 million, royalty income of $2.1 million and the improvement in gross
margin of $14.4 million.

Our Liquidity and Capital Resources

We rely primarily upon cash flow from operations and borrowings under our senior credit facility and letter of
credit facilities to finance our operations and expansion. We believe that as a result of the growth in our business,
our working capital requirements will increase. As of January 31, 2004, our total working capital was $192.9
million as compared to $119.9 million as of January 31, 2003, We believe that our cash flows from operations and
borrowings under our senior credit facility and letter of credit facilities are sufficient to meet our working capital
needs for the foreseeable future.

Net cash used in operating activities was $11.3 million in fiscal 2004 as compared to cash used in operating activities
of $16.8 million in fiscal 2003 and $22.4 million provided by operations in fiscal 2002. The decrease of $5.5 million
in the level of cash used in operating activities in fiscal 2004 as compared to fiscal 2003 is primarily attributable to
an decrease in the use of cash related to accounts receivable, inventory, accounts payable and accrued expenses, and
higher net income. Net cash used in operating activities was $16.8 million in fiscal 2003, as compared to $22.4 million
provided by operations in fiscal 2002. The difference was due to an increase in accounts receivable of $29.4 million,
and an increase in inventory of $3.7 million in fiscal 2003 offset in part by higher earnings. Accounts receivable
increased due to our acquisition of Salant, organic growth and a greater concentration of shipments occurring in
the last month of the fiscal year. Inventory increased by $1.9 million over the prior year due to the timing of receipts
of goods at January 31, 2004 and levels of replenishment of inventory.
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Net cash used in investing activities was $44.9 million in fiscal 2004, which primarily reflects the cash portion of
the acquisition of Salant for $34.5 million, net of cash acquired, purchases of property and equipment of $8.7 million
and the purchase of the Redsand trademark for $1.8 million.

In fiscal 2003, net cash used in investing activities was $47.3 million, principally due to the Jantzen acquisition and
purchases of property and equipment. In addition, in fiscal 2003, we used $22.1 million for the purchase of
property, plant and equipment, which included the $14.5 million contingent rental payment that was required by
the termination of the synthetic lease and $2.5 million for the purchase of the Seneca distribution center.

Net cash provided by financing activities in fiscal 2004 was $52.4 million, which primarily reflects the net proceeds
from our senior credit facility of $11.8 million, net proceeds from our offering of our 8% % senior subordinated
notes of $146.8 million, proceeds from the exercise of employee stock options of $2.1 million, offset by payments
to redeem our 12 %% senior subordinated notes of $107.3 million, which included a redemption premium, and

purchases of treasury stock of $1.0 million.

Net cash provided by financing activities in fiscal 2003 was $67.5 million, which reflects the net proceeds from our
offering of senior secured notes of $55.6 million, the proceeds from the exercise of employee stock options of §1.3
million, proceeds from the real estate mortgage of $11.6 million on our main administrative office, warehouse and
distribution facility, offset by net repayments under our senior credit facility of $1.2 million, and scheduled
payments on our 12 %% senior subordinated notes of $2.2 million.

The Salant Acquisition

On June 19, 2003, we acquired Salant Corporation, which was our largest licensee. The aggregate merger consideration
paid by us was approximately $90.9 million, comprised of approximately $51.9 million in cash, approximately $35.6
million worth of our newly issued common stock and approximately $3.4 million in merger costs. The cash
portion of the merger consideration was funded from Salant’s available cash reserves and through borrowings under
our senior credit facility.

Salant licensed the Perry Ellis brand from us for men’s sportswear, dress shirts, dress bottoms and accessories and
derived approximately $164.3 million, or 65% of its fiscal 2002 revenues, from the sale of Perry Ellis products. Salant
was our largest licensee of Perry Ellis branded apparel. The remaining $87.7 million of Salant’s fiscal 2002 revenue
were made up of Salant’s owned brands such as Axis® and Tricots St. Raphael®, sales under license agreements for
use of the JNCO® and Ocean Pacific® brands, as well as several private label programs.

Senior Credit Facility

Qur amended senior credit facility with Congress Financial Corporation (Florida), as agent for a syndicate of lenders,
provides us with a revolving credit facility of up to an aggregate amount of $110.0 million. The senior credit faciliry
expires in September 2005 and the indebtedness thereunder ranks ahead of the 8% % senior subordinated notes. On
February 23, 2004, we increased our availability under the senior credit facility to $130.0 million until June 7, 2004.

The following is a description of the terms of the senior credit facility, as amended and does not purport to be complete
and is subject to, and qualified in its entirety by reference to, all the provisions of the senior credit facility.

Certain Covenants. The senior credit facility contains certain covenants, which, among other things, requires us to
maintain a minimum EBITDA if availability falls below a certain minimum. It may restrict our ability and the ability
of our subsidiaries to, among other things, incur additional indebtedness in certain circumstances, redeem or repurchase
capital stock, make certain investments, or sell assets. We are prohibited from paying cash dividends under these
covenants. We believe we are currently in compliance with all of our covenants under the senior credit facility.
We could be materially harmed if we violate any covenants as the lenders under the senior credit facility could
declare all amounts outstanding thereunder, together with accrued interest, to be immediately due and payable.
If we are unable to repay those amounts, the lenders could proceed against our assets. In addition, a violation could




also constitute a cross-default under the indentures and mortgage, resulting in all of our debt obligations becoming
immediately due and payable, which we may not be able to satisfy.

Borrowing Base. Borrowings under the senior credit facility are limited under its terms to a borrowing base calculation,
which generally restricts the outstanding balances to the lesser of either (1} the sum of (a) 85.0% of eligible receivables
plus (b) 85.0% of our eligible factored accounts receivables up to $20.0 million plus (c) the lesser of (i) the inventory
loan limit, or (i1) the lesser of (A) 65.0% of eligible finished goods inventory, or (B) 85.0% of the net recovery
percentage (as defined in the senior credit facility) of eligible inventory, or (2) the loan limit; and in each case minus
(x) 35.0% of the amount of outstanding letters of credit for eligible inventory, (y) the full amount of all other
outstanding letters of credit issued pursuant to the senior credit facility which are not fully secured by cash collateral,
and (z) licensing reserves for which we are the licensee of certain branded products.

Interest. Interest on the principal balance under the senior credit facility accrues, at our option, at either (a) our bank
prime lending rate with adjustments depending upon our quarterly average excess availability plus excess cash or
leverage ratio or (b) 2.00% above the rate quoted by our bank as the average Eurodollar Rate (“Eurodollar™) for
1-, 2-, 3~ and 6-month Eurodollar deposits with one-quarter percentage point adjustments depending upon our
quarterly average excess availability plus excess cash and leverage ratio at the time of borrowing.

Security, As security for the indebtedness under the senior credit facility, we granted the lenders a first priority security
interest in substantially all of our existing and future assets other than our trademark portfolio existing as of March
2002, including, without limitation, accounts receivable, inventory deposit accounts, general intangibles, equipment
and capital stock or membership interests, as the case may be, of certain subsidiaries. Lenders under the senior credit
facility have a second priority security interest in our trademark portfolio as of March 2002 and a first priority lien
on the rest of our trademarks.

Letter of Credit Facilities

As of January 31, 2004, we maintained four U.S. dollar letter of credit facilities totaling $90.0 million and one letter
of credit facility totaling $2.8 million utilized by our Canadian joint venture. Each letter of credit is secured
primarily by the consignment of merchandise in transit under that letter of credit and certain subordinated liens on
our assets, including but not limited to the capital stock or membership interests, as the case may be, of certain of
our subsidiaries. As of January 31, 2004, there was $30.8 million available under existing letter of credit facilities.

Senior Secured Notes

In March of 2002 we issued $57.0 million 9%% senior secured notes due March 15, 2009. The proceeds of the
offering were used to finance the Jantzen acquisition, to reduce the amount of outstanding debt under the previous
senior credit facility and as additional working capital. The proceeds to us were $55.6 million yielding an effective
interest rate of 9.74% after deduction of discounts. We entered into certain derivative hedging transaction described
in “Ttem 7A: Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risks” in order to minimize debt service costs
related to these senior secured notes.

The senior secured notes are secured by a first priority security interest granted in our existing portfolio of trade-
marks and licenses as of the closing date of the Jantzen acquisition, including the trademarks, licenses and all income,
royalties and other payments acquired in the Jantzen acquisition. The senior secured notes are senior secured
obligations of ours and rank pari passu in right of payment with all of our existing and future senior indebtedness.
The senior secured notes are effectively senior to all of our unsecured indebtedness to the extent of the value of
the assets securing the senior secured notes.

Certain Covenants. The indenture governing the senior secured notes contains certain covenants which restrict our
ability and the ability of our subsidiaries to, among other things, incur additional indebtedness in certain circumstances,
redeem or repurchase capital stock, make certain investments, or sell assets. We are prohibited from paying cash
dividends under these covenants. We believe we are currently in compliance with all of the covenants in this indenture.
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We could be materially harmed if we violate any covenants because the indenture’s trustee could declare the
outstanding notes, together with accrued interest, to be immediately due and payable, which we may not be able
to satisfy. In addition, a viclation could also constitute a cross-defanlt under our senior credit facility, letter of credit
facilities, mortgage and the indenture relating to our senior subordinated notes resulting in all of our debt obligations
becoming immediately due and payable, which we may not be able to satisfy.

12 % % Senior Subordinated Notes

We issued $100.0 million 12 %% senior subordinated notes on April 6, 1999, the proceeds of which were used to
acquire the Perry Ellis, John Henry and Manhattan brands and to pay down the outstanding balance of the senior
credit facility at that time. The notes were scheduled to mature on April 1, 2006 and bore interest at the rate of
12 ¥4% payable on April 1 and October 1 in each year. The proceeds to us were $98.9 million yielding an effective
interest rate of 12.39% after deduction of discounts. We entered into certain derivative hedging transaction
described in “Item 7A: Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risks” in order to minimize debt
service costs related to these senior subordinated notes. In November 2002, we repurchased $2.2 million of the
12 ¥4 % senior subordinated notes. On October 15, 2003, we redeemed the $100 million of 12 % % senior subordi-
nated notes that were scheduled to mature on April 1, 2006 for approximately $107.3 million.

8 7 % Senior Subordinated Notes

We issued $150 million 8 % % senior subordinated notes on September 22, 2003, the proceeds of which were used
to redeem the 121 % senior subordinated notes and to pay down the outstanding balance of the senior credit
facility at that time. The notes mature on September 15, 2013 and bear interest at the rate of 87%% payable
semiannually on March 15 and September 15 of each year. The proceeds to us were $146.8 million yielding an
effective interest rate of 9.1%. We entered into certain derivative hedging transactions described in “Item 7A:
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risks” in order to minimize debt service costs related to
these senior subordinated notes.

Certain Covenants. The indenture governing the senior subordinated notes contains certain covenants which restrict
our ability and the ability of our subsidiaries to, among other things, incur additional indebtedness in certain
circumstances, redeem or repurchase capital stock, make certain investments, or sell assets. We believe we are
currently in compliance with all of the covenants in this indenture. We are prohibited from paying cash dividends
under these covenants. We could be materially harmed if we violate any covenants because the indenture’s trustee
could declare the outstanding notes, together with accrued interest, to be immediately due and payable, which we
may not be able to satisfy. In addition, a violation could also constitute a cross-default under the senior credit facility,
the letter of credit facilities, mortgage and the indenture relating to our senior secured notes resulting in all of our
debt obligations becoming immediately due and payable, which we may not be able to satisfy.

Real Estate Financing

We occupied our main administrative office, warehouse and distribution facility under a synthetic operating lease
for a 230,000 square foot facility in Miami, Florida. The lease, as amended, expired on June 30, 2002, and required
a final payment at termination of $14.5 million.

On June 30, 2002, we made the required payment under the synthetic operating lease and partially refinanced the
acquisition of the facility with an $11.6 million mortgage. The mortgage contains certain covenants. We believe we
are currently in compliance with all of our covenants under the mortgage. We could be materially harmed if we
violate any covenants because the lender under the mortgage could declare all amounts outstanding thereunder to
be immediatety due and payable, which we may not be able to satisty. In addition, a violation could constitute a cross-
default under our senior credit facility, the letter of credit facilities and indentures relating to our senior secured notes
and senjor subordinated notes resulting in all our of debt obligations becoming immediately due and payable.




On September 13, 2002, we purchased a distribution center in Seneca, South Carolina for $2.5 million in cash.
We had secured the option to purchase the facility as part of the Jantzen acquisition.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The following tables illustrate our contractual obligations and commercial commitments as of January 31, 2004 and
include the effects of the transactions and amendmensts discussed above that occurred during the year ended January
31, 2004.

Payments Due by Period

Less than

Contractual Obligations Total 1 year 1-3 years 4-5 years After 5 years
Senior subordinated notes $ 150,000,000 § — 8 — § — $ 150,000,000
Senior secured notes $ 57,000,000 $ — § — $ — $ 57,000,000
Senior credit facility $ 34,714,584 § 34,714,584

Real estate mortgage § 11,600,000 $ 32977 § 285,985 § 329,613 § 10,951,426
Ope‘rating leases $ 53,954,499 $ 7,725,750 § 14,763,884 § 11,834,183 § 19,630,682
Total contractual obligations $ 307,269,083 § 7,758,727 $§ 49,764,453 § 12,163,796 $ 237,582,108

Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period

Less than
Other Commercial Commitments Total 1 year 1-3 years 4-5 years After 5 years
Letters of credit $ 52,903,719 § 52,903,719 § — — 8 —
Stand by letters of credit § 9,073,000 § — $ — $ 9,073,000
Total commercial commitments $ 61,976,719 $ 52,903,719 § — 8 — 9,073,000
Total contractual obligations and
other commercial commitments $ 369,245,802 $ 60,662,446 § 49,764,453 $ 12,163,796 $ 246,655,108

Management believes that the combination of borrowing availability under the amended senior credit facility, letter
of credit facilities, and funds anticipated to be generated from operating activities, will be sufficient to meet our
operating and capital needs in the foreseeable future.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We are not a party to any “off-balance sheet arrangements”, as defined by applicable SEC rules.

Derivatives Financial Instruments

Derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swap contracts and foreign exchange contracts, are recognized
in the financial statements and measured at fair value regardless of the purpose or intent for holding them. Changes
in the fair value of derivative financial instruments are either recognized in income or shareholders’ equity (as a
component of comprehensive income), depending on whether the derivative is being used to hedge changes in fair
value or cash flows. See “Item 7A — Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risks” for further
discussion about derivative financial instruments.

Effects of Inflation and Foreign Currency Fluctuations

We do not believe that inflation or foreign currency fluctuations significantly affected our financial position and
results of operations as of and for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2004.
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Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The market risk inherent in the Company’s financial statements represents the potential changes in the fair value,
earnings or cash flows arising from changes in interest rates. The Company manages this exposure through regular
operating and financing activities and, when deemed appropriate, through the use of derivative financial instruments.
The Company’s policy allows the use of derivative financial instruments for identifiable market risk exposure,
including interest rate. The Company does not enter into derivative financial contracts for trading or other speculative

purposes except for as discussed below.

In August 2001, the Company entered into an interest rate swap, option and interest rate cap agreements (the “§40
million Swap Agreement”) for an aggregate notional amount of $40.0 million in order to minimize its debt servicing
costs associated with its $100.0 million of 12 % % senior subordinated notes due April 1, 2006.

The fair value of the $40 million Swap Agreement recorded on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet was
$1.9 million as of January 31, 2003. In conjunction with the $40 million Swap Agreement, the Company also
entered into an interest rate cap and basis swap that did not qualify for hedge accounting treatment under the SFAS
No. 133, resulting in $0.2 million increase of recorded interest expense on the Consolidated Statement of Income
for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2004 and $0.35 million increase of recorded interest expense for the year ended
January 31, 2003.

In August 2003, the Company terminated the $40 million Swap Agreement and received approximately $1.9

million, which is included as a component of interest income.

In conjunction with the March 2002 offering of $57.0 million of 9 %% senior secured notes due March 15, 2009,
the Company entered into interest rate swap and option agreements (the “$57 million Swap Agreement”) for an
aggregate notional amount of $57.0 million in order to minimize the debt servicing costs associated with the 9%
senior secured notes. The §57 million Swap Agreement is scheduled to terminate on March 15, 2009. Under the
$57 million Swap Agreement, the Company is entitled to receive semi-annual interest payments on September 15
and March 15 at a fixed rate of 9%2% and is obligated to make semi-annual interest payments on September 15 and
March 15 at a floating rate based on the three-month LIBOR rate plus 369 basis points for the period from March
22,2002 through March 15, 2009.The $57 million Swap Agreement has optional call provisions with trigger dates
of March 15, 2005, March 15, 2006 and March 15, 2007, which contain premium requirements in the event the

call is exercised.

The $57 million Swap Agreement is a fair value hedge as it has been designated against the 9% senior secured
notes carrying a fixed rate of interest and converts such notes to variable rate debt. The interest rate swap contracts
are reflected at fair value in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet with a corresponding offset to the designated
item. The fair value of the $57 million Swap Agreement recorded on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet
was $5.0 million and $4.4 million as of January 31, 2003 and 2004, respectively.

In December 2002, the Company entered into an interest rate floor agreement (the “$57 million Floor
Agreement”) for an aggregate notional amount of $57.0 million associated with the 9 ¥2% senior secured notes. The
$57 million Floor Agreement is scheduled to terminate on March 15, 2005. Under the $57 million Floor
Agreement, the Company must pay the difference between the three-month LIBOR rate and 1.50% for all rate
resets in which the LIBOR is below 1.50%. When the LIBOR is equal to or greater than 1.50%, the Company

makes no payments under the Floor.

The $57 million Floor Agreement did not qualify for hedge accounting treatment under SFAS No. 133, resulting
in $0.2 million and $0.1 million increase of recorded interest expense on the Consolidated Statement of Income
for the fiscal years ended January 31,2003 and 2004, respectively. The fair value of the $57 million Floor Agreement
recorded on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet was ($0.2) and (80.1) million as of January 31, 2003 and
2004, respectively.




In April 2003, the Company entered into an interest rate cap agreement (the “$57 million Cap Agreement”) for an
aggregate notional amount of $57.0 million associated with the senior secured notes. The $57 million Cap
Agreement js scheduled to terminate on March 15, 2009. The 857 million Cap Agreement caps the interest rate on
the senior secured notes at 10%.

The $57 million Cap Agreement did not qualify for hedge accounting treatment, resulting in $0.3 million increase
of recorded interest expense on the consolidated statement of income for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2004.
The fair value of the 857 million Cap Agreement recorded on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet was ($0.3)
million as of January 31, 2004.

In conjunction with the Company’s September 2003 offering of $§150.0 million of 8 % % senior subordinated notes
due September 15, 2013, the Company entered into interest rate swap agreements (the “$150 million Swap
Agreement”) for an aggregate notional amount of $150.0 million in order to minimize the debt servicing costs
associated with the new senior subordinated notes. The $150 million Swap Agreement is scheduled to terminate on
September 15, 2013. Under the $150 million Swap Agreement, the Company is entitled to receive semi-annual
interest payments on September 15 and March 15 at a fixed rate of 8 %% and is obligated to make semi-annual
interest payments on September 15 and March 15 at a floating rate based on the six-month LIBOR rate plus 394
basis points for the period from September 22, 2003 through September 15, 2013. The §$150 million Swap
Agreement has optional call provisions with trigger dates of September 15, 2008, September 15, 2009, September
15,2010 and September 15, 2011, which contain premijum requirements in the event the call is exercised.

The $150 million Swap Agreement is a fair value hedge as it has been designated against the 8 7% senior subordinated
notes carrying a fixed rate of interest and converts such notes to variable rate debt. The interest rate swap contracts
are reflected at fair value in our consolidated balance sheet with a corresponding offset to the designated item.
The fair value of the $130 million Swap Agreement recorded on the consolidated balance sheet was $0.5 million
as of January 31, 2004.

The table below provides information about the Company’s derivative financial instruments and other financial
instruments that are sensitive to changes in interest rates, including interest rate swaps and debt obligations
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Expected Maturity Date
Fiscal Years ended January 31,
{In Millions)

Fair
Value At
2004 2005 2006 2007 Thereafter Total 1.31.04
Long-term Liabilities:
Senior Subordinated
Notes $ 0.0 $ 0.0 $ 00 $ 0.0 $ 150.0 $ 150.0 $ 1598
Fixed Interest Rate 8.88% 8.88% 8.88% 8.88% 8.88% 8.88%
Senior Secured Notes $ 0.0 $ 0.0 8§ 00 $ 00 $ 570 $ 57.0 $ 616
Fixed Interest Rate 9.50% 9.50% 9.50% 9.50% 9.50% 9.50%
Real Estate Mortgage $ 0.0 $ 0.1 $ 041 $ 02 $ 112 $ 116 $ 116
Fixed Interest Rate 7.12% 7.12% 7.12% 7.12% 7.12% 7.12%
Senior Credit Facility $ 347 N/A N/A N/A N/A  § 347 $ 347
Average Variable
Interest Rate 3.75%© N/A N/A N/A N/A 3.75%
Interest Rate Derivatives:
$150 million 2003
Swap Agreement $ 0.0 $ 0.0 $ 0.0 $ 00 $ 150.0 $ 150.0 $ 0.5™
Average Pay Rate 5.15%% 5.15% 5.15% 5.15% 5.15%
Average Receive Rate 8.88% 8.88% 8.88% 8.88% 8.88%

$57 million :
2002 Swap Agreement $ 0.0 $ 0.0 $ 00 $§ 00 $ 570 $ 570 $ 44@
Average Pay Rate 4.32%® 4.832% 4.82% 4.82% 4.82%
Average Receive Rate  ~ 9.50% 9.50% 9.50% - 9.50% 9.50%

(A)  $150 million 2003 swap variable rate is based on the 6-month LIBOR rate plus 394 basis points through $/15/13 Average variable rates for all periods
are based on the rates in effect on January 31, 2004,

(B)  $57 million 2002 swap variable rate is based on 3-month LIBOR rate plus 369 basis points through 3/15/09. The interest rate floor limits the pay rate
on the swap to 1.50% and expires at the same time as the underlying swap. The interest rate cap limits the pay rate on the swap to 10.00% and expires
at the same time as the underlying swap. Average variable rates for all periods are based on the rates in effect on January 31, 2004

(C)  Senior credit facility has a variable rate of interest of either 1) the published prime lending rate or 2) Eurodollar rate with adjustments of both rates
based on meeting certain financial conditions.

(D)  Fair market value as of January 31, 2004 does not include the fair value of the interest rate cap or floor.

Item 8.  Financial Statements And Supplementary Data
See pages F-1 through F-40 appearing at the end of this report.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and
Financial Disclosure

None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this Annual Report, an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation
of our disclosure controls and procedures was carried out by us under the supervision and with the participation of
our management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer. Based on that evaluation, the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures have
been designed and are being operated in a manner that provides reasonable assurance that the information required
to be disclosed by us in reports filed under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, is recorded, processed,




summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. A system of controls, no
matter how well designed and operated, cannot provide absolute assurance that the objectives of the controls system
are met, and no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud,
if any, within a company have been detected. '

No changes in our internal controls over financial reporting occurred during the quarter ended January 31, 2004 that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal controls over financial reporting.

PART Il

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Information regarding our directors and executive officers required by this item is included in our Proxy Statement
relating to our 2004 Annual Meeting under the captions “Election of Directors” and “Management” and is incor-
porated herein by reference.

Information regarding our audit committee financial expert required by this item is included in our Proxy
Statement relating to our 2004 Annual Meeting under the caption “Meetings and Committees of the Board of
Directors” and is incorporated herein by reference.

Information regarding compliance with Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 is included in our 2004
Proxy Statement relating to our 2004 Annual Meeting under the caption “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership
Reporting Compliance” and is incorporated herein by reference.

We have adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to all of our directors, officers, and employees. The Code of Ethics
is posted on our website at www.pery.com, Amendments to, and waivers granted under, our Code of Ethics, if any,
will be posted to our website as well.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

Information required by this item is included in our 2004 Proxy Statement under the captions “Executive
Compensation”, “Summary Compensation Table”, “Option Grants in Last Fiscal year”, “Stock Option Held at End
of Fiscal 20037, “Compensation of Directors”, “Employment Agreements”, and “Compensation Committee
Interlocks and Insider Participation” and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

Information required by this item is included in our 2004 Proxy Statement under the caption “Security Ownership
of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” and “Equity Compensation Plan Information for Fiscal 2004 and
1s incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Information required by this item is included in our 2004 Proxy Statement under the captions “Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions” and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Information required by this item is included in our 2004 Proxy Statement under the caption “Principal Accountant
Fees and Services” and is incorporated herein by reference.
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Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K

(a) Documents filed as part of this report

(1) Consolidated Financial Statements. .
The following Consolidated Financial Statements of Perry Ellis International, Inc. and subsidiaries are
included in Part II, Item 8:

Page

Independent Auditors’ Report F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of January 31, 2004 and 2003 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Income for each of the three years

in the period ended January 31, 2004 F-4
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity

for each of the three years in the period ended January 31, 2004 F-5
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for each of the three years

in the period ended January 31, 2004 F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-7

(2) Consolidated Financial Statement Schedule
All schedules required by applicable Securities and Exchange Commission regulations are either not
required under the related instructions, are inapplicable or the required information has been included in
the Consolidated Financial Statements and therefore such schedules have been omitted.

(3) Exhibits




Exhibit Number

Description of Exhibit

31
3.2
4.1
4.2

4.5
4.6
4.8

4.9
4,10

4.11
10.3

10.9
10.10
10.17

10.20
10.21
10.22
10.24

10.25

10.34
10.36
10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40
10.41

10.42
10.43
10.44
10.45
10.57
10.58
10.59
10.60
10.61
211

Registrant’s Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation ®

Registrant’s Amended and Restated Bylaws

Form of Common Stock Certificate "

Indenture dated April 6, 1999 between the Registrant and State Street Bank and Trust
Company (“State Street”), as amended @

Specimen Forms of 12%:% Senior Subordinated Notes Due April 1, 2006 ®

Indenture dated March 22, 2002 berween the Registrant and State Street, as amended®
Pledge and Security Agreement dated March 22, 2002 by and among the Registrant, Jantzen
Apparel Corp. and State Street®

Specimen Forms of 9%:% Senior Secured Notes Due March 15, 2009 ¢

Indenture dated September 22, 2003 between the Registrant and U.S. Bank Trust National
Association (“U.S. Bank”)!"”

Specimen Forms of 87%% Senior Subordinated Notes Due September 15,2013 09

Form of Indemnification Agreement between the Registrant and each of the Registrant’s
Directors and Officers ™

1993 Stock Option Plan @

Directors Stock Option Plan®

Amendment to Business Lease between George Feldenkreis and the Registrant relating to
office facilities®

- Profit Sharing Plan @®

Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and George Feldenkreis @@
Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Oscar Feldenkreis ®®
Lease Agreement [Land] dated as of August 28, 1997 between SUP Joint Venture, as Lessor and
the Registrant, as Lessee ®

Lease Agreement {Building] dated as of August 28, 1997 between SUP Joint Venture, as Lessor
and the Registrant, as Lessee®

Employment agreement berween Allan Zwerner and the Registrant @®

Incentive Stock Option Plan @@

Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of March 15, 2002 by and among the Registrant, Jantzen,
Inc. and VF Canada, Inc. ®

Fifth Amendment dated March 14, 2002 to Amended and Restated Loan and Security
Agreement dated March 26, 1999 @

Fourth Amendment to Master Agreement dated March 14, 2002, by and among the
Registrant, SUP Joint Venture, SunTrust Bank and Israeli Discount Bank @

Loan and Security Agreement dated as of October 1, 2002 (the “Senior Credit Facility™) *?
Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated February 3, 2003, by and among the Registrant, Connor
Acquisition Corp. and Salant®? '

Letter Agreement, dated February 3, 2003, among Michael J. Setola, Salant and the Registrant ©
Letter Agreement, dated February 3, 2003, among Awadhesh K. Sinha, Salant and the Registrant®
2002 Stock Option Plan @

Employment agreement between Alberto de Cardenas and the Registrant @

Amendment No. 1 to the Senior Credit Facility *¥

Amendment No. 2 to the Senior Credit Facility

Amendment No. 3 to the Senior Credit Facility ©?

Amendment No. 4 to the Senior Credit Facility @

Employment agreement between Timothy B. Page and the Registrant @47

Subsidiaries of the Registrant ”
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231

31.1

31.2

321

32.2

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent public accountants regarding financial statements
of the Registrant 7

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a),
promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended ”

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and Rule 15d-14(a),
promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended *”

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350, as adopted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20027

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350, as adopted pursuant
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 20027

o i

0~
==L

O

(10)
(1

(12)
(13

(14)
(15)

(16)
an

(@)

Previously filed as an Exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 33-60750) and incorporated
herein by reference.

Management Contract or Compensation Plan.

Previously filed as an Exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 33-96304) and incorporated
herein by reference.

Previously filed as an Exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 31, 1998 and incor-
porated herein by reference.

Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for its 1998 Annual Meeting and incorporated herein by reference.

Previously filed as an Exhibic to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No. 33-78427) and incorporated herein by reference.
Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for its 2000 Annual Meeting and incorporated herein by reference.

Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 22, 2002, as amended, and incorporated herein by reference.
Previously filed as an. Exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the vear ended January 31, 2002 and incorporated
herein by reference.

Previously filed as an Annex to the Registrant’s Proxy Statement for its 2002 Annual Meeting and incorporated herein by reference.

Previously filed as an Exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended October 31,
2002, as amended and incorporated herein by reference.

Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 5, 2003 as amended, and incorporated herein by reference.
Previously filed as an Exhibit of the same number to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended January 31, 2003 and incor-
porated herein by reference.

Previously filed as an Exhibit to Salant Corporation’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 29, 2001 and incorporated
herein by reference.

Previously filed as an Exhibit to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 31,2003 and incorporated herein by reference.
Previously filed as filed as an Exhibit to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form S-4 (File No.33-110616) and incorporated herein by reference.
Filed herewith.

Reports on Form 8-K
The Company filed a Current Report on Form 8-K, with respect to Items 7 and 12, dated November 19,
2003, during the three months ended January 31, 2004.

[tem 601 Exhibits
The exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K are set forth in (a)(3) above.

Financial Staternent Schedules
The financial statement schedules required by Regulation S-K are set forth in (2)(2) above.




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has

duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Dated: April 15, 2004

PERRY ELLIS INTERNATIONAL, INC.

By: /S/ George Feldenkreis

George Feldenkreis
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the

following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Name and Signature
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Date

/S/

George Feldenkreis

/S/

George Feldenkreis

Oscar Feldenkreis
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Oscar Feldenkreis
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Timothy B. Page

Anthony J. Macaione

/S/

Anthony J. Macaione

Marc Balmuth

/S/

Marc Balmuth

Ronald L. Buch

/S/

Ronald L. Buch

Gary Dix

/S/

Gary Dix

Salomon Hanono

Salomon Hanono

/S/ Joseph P. Lacher

/S/

Joseph P. Lacher

Leonard Miller

Leonard Miller

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer  April 15, 2004

(Principal Executive Officer)

President, Chief Operating Officer and Director April 15,2004

Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)  April 15,2004

Senior Vice President / Controller

(Principal Accounting Officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

April 15, 2004

April 15,2004

April 15, 2004

April 15, 2004

April 15,2004

April 15,2004

April 15, 2004
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Perry Ellis International, Inc.:

‘We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Perry Ellis International, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”’)
as of January 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders’
equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended January 31, 2004. These consolidated
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Company as of January 31, 2004 and 2003, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each
of the three years in the period ended January 31, 2004 in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, in the year ended January 31, 2003, the
Company changed its method of accounting for intangible assets to conform to Statement of Financial
Accounting Standard No. 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.”

/S/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Certified Public Accountants
Miami, Florida
April 16, 2004
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Perry Ellis International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

As of January 31, 2003 2004
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,683,177 |$ 1,011,220
Accounts receivable, net 79,489,739 115,677,930
Inventories, net 51,306,474 110,909,571
Deferred income taxes 2,957,765 9,621,411
Prepaid income taxes 3,361,650 5,002,043
Qther current assets 4,104,767 6,417,675
Total current assets 145,903,572 248,639,850
Property and equipment, net 31,048,876 39,092,579
Intangible assets, net 142,186,062 152,265,790
Deferred income tax — 28,590,552
Other 12,098,835 11,811,384
TOTAL $ 331,237,345 | § 480,400,155
LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 12,820,168 |$ 31,644,178
Accrued expenses 5,058,748 16,350,105
Accrued interest pavable 4,674,929 3,740,488
Unearned revenues 1,994,554 983,984
Other current liabilities 1,457,422 2,990,909
Total current liabilities 26,005,821 55,709,664
Senior subordinated notes payable 99,180,580 150,454,235
Senior secured notes payable 60,729,796 60,389,322
Senior credit facility 22,922,287 34,714,584
Real estate mortgage 11,600,000 11,600,000
Deferred pension obligation — 15,733,784
Deferred income tax 10,694,595 —
Total long-term liabilities 205,127,258 272,891,925
Total liabilities 231,133,079 | 328,601,589
Minority Interest 702,480 916,761
Stockholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock $.01 par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized,;
no shares issued or outstanding — —
Common stock $.01 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized;
6,425,641 shares issued and outstanding as of January, 31 2003 and
8,470,700 shares issued and 8,435,013 shares outstanding as of January 31, 2004 64,257 84,708
Additional paid-in-capital 27,198,094 66,073,881
Reetained earnings 72,182,529 85,334,665
Accumulated other comprehensive income(loss) (43,094) 321,844
Total 99,401,786 151,815,098
Treasury Stock at cost; 35,687 shares as of January 31, 2004 — (933,293)
Total stockholders’ equity 99,401,786 150,881,805
TOTAL $ 331,237,345 | $ 480,400,155

See notes to consclidated financial statements




Perry Ellis International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income

For the Years Ended January 31,

2002

2003

2004

Revenues
Net sales
Royalty income
Total revenues
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Operating expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Depreciation and amortization
Total operating expenses
Operating income
Costs on early extingnishment of debt
Interest expense
Income before minority interest and income taxes
Minority interest
Income tax provision

Net income

Net income per share:
Basic
Diluted
Weighted average number of shares outstanding:

Basic
Diluted

See notes to consolidated financial statements

$ 251,310,159

8 277,027,795

$ 484,197,918

26,680,987 28,812,955 | 21,717,751
277,991,146 305,840,750 | 505,915,669
191,601,211 205,000,956 | 336,421,881
86,389,935 100,839,794 | 169,493,788
55,446,854 63,850,180 | 119,658,924
6,662,158 3,582,850 5,043,003
62,109,012 67,433,030 | 124,701,927
24,280,923 33,406,764 | 44,791,861
— — 7,317,000
13,549,746 15,795,347 | 16,413,531
10,731,177 17,611,417 | 21,061,330
83,240 88,809 214,281
4,039,995 6,726,323 7,694,913

. % 6607942 § 10,796.285 |$ 13,152,136
$ 1.01 % 1.69 |8 1.71
3 1.01 § 1.65 |$ 1.59
6,516,807 6,387,459 7,683,442
6,534,749 6,550,126 8,296,153
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Perry Ellis International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity
For Each of the Three Years Ended January 31

Accumulated
Other
Additional Compre- Compre-
Common Stock Paid-In Treasury hensive hensive Retained
Shares Amount Capital Stock Income Income Earnings Total
BALANCE,
JANUARY 31, 2001 6,579,374 8§ 67,393 § 29,063,407 $§ (1,029,919 — — § 54,778,302 § 82,879,183
Exercise of stock options 2,666 27 15,395 — — — — 15,422
Net income — — — —_ — § 6,607,942 6,607,942 6,607,942
Foreign currency
translation adjustment — — — — 8§ (121,753) (121,753) — (121,753)
Comprehensive income $ 6,486,189
Purchase of treasury stock (296,100) — — (2,177,256) — — (2,177,256)
Retirement of treasury szock — (4,046) (2,792,762 2,796,808 — . -— —
BALANCE,
JANUARY 31, 2002 6,285,940 § 63,374 $ 26,286,040 $  (410,367) §  (121,753) § 61,386,244 § 87,203,538
Exercise of stock options 139,701 1,397 1,321,907 — — — 1,323,304
Net income — — — — — 10,796,285 10,796,285
10,796,285
Foreign currency
transtation adjustment — — — — 78,659 78,659 — 78,659
Comprehensive income § 10,874,944
Retirement of treasury stock — (514) (409,853) 410,367 — — —
BALANCE,
JANUARY 31, 2003 6,425,641 § 64,257 $ 27,198,094 § o 8 (43,094) -§ 72,182,529 $ 99,401,786
Exercise of stock options 211,271 2,113 2,051,987 — — — 2,054,100
Net income — — — — — 13,152,136 13,152,136 13,152,136
Foreign currency
cranslation adjustment — — — — 364,938 364,938 — 364938
Comprehensive income $ 13,517,074
Tax benefit for exercise of :
non-qualified stock options — — 1,287,427 — — — 1,287,427
Issuance of stock .
for acquisition 1,833,788 18,338 35,536,373 — — 35,534,711
Purchase of treasury stock  (35,687) - (933,293) — — (533,293)
BALANCE,
JANUARY 31, 2004 8,435,013 § 84,708 $ 66,073,881 §  (933,293) § 321,844 $ 85,334,665 $150,881,805

See notes to consolidated financial statements.




Penry Ellis International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the Years Ended January 31 2002 2003 2004
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 6,607,942 § 10,796,285 [$ 13,152,136
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
(used in) provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 6,190,801 2,783,205 3,954,495
Provision for bad debts 1,575,000 280,620 856,697
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options — — 1,287,427
Amortization of debt issue costs 614,347 918,628 1,165,310
Amortization of bond discount 164,000 348,741 324,540
Deferred income taxes 1,386,240 3,371,314 7,604,601
Costs on early extinguishment of debt — —_ 7,317,000
Minority interest 83,240 88,809 214,281
Other (64,250) 78,659 244,845
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(net of effects of acquisition transaction):
Accounts receivable, net 7,048,510 (29,400,114)| (23,284,888)
Inventories, net (1,528,619) (3,706,283)| (14,569,097)
Other current assets and prepaid income taxes 586,446 (5,692,025) (2,570,301)
Other assets (701,044) (2,046,398) 2,912,290
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (1,160,561) 6,695,881 (9,510,854)
Income taxes payable 1,385,210 (1,381,551) —
Accrued interest payable (604,768) 865,932 (934,441)
Other current liabilities and unearned revenues 792,354 (797,536) 522,917
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities 22,374 848 (16,795,835)} (11,313,042)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipment : (2,921,930) (22,076,974) (8,673,206)
Purchase of intangible assets {98,928) (187,701) (1,760,723)
Payment for acquired businesses, net of cash acquired — (25,084,374)| (34,453,289)
Net cash used in investing activities: (3,020,858) (47,349,049)| (44,887,218)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Borrowings (payments) from senior credit facilicy (16,157,032) 1,166,193 11,792,297
Payments on senior subordinated notes —_ (2,199,492)] (107,317,000)
Proceeds from senior subordinated notes — — 146,812,500
Proceeds from senior secured notes — 55,589,250 —
Proceeds from real estate mortgage — 11,600,000 —
Purchase of treasury stock (2,177,256) — (933,293)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 15,421 1,323,303 2,054,100
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities: (18,318,867) 67,479,254 52,408,604
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (75,886) 44,829 119,699
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 959,237 3,379,199 (3,671,957)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OFYEAR 344,741 1,303,978 4,683,177
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD $ 1,303,978 § 4,683,177 |$ 1,011,220
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid during the period for:
Interest $ 14,058,640 § 15,762,844 [$ 16,439,092
Income taxes $ 1,608,192 $ 7,470,063 |§ 551,976
NON-CASH FINANCING AND INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Change in fair value of mark-to-market interest rate swap/option $ (245,152) § 7,100,362 |$ (1,987,359)
Issuance of stock for acquisition — § — (8 35,554,711

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Perry Ellis International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
For Each of the Three Years in the Period Ended January 31, 2004

1. General

The Company is a leading licensor, designer and marketer of a broad line of high quality men’s sportswear, including
sport and dress shirts, golf sportswear, sweaters and casual dress pants and shorts, which sells to all levels of retail
distribution. The Company licenses its trademark portfolio domestically and internationally for apparel and other
products that it does not sell including dress sportswear, outerwear, fragrances and accessories. The Company has
built a broad portfolio of brands through selective acquisitions and the establishment of its own brands over its
35-year operating history. The Company’s distribution channels include regional, national and international upscale
department stores, mid-tier department stores, chain stores, mass merchants, specialty stores ‘and corporate wear
distributors as well as various retail sales stores throughout the United States, Puerto Rico and Canada.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
The following is a summary of the Company’s significant accounting policies:

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Perry Ellis International, Inc. and its wholly-owned
and controlled subsidiaries. All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation.
The ownership interest in consolidated subsidiaries of non-controlling shareholders is reflected as minority interest.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts in the consolidated
financial statements and the accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of accounts receivable, accrued payable, accrued interest payable and accounts payable
approximates fair value due to their short-term nature. The carrying amount of the senior credit facility approximates
fair value due to the relatively frequent resets of its floating interest rate. As of January 31, 2004, the fair value of the
87%% senior subordinated notes and the 9% senior secured notes was approximately $159.8 million and $61.6
million, respectively, based on quoted market prices. See footnote 12 and 21 for disclosure related to fair value of

other financial instruments.

INVENTORIES
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (moving average cost) or market. Cost principally consists of the purchase

price, labor, customs, duties, freight, insurance and commissions to buying agents.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. Amortization of leasehold improvements is computed using the straight-line method
over the shorter of the lease term or estimated useful lives of the improvements. The useful lives are as follows:

Asset Class Avg. Useful Lives in Years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-7

Vehicles 7

Leasehold Improvements 11

Buildings 39




INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets primarily represent costs incurred in connection with the acquisition of brand names and license
rights. In fiscal 2002 intangibles were amortized over their estimated useful lives. Upon adoption of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,” those assets were identified as
intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and accordingly are no longer being amortized. The Company assesses the
carrying value of intangible assets on an annual basis using estimated fair values.

DEFERRED DEBT ISSUE COSTS

Costs incurred in connection with financing have been capitalized and are being amortized on a straight-line basis,
which approximates the interest method, over the term of the related debt instrument. Unamortized debt issue costs
are included in other assets in the consolidated balance sheet.

LONG-LIVED ASSETS

Management reviews long-lived assets, primarily fixed assets, for possible impairment whenever events or circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. If there is an indication of impairment,
management prepares an estimate of future cash flows (undiscounted and without interest charges) expected to result
from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition. If these cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the
asset, an impairment loss is recognized to reduce the asset to its estimated fair value. Preparation of estimated expected
future cash flows is inherently subjective and is based on management’s best estimate of assumptions concerning
future conditions. There has not been any material impairment to long-lived assets in 2002, 2003 or 2004.

RETIREMENT-RELATED BENEFITS _

The Company accounts for its defined benefit pension plan and its nonpension post retirement benefit plans using
actuarial models required by SFAS No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions”, and SFAS 106, “Employers’ Accounting
for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions”, respectively. These models use an attribution approach that generally
spreads the individual events over the service lives of the employees in the plan. The principle underlying the required
attribution approach is that employees render service over their service lives on a relatively smooth basis and therefore,
the income statement effects of pensions or nonpension postretirement benefit plans are earned in, and should follow,
the same pattern.

The principal components of the net periodic pension calculations are the expected long-term rate of return on
plan assets, discount rate and the rate of compensation increases. The Company uses long-term historical actual
return information, the mix of investments that comprise plan assets, and future estimates of long-term investment
returns by reference to external sources to develop its expected return on plan assets. The discount rate assumptions
used for pension and nonpension postretirement benefit plan accounting reflects the rates available on high-quality
fixed income debt instruments at the Company’s fiscal year end. The rate of compensation increase is another
significant assumption used in the actuarial model for pension accounting and is determined by the Company based
upon its long-term plans for such increases.

ADVERTISING AND RELATED COSTS

The Company’s accounting policy relating to advertising and related costs is to expense these costs in the period
incurred. Advertising and related costs were $7.7 million, $6.5 million and $15.6 million for the years ended January
31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively, and are included in selling, general and administrative expenses.

COST OF SALES

Cost of sales includes costs to acquire and produce inventory for sale. These costs include costs of purchased products,
labor, inbound freight, custom duties, buying commissions, cargo insurance, customs inspection, licensed product royalty
expenses, provisions for inventory shrinkage and obsolescence and product sourcing expenses.

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Selling expenses include costs incurred in the selling of merchandise. General and administrative expenses include
costs incurred in the administration or general operations of the business. Selling, general and administrative expenses
include employee and related costs, advertising, professional fees, warehouse costs, and other related selling costs.
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REVENUE RECOGNITION

Sales are recognized and title transfers upon shipment. Trade allowances and a provision for estimated returns and
other allowances are recorded at the time sales are made. Royalty income is recognized when earned on the basis
of the terms specified in the underlying contractual agreements. A lability for unearned revenue royalty income is
recognized when licensees pay contractual obligations before being earned. The Company believes that its revenue
recognition policies conform to Staft Accounting Bulletin No. 101, Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements as
amended. The Company operates predominantly in North America, with over 90% of its sales in the domestic market.
Three customers accounted for approximately 12%, 11% and 11% of net sales for fiscal year 2002, one
customer accounted for approximately 11% for fiscal 2003 and one customer accounted for approximately 10% of
net sales for fiscal 2004. The Company does not believe that these concentrations of sales and credit risk represent
a material risk of loss with respect to its financial position as of January 31, 2004.

ADVERTISING REIMBURSEMENTS

The majority of Perry Ellis’ license agreements require licensees to pay Perry Ellis an advertising reimbursement,
based on a percentage of the licensee net sales. The Company records earned advertising reimbursements received
from its licensees as a reduction of the related advertising costs in selling, general and administrative expenses. For
the fiscal years 2002, 2003 and 2004, the Company has reduced selling, general and administrative expenses by $5.6
million, $7.4 million and $4.9 million of licensee reimbursements, respectively. Unearned advertising reimbursements
result when a licensee pays required reimbursements prior to the Company incurring the advertising expense.
A current liability is recorded for these unearned advertising reimbursements.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

For the Company’ international operations, local currencies are generally considered their functional currencies.
The Company translates assets and liabilities to their U.S. dollar equivalents at rates in effect at the balance sheet date
and revenue and expenses are translated at average monthly exchange rates. Translation adjustments resulting from
this’process are recorded in stockholders’ equity as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss).

INCOME TAXES

Deferred income taxes result primarily from timing differences in the recognition of expenses for tax and financial
reporting purposes and are accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 109, Acwounting for Income Taxes, which
requires the liability method of computing deferred income taxes. Under the liability method, deferred taxes are
adjusted for tax rate changes as they occur.

NET INCOME PER SHARE

Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average shares of outstanding
common stock. The calculation of diluted net income per share is similar to basic earnings per share except that the
denominator includes potentially dilutive common stock. The potentially dilutive common stock included in the
Company’s computation of diluted net income per share includes the effects of stock options and warrants as determined

using the treasury stock method.




The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted income per share.

2002 2003 2004
Numerator:
Net income 8 6,607,942 § 10,796,285 {$ 13,152,136
Denominator: '
Basic income per share - weighted average shares 6,516,807 6,387,459 7,683,442
Dilutive effect: stock options 17,942 162,667 612,711
Diluted income per share - weighted average shares 6,534,749 6,550,126 8,296,153
Basic income per share $ 1.01 § 1.69 ($ 1.71
Diluted income per share $ 1.01 § 16518 1.59
Antidilutive effect: stock options® 522,076 128,465 185

(1)  Represents weighted average stock options to purchase shares of common stock that were not included in compurting diluted earnings per share
because their effects were antidilutive for the respective periods.

ACCOUNTING FOR STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company has chosen to account for stock-based compensation to employees and non-employee members of
the Board using the intrinsic value method prescribed by Accounting Principles Board Opinion (*APB”) No. 25,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related interpretations. As required by SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-
Based Compensation, the Company has presented certain pro forma and other disclosures related to stock-based
compensation plans.

SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation - Transition and Disclosure” requires disclosure in both interim
and annual financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the
effect of the method used on reported results as follows: '

2002 2003 2004

Net income as reported $ 6,607,942 % 10,796,285 |$ 13,152,136
Add : Total stock based employee compensation

expense included in reported net income, net — — —
Deduct : Total stock based employee

compensation expense notincluded in reported net income, net 422,464 251,953 460,355
Pro forma net income $ 6,185,478 § 10,544,332 |§ 12,691,781
Pro forma net income per share:
Basic $ 095 3§ 1.65 |8 1.65
Diluted $ 0.95 8 16118 1.53
RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain amounts in the prior years financial statements may have been reclassified to conform to the current year
presentation.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In April 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) reached
a consensus on Issue No. 01-09, “Accounting for Consideration Given by a Vendor to a Customer (Including a Reseller of
the Vendor’s Products).” This issue addresses the recognition, measurement and income statement classification of
consideration from a vendor to a customer in connection with the customer’s purchase or promotion of the
vendor’s products. This consensus only impacted Perry Ellis’ revenue and expense classifications and has no effect
on reported income.

In July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations.” SFAS No. 141 requires the use of the
purchase method of accounting for all business combinations initiated after June 30, 2001 and eliminates the
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pooling-of-interests method. SFAS No. 141 also addresses the recognition and measurement of goodwill and other
intangible assets acquired in a business combination. The Company applied the provisions of this pronouncement

to the Salant acquisition. (See Note 10)

In July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,”” which changes the accounting
treatment as it applies to goodwill and other identifiable intangible assets with indefinite useful lives from an amor-
tization method to an impairment-only approach. Under SFAS No. 142, proper accounting treatment requires
annual assessment for any impairment of the carrying value of the assets based upon an estimation of the fair value
of the identifiable intangible asset with an indefinite useful life, or in the case of goodwill of the reporting unit to
which the goodwill pertains. Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill and identifiable intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives are no Jonger subject to amortization. Impairment losses, if any, arising from the initial application of
SFAS No. 142 are to be reported as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle. The effective date of
this statement is for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. The Company adopted SFAS No. 142 for its
fiscal year beginning February 1, 2002.

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, the Company obtained a valuation and estimated useful life report of all its
intangible assets at adoption and annually as of February 1% Results of this analysis indicate no material impairment
in the carrying value of its intangible assets and also indicate that the intangible assets have indefinite useful lives.
The following table indicates earnings per share adjusted for the effect of SFAS No. 142,

2002 2003 2004

Net income:

Reported net incorne $ 6,607,942 § 10,796,285 |$ 13,152,136

Intangible amortization, net of tax 2,719,938 — —

Adjusted net income $ 9327880 § 10,796,285 ($ 13,152,136
Basic earnings per share:

Reported basic earnings per share 1.01 1.69 1.71

Intangible amortization, net of tax 0.42 — —

Adjusted basic earnings per share $ 143 § 1.69 |$ 1.71
Diluted earnings per share:

Reported diluted earnings per share 1.01 1.65 1.59

I[ntangible amortization, net of tax 0.42 — —

Adjusted diluted basic earnings per share $ 143 % 1.65 |8 1.59

On October 3, 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144. “Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,”
which addresses financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets. While SFAS
No. 144 supersedes SFAS No. 121 “Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Long-Lived Assets to be
Disposed Of” it retains many of the fundamental provisions of SFAS No. 121. SFAS No. 144 also supersedes the
accounting and reparting provisions of APB Opinion No. 30, “Reporting the Results of Operations—-Reporting the
Effects of Disposal of a Segment of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusual and Infrequently Occurring Events and Transactions,”
for the disposal of a segment of a business. The effective date of SFAS No.144 is for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2001. The adoption of SFAS No. 144 on February 1, 2002, did not have a material effect on the
financial position or the results of operations of the Company.

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44 and 64, Amendment of FASB
No. 13, and Technical Corrections,” which all but eliminates the presentation in income statements of debt extin-
guishments as extraordinary items. SFAS No. 145 will be eftective for fiscal years beginning after May 15, 2002.
Perry Ellis adopted SFAS No. 145 as of February 1, 2003. While the adoption of SFAS No.145 did not have a material
impact on the financial position or results of operations of the Company, it did have an impact on the presentation
of the cost on early extinguishment of debt in fiscal 2004.




In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, “Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities,” which
requires companies to recognize costs associated with exit or disposal activities when they are incurred rather than
at the date of a commitment to exit or disposal plan. SFAS No. 146 is to be applied prospectively to exit or
disposal activities initiated after December 31, 2002. SFAS No. 146 did not have a material impact on the financial
position or results of operations of the Company.

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements
Sfor Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others — an Interpretation of FASB Statements No. 5, 57,
and 107 and Rescission of FASB Interpretation No. 34” (“FIN 457). FIN 45 elaborates on the disclosures to be made
by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements about its obligations under certain guarantees that it
has issued. It also clarifies that a guarantor s required to recognize, at the inception of a guarantee, a liability for the
fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. The initial recognition and initial measurement
provisions of FIN 45 are applicable on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified after December 31,2002,
irrespective of the guarantor’s fiscal year-end. However, the disclosure requirements in FIN 45 are effective for financial
statements of interim or annual periods ending after December 15, 2002. FIN 45 did not have a material effect on
Perry Ellis’ financial position or results of operations.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure
{SEAS 148). SFAS No. 148 provides alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based
method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In addition, SFAS No. 148 amends the disclosure
requirements of SFAS 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, to require disclosure in both interim and annual
financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the
method used on reported results. The Company adopted the disclosure provision of SFAS No. 148 effective for fiscal
year ended January 31, 2003.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities — an Interpretation
of ARB No. 51”7 (“FIN 46”). In December 2003, the FASB issued a revision to FIN 46. FIN 46 addresses consolidation
by business enterprises of variable interest entities (formerly special purpose entities or SPEs). In general, a variable
interest entity is a corporation, partnership, trust, or any other legal structure used for business purposes that either
(a) does not have equity investors with voting rights or (b) has equity investors that do not provide sufficient financial
resources for the entity to support its activities. The objective of FIN 46 is not to restrict the use of variable interest
entities but to improve financial reporting by companies involved with variable interest entities. FIN 46 requires a
variable interest entity to be consolidated by a company if that company is subject to a majority of the risk of loss
from the variable interest entity’s activities or entitled to receive a majority of the entity’s residual returns or both.
The Company is required to adopt the provision of FIN No. 46 immediately for variable interests in variable interest
entities created after January 31, 2003, and in the quarter ending April 30, 2004 for variable interests in variable interest
entities created before February 1, 2003. However, certain of the disclosure requirements apply to financial
statements issued after January 31, 2003, regardless of when the variable interest entity was established. The Company
does not have any variable interest entities as defined in FIN 46 and accordingly, the Company has determined that
it will not be required to consolidate any variable interest entity upon the full adoption of FIN 46.

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities.” SFAS No. 149 amends and clarifies accounting for derivative instruments, including certain derivative
instruments embedded in other contracts, and for hedging activities under SFAS No. 133, The new guidance
amends SFAS No. 133 for decisions (2) made as part of the Derivative Implementation Group process that effectively
required amendments to SFAS No. 133, (b) in connection with other Board projects dealing with financial instruments,
and {(c¢) regarding implementation issues raised in relation to the application of the definition of a derivative,
particularly regarding the meaning of “an underlying” and the characteristics of a derivative that contain financing
components. The amendments set forth in SFAS No. 149 improve financial reporting by requiring that contracts
with comparable characteristics be accounted for similarly. SFAS No. 149 is generally effective for contracts entered
into or modified after June 30, 2003 and for hedging relationships designated after June 30, 2003. The guidance is
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to be applied prospectively. SFAS No. 149 is not expected to have a material impact on the financial position or results
of operations of the Company.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both
Liabilities and Equity.” SFAS No. 150 improves the accounting for certain financial instruments that, under previous
guidance, issuers could account for as equity. The new staterment requires that those instruments be classified as
liabilities in statements of financial position. SFAS No. 150 is effective for financial instruments entered into or modified
after May 31, 2003 and otherwise shall be effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June
15,2003. In November 2003, the FASB indefinitely deferred the effective date for the classification and measurement
provision of certain mandatorily redeemable non-controlling interests. For financial instruments created before May
2003 and still existing at the beginning of the interim period of adoption, transition will be accomplished by reporting
the cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle. The adoption of the effective provisions of SFAS No. 150
did not have a material impact on the financial position or results of operations of the Company.

'In December 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 132 (Revised 2003), “Employers” Disclosures about Pension and Other
Postretirement Benefits,” which enhanced the disclosure about pension plans and other postretirement benefit plans,
but did not change the measurement or recognition principles for those plans. The statement requires additional
disclosure about the assets, obligations, cash flows, and net periodic benefit cost of defined benefit pension plans and
other defined benefit postretirement plans. The Company adopted the disclosure provisions of SFAS 132 for the year
ended January 31, 2004.

3. Shares Repurchase

On July 11, 2000, the Board of Directors of the Company approved a share repurchase program in which up to
500,000 shares of common stock may be purchased from time to time during the following 12 months. On July 11,
2001, the Board of Directors extended the current share repurchase program for an additional year, and on
September 25, 2001 increased the number of shares authorized for repurchase to 750,000 shares. The shares may be
purchased in the cpen market or in privately negotiated transactions.

On September 17, 2003, the Board of Directors authorized the Company to repurchase shares based on the value
of the funds received from the exercise of employee stock options. For fiscal year ended January 31, 2004, the
Company repurchased 35,687 shares at an average price of $26.15 per share. For the fiscal year ended January 31,
2003, the Company did not repurchase any additional shares. On March 26, 2002, the Company retired 51,400 shares
held in the treasury. For the fiscal year ended January 31, 2002, the Company had repurchased 296,100 shares at an
average price of $7.35 per share. On March 2, 2001 and October 29, 2001, the Company retired 160,000 and
244,600 shares held in the treasury, respectively.

4. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consist of the following as of January 31:

2003 2004
Trade accounts 8 75,676,880 |$ 110,455,219
Rooyalties and other receivables 5,888,000 6,033,015
Total 81,564,880 | 116,488,234
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts (2,075,141) (810,304)
Total $ 79,489,739 | $ 115,677,930




The activity for the allowance for doubtful account is as follows:

2002 2003 2004
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Beginning balance $ 427,965 % 1,914,990 |$ 2,075,141
Provision 1,575,000 280,620 856,697
Write-offs, net of recoveries (87,975) (120,469) (2,121,534)
Ending balance $ 1,914,990 § 2,075,141 |$ 810,304

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of our
trade customers to make required payments. We provide an allowance for specific customer accounts where collection
is doubtful and also provide a general allowance for other accounts based on historical collection and write-off
experience. Judgment is critical because some retail customers are currently experiencing financial difficulties.
If their financial condition were to worsen, additional allowances might be required.

5. Inventories

Inventories consist of the following as of January 31:

2003 2004

Finished goods $ 37,450,815 18 89,186,914
Raw materials and in process 10,166,219 4,413,233
Finished goods not yet received 3,689,440 17,309,424
Total $ 51,306,474 | $ 110,909,571

The Company’s inventories are valued at the lower of cost (moving average cost) or market. The Company evaluates
all of its inventory style-size-color stock keeping units (SKUs) to determine excess or slow moving SKUs based on
orders on hand and projections of future demand and market conditions. For those units in inventory that are so
identified, we estimate their market value based on current sales trends. If the projected net sales value is less
than cost, on an individual SKU basis, we provide an allowance to reflect the lower value of that inventory.
This methodology recognizes projected inventory losses at the time such losses are evident rather than at the time
goods are actually sold.

6. Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consists of the following as of January 31:

2003 2004
Furniture, fixture and equipment $ 16,722,015 |$ 24,816,729
Buildings 12,426,585 14,295,348
Vehicles 308,839 321,566
Leasehold improvements 3,448,449 5,451,869
Land 6,181,702 6,440,702
Total 39,087,590 51,326,214
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization (8,038,714)| (12,233,635)
Total $ 31,048,876 {$ 39,092,579

Depreciation expense relating to property and equipment amounted to approximately $1,849,000, $2,280,000, and
$3,847,000 for the fiscal years ended January 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively.
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1. Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consisted of the following as of January 31:

2003 2004
Trademarks and licenses $ 156,462,840 | $ 166,542,568
Less: Accumulated amortization (14,276,778)| (14,276,778)

Total $ 142,186,062

$ 152,265,790

Amortization expense relating to the intangible assets amounted to approximately $4,342,000 for the fiscal year

ended January 31, 2002. As of January 31, 2003, all intangible assets are indefinite useful life assets and are not subject

to amortization according to SFAS No. 142,

8. Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses consists of the following as of January 31:

2003 2004
Salaries and commissions $ 2,783,016 |8 4,766,849
Royalties 749,687 1,257,927
Buying commissions 267,188 792,280
Other 1,258,857 9,533,049
Total $ 5,058,743 18 16,350,105
Other liabilities for fiscal 2004 are principally related to liabilities acquired with the Salant transaction.
9. Other Current Liabilities
Other current liabilities consists of the following as of January 31:

2003 2004
Unearned advertising reimbursements $ 925,520 |8 931,845
Other 531,902 2,059,064
Total $ 1,457,422 1% 2,990,909
10. Salant Acquisition

On June 19, 2003, the Company acquired Salant Corporation. The aggregate merger consideration paid by the
Company was approximately $90.9 million, comprised of approximately $51.9 million in cash ($34.5 million net of
cash acquired), approximately $35.6 million worth of newly issued Perry Ellis common stock and approximately $3.4
million in merger costs.

Salant licensed the Perry Ellis brand from the Company for men’s sportswear, dress shirts, dress bottoms and accessories,
and derived approximately $164.3 million, or 65%, of its 2002 revenues from the sale of Perry Ellis products. Salant
was the Company’s largest licensee of Perry Ellis branded apparel. The remaining $87.7 million of Salant’s 2002
revenue was made up of sales of product under Salant’s owned brands such as Axis® and Tricots St. Raphael®, sales
under license agreements for use of the JNCO® and Ocean Pacific® brands, as well as several private label programs.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of
acquisition. Purchase accounting adjustments include fair value adjustments and the allocation of the excess of fair
value over purchase price as required under SFAS 141.




(In Thousands)

Total purchase price

Market value of stock issued $ 35,555
Cash consideration paid 51,906
Total purchase price 87,711
Total direct merger costs 3,405
Total adjusted purchase price $ 90,866
Historical net assets of Salant as of June 19, 2003 8 67,119

Increase (decrease) in net assets to reflect estimated fair value
adjustments under the purchase method of accounting:

Deferred taxes, current and long-term, net of valuation allowance 48,554
Property, plant and equipment (8,086)
Other assets

Reetail stores fixtures (3,070)

Deferred rental income (456)
License agreements (5,479)
Intangible assets, net (7,920)
Deferred rental expense 1,492
Nect pension liability (1,288)
Fair value of net assets acquired $ 90,866

11. Pro Forma Financial Information (Unaudited)

The pro forma financial information presented below, gives effect to the Salant acquisition as if it occurred as of the
beginning of each of the fiscal years ended January 2002, 2003 and 2004. The results of the Salant acquisition are reflected
in our income statement for the period from June 19, 2003, the closing date of acquisition, through January 31, 2004.

(in thousands) 2002 2003 2004
Total revenues $ 480,258 $ 552,550 | § 603,524
Net income' $ 6,747 % 21,281 18 16,854
Net income per share

Basic $ 081 % 259 1§ 2.01

Diluted $ 081 § 2.34 |8 1.87
Weighted average outstanding shares:

Basic

Diluced

! Net income (oss) includes $0.92 million, net of tax, of non-recurring direct merger related costs recorded by Salant during the twelve months ended
January 31,2004

12. Derivatives Financial Instruments

FASB Statement No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended by SFAS 138
requires that all derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swap contracts and foreign exchange contracts,
be recognized in the financial statements and measured at fair value regardless of the purpose or intent for holding
them. Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments are either recognized in income or shareholders’
equity (as a component of comprehensive income), depending on whether the derivative is being used to hedge
changes in fair value or cash flows.

The Company has an interest rate risk management policy with the objective of managing its interest costs. To meet
this objective the Company employs hedging and derivatives strategies to limit the effects of changes in interest rates
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on its operating income and cash flows, and to lower its overall fixed rate interest cost on its senior subordinated

notes and senior secured notes.

The Company does not acquire derivative instruments for any purpose other than to manage interest rate risk.
That 15, the Company does not speculate using derivative instruments.

The Company believes its interest rate risk management policy is generally effective. Nonetheless, the Company’s
profitability may be adversely affected during particular periods as a result of changing interest rates. In addition,
hedging transactions using derivative instruments involve risks such as counter-party credit risk. The counter-parties
to the Company’s arrangements are lenders of the hedged debt instruments or are major financial institutions.

In August 2001, the Company entered into an interest rate swap, option and interest rate cap agreements (the “$40
million Swap Agreement”) for an aggregate notional amount of $40.0 million in order to minimize its debt servicing
costs associated with its $100.0 million of 12 %% senior subordinated notes due April 1, 2006.

The fair value of the $40 million Swap Agreement recorded on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet was
$1.9 million as of January 31, 2003. In conjunction with the $40 million Swap Agreement, the Company also
entered into an interest rate cap and basis swap that did not qualify for hedge accounting treatment under the SFAS
No. 133, resulting in $0.2 million increase of recorded interest expense on the Consolidated Statement of Income
for the fiscal year ended Januvary 31,2004 and $0.35 million increase of recorded interest expense for the year ended
January 31, 2003.

In August 2003, the Company terminated the $40 million Swap Agreement for approximately $1.9 million which

is included as a component of interest income.

In conjunction with the March 2002 offering of $57.0 million of 9% senior secured notes due March 15, 2009,
the Company entered into interest rate swap and option agreements (the “$57 million Swap Agreement”) for an
aggregate notional amount of $57.0 million in order to minimize the debt servicing costs associated with the 9%%
senior secured notes. The $57 million Swap Agreement is scheduled to terminate on March 15,2009. Under the $57
million Swap Agreement, the Company is entitled to receive semi-annual interest payments on September 15 and '
March 15 at a fixed rate of 9% and are obligated to make semi-annual interest payments on September 15 and
March 15 at a floating rate based on the three-month LIBOR rate plus 369 basis points for the period from March
22,2002 through March 15, 2009. The $57 million Swap Agreement has optional call provisions with trigger dates
of March 15, 2005, March 15, 2006 and March 15, 2007, which contain premium requirements in the event the call
is exercised. The $57 million Swap Agreement is a fair value hedge as it has been designated against the 9% senior
secured notes carrying a fixed rate of interest and converts such notes to variable rate debt. The interest rate swap
contracts are reflected at fair value in the company’s consolidated balance sheet with a corresponding offset to the
designated item. The fair value of the $57 million Swap Agreement recorded on the Company’s Consolidated Balance
Sheet was $5.0 million and $4.4 million as of January 31, 2003 and 2004, respectively.

In December 2002, the Company entered into an interest rate floor agreement (the “$57 million Floor
Agreement”) for an aggregate notional amount of $57.0 million associated with the 9%2% senior secured notes.
The $57 million Floor Agreement is scheduled to terminate on March 15, 2005. Under the $57 million Floor
Agreement, the Company must pay the difference between the three-month LIBOR rate and 1.50% for all rate
resets in which the LIBOR is below 1.50%. When the LIBOR is equal to or greater than 1.50%, the Company

makes no payments under the Floor.

The $57 million Floor Agreement did not qualify for hedge accounting treatment under SFAS No. 133, resulting in $0.2
million and $0.1 million increase of recorded interest expense on the Consolidated Statement of Income for the fiscal
vears ended January 31, 2003 and 2004, respectively. The fair value of the $57 million Floor Agreement recorded on the
Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet was ($0.2) and ($0.1) million as of January 31, 2003 and 2004, respectively.

In April 2003, the Company entered into an interest rate cap agreement (the “$57 million Cap Agreement”) for an
aggregate notional amount of $57.0 million associated with the senior secured notes. The $57 million Cap




Agreement is scheduled to terminate on March 15, 2009.The $57 million Cap Agreement caps the interest rate on
the senior secured notes at 10%.

The $57 million Cap Agreement did not qualify for hedge accounting treatment, resulting in $0.3 million increase
of recorded interest expense on the consolidated statement of income for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2004.
The fair value of the $57 million Cap Agreement recorded on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet was ($0.3)
million as of January 31, 2004.

In conjunction with the Company’s September 2003 offering of $150.0 million of 8 %% senior subordinated notes
due September 15, 2013, the Company entered into interest rate swap agreements (the “$150 million Swap
Agreement”) for an aggregate notional amount of $130.0 million in order to minimize the debt servicing costs
associated with the new senior subordinated notes. The $150 million Swap Agreement is scheduled to terminate on
September 15, 2013. Under the $150 million Swap Agreement, the Company is entitled to receive semi-annual
interest payments on September 15 and March 15 at a fixed rate of 8 %% and is obligated to make semi-annual interest
payments on September 15 and March 15 at a floating rate based on the six-month LIBOR rate plus 394 basis points
for the period from September 22, 2003 through September 15, 2013. The $150 million Swap Agreement has
optional call provisions with trigger dates of September 15, 2008, September 15, 2009, September 15, 2010 and
September 15, 2011, which contain premium requirements in the event the call is exercised.

The $150 million Swap Agreement is a fair value hedge as it has been designated against the 8 %% senior subordinated
notes carrying a fixed rate of interest and converts such notes to variable rate debt. The interest rate swap contracts
are reflected at fair value in our consolidated balance sheet with a corresponding offset to the designated item.
The fair value of the $150 million Swap Agreement recorded on the consolidated balance sheet was $0.5 million as
of January 31, 2004.

The Company does not currently have a significant exposure to foreign exchange risk and accordingly, has not
entered into any transactions to hedge against those risks. See Note 2 for policy on foreign currency translation.

13. Borrowings under Letter of Credit Facilities

As of January 31, 2004, the Company maintained three US dollar letter of credit facilities of $60.0 million, $30.0
million sublimit for letters of credit under the Company’s senior credit facility, and one letter of credit facility totaling
$2.8 million utilized by the Company’ consolidated Canadian joint venture. Each letter of credit is secured primarily
by the consignment of merchandise in transit under that letter of credit and certain subordinated liens on the
Company’ assets. As of January 31, 2004, there was $30.8 million available under existing letter of credit facilities.

Amounts outstanding under letter of credit facilities consist of the following as of January 31:

2003 2004
Total letter of credit facilities $ 54,453386 |$ 92,818,489
Qutstanding letters of credit (31,966,591)| (61,819,367)
Total credit available § 22,486,795 |$% 30,999,122

14, Long Term Debt-Senior Credit Facility

In June 2003, the Company amended its senior credit facility with Congress Financial Corporation (Florida), as
agent for a syndicate of lenders, to provide a revolving credit facility of up to an aggregate amount of $110.0 million.
In February 2004, the availability under the senior credit facility was increased to $130.0 nullion until June 2004,
The senior credit facility expires in September 2005 and the indebtedness thereunder ranks ahead of the 8 %% senior
subordinated notes.

The following is a description of the terms of the senior credit facility, as amended and does not purport to be complete
and is subject to, and qualified in its entirety by reference to, all the provisions of the senior credit facility.
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Certain Covenants. The senior credit facility contains certain covenants, which, among other things, requires us to
maintain a minimum EBITDA if availability falls below a certain minimum. It may restrict our ability and the ability
of our subsidiaries to, among other things, incur additional indebtedness in certain circumstances, redeem or repurchase
capital stock, make certain investments, or sell assets. We are prohibited from paying cash dividends under these
covenants. We believe we are currently in compliance with all of our covenants under the senior credit facility.
We could be materially harmed if we violate any covenants as the lenders under the senior credit facility could
declare all amounts outstanding there under, together with accrued interest, to be immediately due and payable.
If we are unable to repay those amounts, the lenders could proceed against our assets. In addition, a violation could
also constitute a cross-default under the indentures and mortgage, resulting in all of our debt obligations becoming
immediately due and payable, which we may not be able to satisfy.

Borrowing Base. Borrowings under the sentor credit facility are limited under its terms to a borrowing base calculation,
which generally restricts the outstanding balances to the lesser of either (1) the sum of (a) 85.0% of eligible receivables
plus (b) 85.0% of our eligible factored accounts receivables up to $20.0 million plus (c) the lesser of (i) the inventory
loan limit, or (ii) the lesser of (A) 65.0% of eligible finished goods inventory, or (B) 85.0% of the net recovery
percentage (as defined in the senior credit facility) of eligible inventory, or (2) the loan limit; and in each case minus
(x) 35.0% of the amount of outstanding letters of credit for eligible inventory, (y) the full amount of all other
outstanding letters of credit issued pursnant to the senior credit facility which are not fully secured by cash collateral,
and (z) licensing reserves for which we are the licensee of certain branded products.

Interest. Interest on the principal balance under the senior credit facility accrues, at our option, at either (a) our bank
prime lending rate with adjustments depending upon our quarterly average excess availability plus excess cash or
leverage ratio or (b) 2.00% above the rate quoted by our bank as the average Eurodollar Rate (“Eurodollar”) for
1-, 2-, 3- and 6-month Eurodollar deposits with one-quarter percentage point adjustments depending upon our quarterly
average excess availability plus excess cash and leverage ratio at the time of borrowing.

Security. As security for the indebtedness under the senior credit facility, we granted the lenders a first priority security
interest in substantially all of our existing and future assets other than our trademark portfolio existing as of March
2002, including, without limitation, accounts receivable, inventory deposit accounts, general intangibles, equipment
and capital stock or membership interests, as the case may be, of certain subsidiaries. Lenders under the senior credit
facility have a second priority security interest in our trademark portfolio as of March 2002 and a first priority lien
on the rest of our trademarks.

15, 9/,% Senior Secured Notes

In March 2002, the Company issued $57.0 million 9 %% senior secured notes due March 15, 2009. The proceeds
of the offering were used to finance the Jantzen acquisition, to reduce the amount of ocutstanding debt under the
previous senior credit facility and as additional working capital. The proceeds to Perry Ellis were $55.6 million vielding
an effective interest rate of 9.74% after deduction of discounts. The Company entered into an interest rate swap and
option agreement (the “$57 million Swap Agreement”) in order to minimize debt service costs on the secured senior
notes. The fair values of the $57 million Swap Agreement recorded on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet
were $§5.0 million and $4.4 million as of January 31, 2003 and 2004, respectively.

The senior secured notes are secured by a first priority security interest granted in the Company’s existing portfolio
of trademarks and licenses as of the closing date of the Jantzen acquisition, including the trademarks, licenses and
all income, royalties and other payments acquired in the Jantzen acquisition. The senior secured notes are senior
secured obligations of the Company and rank parf passu in right of payment with all of its existing and future senior
indebtedness. The senior secured notes are effectively senior to all unsecured indebtedness of the Company to the
extent of the value of the assets securing the senior secured notes. The senior secured notes are guaranteed by

certain subsidiaries of the Company.




Certain Covenants. The indenture governing the senior secured notes contains certain covenants which restrict the
Company’s ability and the ability of its subsidiaries to, among other things, incur additional indebtedness in certain
circumstances, redeem or repurchase capital stock, make certain investments, or sell assets. The Company is prohibited
from paying cash dividends under these covenants. The Company believes it is currently in compliance with all of
the covenants in this indenture. The Company could be materially harmed if we violate any covenants because the
indenture’s trustee could declare the outstanding notes, together with accrued interest, to be immediately due and
payable, which the Company may not be able to sacisfy. In addition, a violation could also constitute a cross-default
under the senior credit facility, letter of credit facility, mortgage and the indenture relating to the Company’s senior
subordinated notes resulting in all of the Company’s debt obligations becoming immediately due and payable, which
the Company may not be able to satisfy.

16. 12'/.% Senior Subordinated Notes

The Company issued $100.0 million senior subordinated notes on April 6, 1999, the proceeds of which were used
to acquire Perry Ellis, John Henry and Manhattan brands and to pay down the outstanding balance of the senior
credit facility. The notes mature on April 1, 2006, and bear interest at the rate of 12%% payable on April 1 and
QOctober 1 in each year. The proceeds to the Company were §98.9 million yielding an effective interest rate of
12.39% after deduction of discounts. The Company entered into an interest rate swap, option, and interest rate cap
agreements (the “$40 million Swap Agreement”) for an aggregate notional of $40 million in order to minimize debt
service costs on the senior subordinated notes.

In November 2002, the Company repurchased $2.2 million of the 12 %% senior subordinated notes. On October
15, 2003, the Company redeemed the $100 million of 12%% senior subordinated notes that were scheduled
to mature on April 1, 2006 for approximately $107.3 million. The redemption resulted in costs on the early
extinguishment of debt of $7.3 million, principally as a result of a redemption premium.

17. 87/:% Senior Subordinated Notes

On September 22,2003, the Company issued $150 million 8 %% senior subordinated notes, the proceeds of which
were used to redeem the 12%% senior subordinated notes and to pay down the outstanding balance of the
senior credit facility at that time. The notes mature on September 15, 2013 and bear interest at the rate of 8 %%,
payable semiannually on March 15 and September 15 of each year. The proceeds to the Company were £146.8 million
yielding an effective interest rate of 9.1%.The Company entered into interest rate swap agreements (the “$150 million
Swap Agreement”) in order to minimize debt service costs on the senior subordinated notes. The fair value of the
$150 million Swap Agreement recorded on the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet was $0.5 million as of
January 31, 2004. ’

Certain Covenants. The indenture governing the senior subordinated notes contains certain covenants which restrict
the Company’ ability and the ability of its subsidiaries to, among other things, incur additional indebtedness in certain
circumstances, redeem or repurchase capital stock, make certain investments, or sell assets. The Company believes it
is currently in compliance with all of the covenants in this indenture. The Company is prohibited from paying cash
dividends under these covenants. The Company could be materially harmed if it violates any covenants because the
indenture’s trustee could declare the outstanding notes, together with accrued interest, to be immediately due and
payable, which the Company may not be able to satisfy. In addition, a violation could also constitute a cross-default
under the senior credit facility, the letter of credit facilities, mortgage and the indenture relating to the Company’s
senior secured notes resulting in all of the Company’s debt obligations becoming immediately due and payable,
which the Company may not be able to satisfy.
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18. Real Estate Financing

The Company occupied its main administrative office, warehouse and distribution facility under a synthetic operating
lease for a 240,000 square foot facility in Miami, Florida. The lease, as amended, expired on June 30, 2002, and
required a final payment at termination of $14.5 million.

On June 30, 2002, the Company made the required payment under the synthetic lease and partially refinanced the
acquisition of the facility with an $11.6 million mortgage. The mortgage has customary covenants and as of January
31, 2004, the Company believes it is in compliance with these covenants.

On September 13, 2002, the Company purchased a distribution center in Seneca, South Carolina for $2.5 million using
our revolver. The Company exercised the option to purchase the facility as part of the March 2002 Jantzen acquisition.

19. income Taxes

The income tax provision consists of the following for each of the years ended January 31:

2002 2003 2004
Current Income Taxes: :
Federal $ 2,115,199 § 2,217,615 ($ (1,140,259)
State 300,810 379,136 117,074
Foreign 237,746 758,258 1,113,497
Total 2,653,755 3,355,009 90,312
Deferred Income Taxes:
Federal and State 1,386,240 3,371,314 7,604,601
Total $ 4,039,995 $§ 6,726,323 |83 7,694,913

The following table reconciles the statutory federal income tax rate to the Company’s effective income tax rate for
each of the years ended January 31:

2002 2003 2004
Statutory federal income tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Increase resulting from State
income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit 2.7% 2.9% 1.7%
Benefit of graduated rate 0.6)% (1.0)% 0.9)%
Other 0.8% 1.3% 0.7%
Total 37.9% 38.2% 36.5%




Deferred income taxes are provided for the temporary differences between financial reporting basis and the tax basis
of the Company'’s assets and liabilities under SFAS No. 109. The tax effects of temporary differences as of January 31
are as follows:

2003 2004
Deferred Tax Assets
Inventory $ 1,407,77018 3,536,318
Accounts receivable 790,269 8,099,848
Accrued expenses 109,214 3,777,952
Unearned revenue 759,726 364,074
Fixed assets — 2,155,927
Net operating losses — 38,781,004
Deferred pension obligation — 6,187,427
Credits — 462,160
Other 289,378 219,307
Sub Total 3,356,357 63,584,017
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Fixed assets (1,850,845) —_
Intangible assets (9,031,489)| (11,425,066)
Other (210,853) (72,416)
Sub Total (11,093,187) (11,497,482)
Valuation allowance — (13,874,572)
Net Deferred Tax Asset (liability) $ (7,736,830)|$ 38,211,963

In connection with the Salant acquisition, the Company acquired a net deferred tax asset of approximately $33.5 million,
net of a $20.3 million valuation allowance. Additionally, the acquisition of Salant caused an “ownership change” for
federal income tax purposes. As a result, the use of any net operating losses existing at the date of the ownership change
to offset future taxable income of the company is limited by Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (“Section 3827). As of June 19, 2003 Salant had available federal net operating losses of approximately $123
million, of which approximately $56 million will expire unutilized as a result of the annual usage limitations under
Section 382. Therefore, management has determined that a valuation allowance for deferred income tax assets is
necessary as the assets are not expected to be fully realized. As of January 31, 2004, approximately $18 million of the §123
million net operating losses expired. The following table reflects the expiration of the remaining net operating losses:

Fiscal Year Amount (000’)
1/31/2005 - 1/31/2009 57,240
1/31/2010 - 1/31/2014 14,086
1/31/2015 - 1/31/2019 : : 12,872
1/31/2020 - 1/31/2024 23,325

S 107,523

Deferred taxes have not been recognized on unremitted earnings of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries based on the
“indefinite reversal” criteria of APB Opinion 23.

20. Retirement Plan

The Company has a 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan (the “Plan”) in which eligible employees may participate. Employees
are eligible to participate in the Plan upon the attainment of age 21, and completion of three months of service.
Participants may elect to contribute up to 60% of their compensation, subject to maximum statutory limits. The
Company under the provisions of the plan, may make discretionary matching contributions equal to a percentage

Perry Ellis International 2004 Annual Report page / I:29




of each participant’s annual compensation. The percentage will be determined annually by the Board. The Company
may also elect to make additional profit sharing contributions on behalf of participants in amounts determined by
the Board at the end of the Plan year. The Company’s contributions to the Plan were approximately $199,000,
$328,000, and $446,000 for the fiscal years ended January 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively.

21. Benefit Plans
Perry Ellis sponsors two qualified pension plans as a result of the Salant acquisition that occurred in June 2003.

The following tables provide a reconciliation of the changes in the plans’ benefit obligations and fair value of assets
over the period beginning June 1, 2003, the acquisition measurement date, and ending December 31, 2003, and a
statement of the funded status as of December 31,2003. The plans were frozen and merged as of December 31, 2003.

2003
Reconciliation of benefit obligation
Obligation at beginning of period $ 55,265,928
Service Cost 244222
Interest Cost 1,742,354
Actuarial gain (3,187,226)
Benefit payments (1,797,204)
Curtailments (1,200,040)
Obligation at end of period § 51,068,034
Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period $ 37,770,984
Actual return on plan assets 5,550,037
Employer contributions 438,723
Benefit payments (1,890,833)
Fair value of plan assets at end of period § 41,868,911
Funded status as of measurement date
Funded status at December 31 $  (9,105,494)
Unrecognized gain (6,899,855)
Net amount recognized December 31 (16,005,349)
Adjustments for concributions made from
measurement date ta fiscal year end 271,565
Net amount recognized January 31 $ (15,733,784)

The following table provides the amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet as of January 31, 2004:

Prepaid benefit cost $ —
Accrued benefit liability (15,733,784)
Intangible asset —
Accumulated other comprehensive income —

Net amount recognized $ (15,733,784)
Information for pension plans with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets as of December 31, 2003:
Projected benefit obligation $ 51,068,034

Accumulated benefit obligation 51,068,034
Fair value of plan assets § 41,962,540

o5




The following table provides the components of net benefit cost for the plans for the fiscal year ended January 31:

2004
Service cost 8 244,222
Interest cost 1,742,354
Expected return on plan assets 1,837,408
Net periodic benefit cost 149,168
Curtailment gain (1,200,040)
Net periodic benefic cost after curtailments and settlements v $ (1,050,872)

There was no amount included within other comprehensive income arising from a change in the additional minimum
pension liability as of December 31, 2003.

The prior service costs are amortized on a straight-line basis over the average remaining service period of active
participants. Gains and losses in excess of 10% of the greater of the benefit obligation and the market-related value
of assets are amortized over the average remaining service period of active participants.

The assumptions used in the measurement of the Company’s benefit obligation are shown in the following table:

2003
Weighted average assumptions as of December 31
Discount rate 6.00%
Rate of compensation increase 4.00%

The assumptions used in the measurement of the net periodic benefit cost for period ended December 31 are as follows:

2003
Weighted average assumptions for year ended December 31
Discount rate 5.50%
Expected return on plan assets 8.50%
Rate of compensation increase 4.00%

The pension plan weighted-average asset allocations at December 31, 2003 and 2002, by asset category are as follows:

December 31, 2003

Equity securities i 73.41%
Debt securities 26.59%
Total 100.00%

The expected long-term return on assets is a blended rate based on asset mix. In general, the methodology used to
determine the rate is reviewed annually, taking into consideration the respective asset allocation, historical returns on
the types of assets held, and the current economic environment. The expected long-term return on assets is a blended
rate based on the target asset allocation of the plan, applied principally to historical market returns and trends. For
estimation purposes, the Company assumes a long-term asset mix generally consistent with the investment policy of
the funded plan. Changes in the asset mix or investment policy could impact the amount of recorded pension
income or expense, the funded status of the plan, and the need for future cash contributions.

The Company’s investment strategy for defined benefit plans is to utilize broadly diversified passive vehicles where
appropriate, with an investment mix and risk profile consistent with plan liabilities. Periodic studies are undertaken
to determine the asset mix that will meet pension obligations at a reasonable cost to the Company and are
consistent with the fiduciary requirements of local pension regulations. The weighted average target allocation for
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our plan is 65% equity and 35% fixed income. The overall allocation may include a 10% maximum allocation to

alternative strategies.

The Company expects to contribute approximately $ 0.2 million to its pension plan during fiscal 2005. Benefit
payments, which include the effects of expected future service, as appropriate, are expected to be approximately $3.0
million for each of the fiscal years 2005 through 2009.

22. Related Party Transactions

The Company leases certain office and warehouse space owned by the Chairman of the Board of Directors and
Chief Executive Officer under certain lease arrangements, most of which are month-to-month. Rent expense,
including taxes, for these leases amounted to approximately $537,000, $525,000, and $388,000 for the years ended
January 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively.

The Company entered into licensing agreements (the “License Agreements”) with Isaco International, Inc.
(“Isaco”), pursuant to which Isaco was granted the exclusive license to use the Natural Issue, Perry Ellis, John Henry
and Career Club brand names in the United States and Puerto Rico to market a line of men’s underwear, hosiery
and loungewear. The principal shareholder of Isaco is the father-in-law of the Company’s President and Chief
Operating Officer. Royalty income earned from the License Agreements amounted to approximately $1,230,000,
$2,131,000, and $2,204,000 for the years ended January 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively.

In December 2003, the Company entered into an aircraft charter agreement with a third party. There is no minimum
usage requirement, and the charter agreement can be terminated with 60 days notice. The third party charters the
aircraft from an entity controlled by the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Operating Officer. The Company
paid the third party approximately $37,000 in fiscal 2004 under this agreement.

The Company is a party to licensing agreements with Tropi-Tracks LLC, pursuant to which Tropi-Tracks was granted
an exclusive license to use the Jantzen brand name in the United States, Canada, and Mexico to market a line of
men’s, women'’s and junior’s casual and leisure footwear. One of the Company’ directors and the son-in-law of the
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, is a member of Tropi-Tracks. The Tropi-Tracks license agree-
ment provides for 2 minimum annual guaranteed royalty of $215,000. R oyalty income earned from the Tropi-Tracks
license agreement amounted to approximately $81,000 and $6,000 for fiscal 2004 and 2003, respectively.

23. Stock Options and Warrants

STOCK OPTIONS

In 1993, the Company adopted a Stock Option Plan (the “1993 Plan™), which was amended in 1998 and 1999 to
increase the number of shares reserved for issuance thereunder. The 1993 Plan authorized the Company to grant stock
options (“Option” or “Options”) to purchase up to an aggregate of 1,500,000 shares of the Company’s Common Stock.
In 2002, prior to the termination of the 1993 Plan in 2003, the Company adopted the 2002 Stock Option Plan (the
#2002 Plan”). The 2002 Plan was amended in 2003 to increase the number of shares reserved for issuance thereunder.
As amended, the 2002 Plan allows the Company to grant Options exercisable up to an aggregate of 1,500,000 shares
of the Company’s Common Stock. Both Stock Option Plans were designed to serve as an incentive for attracting and
retaining qualified and competent employees, directors, consultants, and independent contractors of the Company.

The 2002 Plan provides for the granting of Incentive Stock Options and Nonstatutory Stock Options. An Incentive
Stock Option is an option to purchase Common Stock, that meets the requirements as set forth under Section 422
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (“Section 422”). A Nonstatutory Stock Option is an option to
purchase Common Stock, that meets the requirements of the 2002 Plan, but does not meet the definition of an

“incentive stock option” under Section 422.

The 2002 Plan is administered by the compensation committee of the Board (“Committee”), which is comprised
of two or more nonemployee directors. The Committee determines the participants, the allotment of shares, and




the term of the Options. The Committee also determines the exercise price of the Options, provided however that
the per share exercise price of Options granted under the 2002 Plan may not be less than the fair market value of
the common stock on the date of grant, and in the case of an incentive stock option granted to a 10% shareholder,
the per share exercise price will not be less than 110% of such fair market value.

A summary of the stock option activity for options issued under the 1993 Plan and the 2002 Plan is as follows for
the years ended January 31:

Option Price Per Share Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average
Number of Number of Exercise
Shares ‘Low High Weighted Shares Price
Outstanding
January 31, 2001 1,113,550 $ 513 $ 15.75 $ 10.44 940,616 § 1041
Granted 2002 71,667 $ 513 $ 885 $ 7.37
Exercised 2002 (2,666) $ 5.13 $ 6.88 $ 579
Cancelled 2002 (88,750) $ 513 $ 13.44 $ 10.40
Outstanding
January 31, 2002 1,093,801 $ 513 § 13.44 $ 10.27 980,774 $ 10.40
Granted 2003 578,000 $ 7.50 $ 14.85 $ 12.83
Exercised 2003 (139,701} $ 5.13 $ 1350 $ 9.47
Cancelled 2003 (43,466) § 6.88 $ 14.20 $ 9.67
Qutstanding
January 31, 2003 1,488,634 $ 5.13 § 14.85 $ 10.03 1,260,716 § 11.56
Granted 2004 202,500 $ 14.25 $ 28.51 $ 20.96
Exercised 2004 (211,271) $ 5.19 $ 14.85 $ 9.72
Cancelled 2004 (20,667) $ 513 $ 2296 $ 16.22 1,142,680 $ 12.01
Outstanding v
January 31, 2004 1,459,196
Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average
Remaining Weighted Weighted
Range of Contractual Average Average
Exercise Number Life Exercise Number Exercise
Prices Outstanding (in years) Price Exercisable Price
$ 5.00-3% 7.530 56,500 7.0 $ 534 51,250 $ 523
$ 7.51 - 810.00 444,616 3.4 $ 8.78 442,033 $ 879
$10.01 - $12.00 32,763 58 § 11.37 15,114 $ 10.92
$12.01 - $16.00 741,817 7.4 $ 1474 634,283 § 1483
$16.01 - $20.00 58,000 9.1 § 18.45
$20.01 - $24.00 104,500 8.8 $ 21.62
$24.01 - $29.00 21,000 9.6 $ 25.67

As described in Note 2, we account for stock-based compensation using the provisions of APB No. 25 and related
interpretations. No compensation expense has been recognized in the years ended January 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004
as the exercise prices for the stock options granted were equal to their fair market value at the time of grant. Had
compensation cost for options granted been determined in accordance with the fair value provisions of SFAS No.
123, our net income and net income per share would have been reduced to the pro forma amounts presented below
for the years ended January 31:
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2002 2003 2004

Net income as reported § 6,607,942 $ 10,796,285 |$ 13,152,136
Add :Total stock based employee compensation

expense included in reported net income, net — — —_
Deduct : Total stock based employee compensation

expense not included in reported net income, net 422,464 251,953 460,355
Pro forma net income $ 6,185,478 $ 10,544,332 '$ 12,691,781
Pro forma net income per share:

Basic $ 0.95 § 1.65 18 1.65

Diluted $ 0.95 § 1.61 |8 1.53

The fair value of these options was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model
with the following weighted-average assumptions for 2002, 2003 and 2004:

2002 2003 2004
Risk free interest 3.3% 3.9% 4.2%
Dividend Yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Volatility factors 67.3% 68.2% 65.4%
Weighted average life (years) 1.9 10.0 10.0

Using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model, the estimated weighted-average fair value per option granted in
2002, 2003 and 2004 was $2.75, $10.84, and $15.96, respectively.

The Black-Scholes option valuation model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options that
have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the input of highly
subjective assumptions including the expected stock price volatility. Because our stock options have characteristics
significantly different from those of traded options, and because changes in the subjective input assumptions can
materially affect the fair value estimate, in management’s opinion, the existing models do not necessarily provide a
reliable single measure of the fair value of our stock options.

The pro forma amounts may not be representative of the future effects on reported net income and net income per share
that will result from the future granting of stock options, since the pro forma compensation expense is allocated over
the periods in which options become exercisable and new option awards are granted each year.

24, Segment Information

In accordance with SFAS No. 131, “Disclosure About Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information”, the Company’s
principal segments are grouped between the generation of revenues from products and royalties. The Licensing segment
derives its revenues from royalties associated from the use of its brand names, principally Perry Ellis, John Henry,
Manhattan and Munsingwear. The Product segment derives its revenues from the design, import and distribution of
apparel to department stores and other retail outlets, principally throughout the United States. Trademark assets and
costs have been allocated among the divisions where the brands are shared.




2002

2003

2004

Revenues:
Product
Licensing

Total Revenues

$ 251,310,159
26,680,987

$ 277,027,795
28,812,955

$ 484,197,918
21,717,751

$ 277,991,146

$ 305,840,750

$ 505,915,669

Operating Income

Product $ 7,882,648 $ 11,292,438 |$ 30,745,323

Licensing 16,398,275 22,114,326 14,046,538
Total Operating Income $ 24,280,923 $ 33,406,764 {§ 44,791,861
Interest Expense

Product - $ 1,630,120 § 2,755,490 [$ 6,578,305

Licensing 11,919,626 13,039,857 9,835,226
Total Interest Expense $ 13,549,746 $ 15,795,347 |$ 16,413,531
Income Tax Provision

Product $ 2,637,938 § 2,416,355 [§ 3,825,962

Licensing 1,402,057 & 4,309,968 |$ 3,868,951
Total Income Tax Provision $ 4,039,995 $§ 6,726,323 [$ 7,694,913
Depreciation and Amortization

Product $ 2,181,229 § 2,819,126 [§ 4,412,087

Licensing 4,480,929 763,724 630,916
Total Depreciation and Amortization $ 6,662,158 $ 3,582,850 [$ 5,043,003
Identifiable Assets

Product $ 120,506,469 $ 187,210,967 | $ 282,520,901

Licensing 111,057,137 139,349,018 150,398,249

Corporate 2,497,074 4,677,360 47,481,005

Total Identifiable Assets

$ 234,060,680 $ 331,237,345 | § 480,400,155

25. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company has licensing agreements, as licensee, for the use of certain branded and designer labels. The license
agreements expire on varying dates through December 31, 2003.Total royalty payments under these license agreements
amounted to $1,635,239, $3,394,820, and $9,032,613 for the years ended januafy 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004,
respectively, and were classified as cost of sales.

The Company leases three warehouse facilities in Miami totaling approximately 103,000 square feet from its chairman
and chief executive officer, to handle the overflow of bulk shipments and the specialty and PING operations.
All leases are on a month-to-month basis.

The Company leases several locations in New York City totaling approximately 97,000 square feet, with leases
expiring from August 2005 to December 2012. These locations are used for office, design and showroom space.

The Company operates 38 retail outlet stores comprising approximately 94,500 square feet of selling space, all of
which are leased. A

The Company has a lease agreement for office space used by Perry Ellis’ Jantzen swimwear business in Portland,
Oregon. This facility totals approximately 45,200 square feet with a lease that expires in December 2004.

In order to monitor production of Perry Ellis products in the Far East, Perry Ellis maintains offices in South Korea,
Vietnam and China, and also leases offices jointly with GFX Corporation, a company controlled by the Chairman
of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, in Beijing, China and Taipei, Taiwan.

Minimum aggregate annual commitments for all of the Company’s non-cancelable operating lease commitments
are as follows:
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Year Ending January 31, Amount

2005 $ 13,415,524
2006 7,135,796
2007 6,278,397
2008 5,889,461
2009 1,604,639
Future 19,630,682
Total ) $ 53,954,499

Rent expense for these operating leases, including the related party rent payments discussed in Note 22, amounted
to $2,526,293, 83,032,324, and $7,166,103 for fiscal January 31, 2002, 2003 and 2004, respectively.

The Company is subject to claims and suits in the ordinary course of business. The Company does not believe that
the resolution of any pending matters will have a material adverse effect on its financial position, results of operations
or cash flows.

27. Summarized Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

First Second Third Fourth Total

Dollars in Thousands Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Year
FISCAL YEAR ENDED

JANUARY 31, 2004
Net Sales $ 101,867 § 87,066 §$ 154,955 § 140,310 | S 484,198
Royalty Income 6,411 5,699 4,530 5,078 21,718
Total Revenues 108,278 92,765 159,485 145,388 505,916
Gross Profit 36,733 27,913 52,674 51,174 169,494
Net Income 5,628 (2,634) 1,673 8,485 13,152
Income per share:

Basic $ 0.87 § (0.36) '$ 0.20 § 1.00 |$§ 1.71

Diluted $ 0.80 § (0.36) $ 0.18 % 0.93 |8 1.59
FISCAL YEAR ENDED

JANUARY 31, 2003
Net Sales $ 78,619 § 56,394 § 63,037 % 78,978 | § 277,028
Royalty Income 6,077 7,600 7,562 7,574 28,813
Total Revenues 84,696 63,994 70,599 86,552 305,841
Gross Profit 26,764 21,459 24,552 28,065 100,840
Net Income 4,767 2,182 1,063 2,784 10,797
Income per share:

Basic $ 0.75 $ 034 3% 017 $ 043 18% 1.69

Diluted $ 075 $ 0.34 § 0.16 § 0.41 |$ 1.65
FISCAL YEAR ENDED

JANUARY 31, 2002
Net Sales $ 80,463 $ 58,712 § 59,957 $ 52,178 | % 251,310
Royalty Income 6,065 6,858 6,403 7,355 26,681
Total Revenues 86,528 65,570 66,360 59,533 277,991
Gross Profit 25,747 20,458 18,988 21,197 86,390
Net Income 3,198 1,486 970 954 6,608
Income per share:

Basic $ 049 §. 023 $ 015 § 0.15 |$ 1.01

Diluted $ 049 % 023 % 015 $ 0.15 |$ 1.01




28, CONSOLIDATING CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has senior secured debt outstanding, some of which is guaranteed by certain of the Company’s
subsidiaries (the “Guarantors™). The following are consolidating condensed financial statements, which present, in
separate columns: Perry Ellis International, Inc., the Guarantors on a combined, or where appropriate, consolidated
basis, and the Non-Guarantors on a consolidated basis. Additional columns present eliminating adjustments and
consolidated totals as of January 31, 2004 and January 31, 2003, and for the three years ended January 31, 2004.
The combined Guarantors are wholly owned subsidiaries of Perry Ellis International, Inc., and have fully and
unconditionally guaranteed the senior secured notes on a joint and several basis. The Company has not presented
separate financial statements and other disclosures concerning the combined Guarantors because management has
determined that such information is not material to investors.
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Perry Ellis International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets
As of January 31, 2004

Non-
Parent Only  Guarantors  Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ (236,821) $ (600,218) § 1,848,259 $ 1,011,220
Accounts receivable, net 5,321 115,204,562 468,047 115,677,930
Intercompany receivable - Guarantors — 45,867,939 — (45,867,939) —
[ntercompany receivable - Non Guarantors — (2,577,307) — 2,577,307 —
Inventories, net — 110,241,878 667,693 110,909,571
Deferred income taxes — 9,621,411 —_ 9,621,411
Prepaid income taxes — — — 5,002,043 5,002,043
Other current assets 1,078,093 5,339,582 — 6,417,675
Total current assets 846,593 283,097,847 2,983,999 (38,288,589) 248,639,850
Property and equipment, net 138,842 38,932,207 21,530 39,092,579
Intangible assets, net — 152,265,790 — 152,265,790
Investment in subsidiaries 178,660,330 —_ —  (178,660,330) —
Deferred income taxes 42,382,531 (13,791,979) 28,590,552
Other 5,379,065 6,432,319 — 11,811,384
TOTAL $ 185,024,830 $ 523,110,694 $ 3,005,529 §(230,740,898) § 480,400,155

LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 84,360 $ 31,088,390 % 471,428 $ 31,644,178
Accrued expenses 160,770 16,189,335 — 16,350,105
Intercompany payable - Parent (68,685,314) 201,910,065 609,949  (133,834,700) —
Income taxes payable (89,776) (5,209,009) 296,742 5,002,043 —
Accrued interest payable 2,218,750 1,521,738 — — 3,740,488
Unearned revenues — 983,984 — —_ 983,984
Other current liabilities — 2,919,782 71,127 — 2,990,909
Total current liabilities (66,311,210) 249,404,285 1,449,246 (128,832,657) 55,709,664

Senior subordinated notes payable, net 100,454,235 50,000,000 — 150,454,235
Senior secured notes payable, net L — 60,389,322 — 60,389,322
Senior credit facility — 34,714,584 — 34,714,584
Reeal estate mortgage — 11,600,000 665,125 {665,125) 11,600,000

Deferred income tax — 13,791,979 (13,791,979)

Deferred pension obligation —_ 15,733,784 15,733,784
Total long-term liabilities 100,454,235 186,229,669 665,125 (14,457,104) 272,891,925
Total liabilities 34,143,025 435,633,954 2,114,371  (143,289,761) 328,601,589
Minority Interest 916,730 31 916,761

Stockholders” Equity:
Preferred stock $.01 par value;
1,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued or outstanding —
Common stock $.01 par value; 30,000,000 shares authorized; v
8,470,700 shares issued and

outstanding as cf January 31, 2004 84,708 100 63 (163) 84,708
Additonal paid-in-capital 66,073,881 66,073,881
Contributing Capital — 3,997,338 (3,997,338) —
Retained earnings 85,334,665 83,459,663 {219,636) (83,240,027) 35,334,665
Accumulated other comprehensive income 321,844 19,639 194,001 (213,640) 321,844

Total 151,815,098 87,476,740 (25,572) (87,451,168) 151,815,098
Common stock in treasury at cost (933,293) ) (933,293)
Total stockholders’ equity 150,881,805 87,476,740 (25,572) (87,451,168) 150,881,805

TOTAL $ 185,024,830 $ 523,110,694 $ 3,005,529 § (230,740,898) § 480,400,155




Perry Ellis International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets
As of January 31, 2003

Non-
Parent Only Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ (44,791) § 3,333,055 § 1,194,913 § 4,683,177
Accounts receivable, net 1,072,969 78,161,200 255,570 79,489,739
Intercompany receivable - Guarantors — 53,636,456 — (53,636,456) —
Intercompany receivable - Non Guarantors — 582,410 — (582,410) —
Inventories, net - 50,908,167 398,307 51,306,474
Deferred income taxes ' — 2,957,765 — 2,957,765
Prepaid income taxes — 3,361,650 — 3,361,650
Other current assets 285,385 3,819,382 — 4,104,767
Total current assets 1,313,563 196,960,085 1,848,790 (54,218,866) 143,903,572
Property and equipment, net — 31,019,320 29,556 31,048,876
Intangible assets, net 15,490,786 126,695,276 — 142,186,062
Investment in subsidiaries 74,553,931 —_ - — (74,533,931) —
Other 837,500 11,261,335 — 12,098,835
TOTAL $ 92,195,780 § 365,936,016 § 1,878,346 $(128,772,797) § 331,237,345

LIABILITIES & STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 124,806 § 12,501,910 § 193,452 $ 12,820,168
Accrued expenses 242,248 4,812,742 3,758 5,058,748
Intercompany payable - Parent ' (5,351,406) 59,034,006 579,360 (54,261,960) —
Income taxes payable (151,616) 123,305 28,311 — -
Accrued interest payable — 4,674,929 — — 4,674,929
Unearned revenues 129,454 1,865,100 — — 1,994,554
Other current liabilities — 1,449,615 7,807 — 1,457,422
Total current liabilities (5,006,514) 84,461,607 812,688 (54,261,960) 26,005,821
Senior subordinated notes payable, net (2,199,492) 101,380,072 — 99,180,580
Senior secured notes payable, net — 60,729,796 — 60,729,796
Senior credit facility — 22,922,287 —_ 22,922,287
Reeal estate mortgage — 11,600,000 556,922 (556,922) 11,600,000
Deferred income tax — 10,694,595 10,694,595
Total long-term liabilities (2,199,492) 207,326,750 356,922 (556,922) 205,127,258
Total liabilities (7,206,006) 291,788,357 1,369,610 (54,818,882) 231,133,079
Minority Interest 702,449 31 702,480

Stockholders” Equity:

Preferred stock $.01 par value;
1,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued or outstanding —
Common stock $.01 par value; 30,000,000 shares authorized,;
6,425,641 shares issued and .

outstanding as of January 31, 2003 64,257 100 63 (163) 64,257

Additional paid-in-capital 27,198,094 27,198,094
Contributing Capital — 3,997,338 1(3,997,338) —
Retained earnings 72,182,529 70,252,092 (252,553) (69,999,539) 72,182,529
Accumulated other comprehensive income (43,094) (101,871) 58,777 43,094 (43,094)
Total 99,401,786 74,147,659 (193,713) (73,953,946) 99,401,786

Common stock in treasury at cost

Total stockholders’ equity 99,401,786 74,147,659 (193,713) (73,953,946) 99,401,786
TOTAL $ 92,195,780 § 365,936,016 $ 1,878,346 §(128,772,797) § 331,237,345
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Perry Ellis International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income
For the Tivelve Months Ended January 31, 2004

Non-
Parent Only Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
Revenues
Net sales $ — § 479,100,686 § 5,097,232 ¢ — $ 484,197,918
Rovalty income — 24,747,154 — (3,029,403) 21,717,751
Total revenues — 503,847,840 5,097,232 (3,029,403) 505,915,669
Cost of sales — 336,706,134 2,745,150 (3,029,403) 336,421,881
Gross profit — 167,141,706 2,352,082 — 169,493,788
Operating expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses 1,459 117,858,151 1,799,320 — 119,658,924
Depreciation and amortization 138,773 4,892,508 11,722 — 5,043,003
Total operating expenses 140,232 122,750,659 1,811,042 — 124,701,927
Operating income (140,232) 44,391,053 541,040 - 44,791,866
Costs on eatly extinguishment of debt — 7,317,000 — — 7,317,000
Interest expense 6 16,411,222 2,303 — 16,413,531
Income before mincrity interest
and income taxes (140,238) 20,662,825 538,737 — 21,061,330
Minority interest — — 214,281 —_ 214,281
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries, net (13,240,488) — — 13,240,488 —
Income taxes (51,886) 7,455,260 291,539 — 7,694,913

Net income $ 13,152,136 $ 13,207,565 § 32,917 $ (13,240,488) § 13,152,136




Perry Ellis International, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Income

For the Tivelve Months Ended January 31, 2003

Non-
Parent Only Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
Revenues
Net sales 8 — § 274,105,096 ¢ 2,922,699 § — § 277,027,795
Royalty income 4,450,886 24,362,069 — — 28,812,955
Total revenues 4,450,886 298,467,165 2,922,699 — 305,840,750
Cost of sales 203,199,604 1,801,352 — 205,000,936
Gross profit 4,450,886 95,267,561 1,121,347 — 100,839,794
Operating expenses .
Selling, general and administrative expenses 3,384,059 59,560,489 905,632 — 63,850,180
Depreciation and amortization 3,577,915 4935 — 3,582,850
Total operating expenses 3,384,059 63,138,404 910,567 — 67,433,030
Operating income 1,066,827 32,129,157 210,780 — 33,406,764
Interest expense (63,181) 15,854,307 4,221 — 15,795,347
Income before minority interest
and income tax provision 1,130,008 16,274,850 206,559 — 17,611,417
Minority interest — — 88,809 — 88,809
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries, net (10,097,940) — — 10,097,940 —
Income taxes 431,663 6,165,065 129,595 . — 6,726,323
Net income $ 10,796,285 § 10,109,785 $ (11,845) $ (10,097,940) § 10,796,285
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Perry Ellis International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income
For the Tivelve Months Ended January 31, 2002

Non-
Parent Only Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
Revenues
Net sales $ — § 242249314 § 9,060,845 §$ — $ 251,310,159
Royalty income 4,239,465 22,441,522 — — 26,680,987
Total revenues 4,239,465 264,690,836 9,060,845 — 277,991,146
Cost of sales 185,475,889 6,125,322 — 191,601,211
Gross profit 4,239,465 79,214,947 2,935,523 — 86,389,935
Operating expenses
Selling, general and administrative expenses 2,405,100 50,023,547 3,018,207 — 55,446,854
Depreciation and amortization 533,583 5,990,778 137,797 — 6,662,158
Total operating expenses 2,938,683 56,014,325 3,156,004 — 62,109,012
Operating income 1,300,782 23,200,622 (220,481) — 24,280,923
Interest expense ) (54,123) 13,603,869 13,549,746
Income before minority interest
and income tax provision 1,354,905 9,596,753 (220,481) — 10,731,177
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries, net (5,780,095) — 83,240 5,780,095 83,240
Income taxes 527,058 3,575,949 (63,012) — 4,039,995

o

Ner income 6,607,942 % 6,020,804 3% (240,709) $ (5,780,095) § 6,607,942




Perry Ellis International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income
For the Tivelve Months Ended January 31, 2004

Parent Only

Guarantors

Non-

Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net income (loss) $ 13,152,136 § 13,207,565 §$ 32,917 § (13,240,482) § 13,152,136
Adjustments to reconcile net income
to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 37,750 3,907,481 9,264 —_ 3,954,495
Provision for bad debt — 856,697 - — 856,697
Tax benefit from exercise of stock options 1,287,427 —_ — — 1,287,427
Amortization of debt issue cost — 1,165,310 — — 1,165,310
Amortization of bond discount — 324,540 — — 324,540
Deferred income taxes — 7,604,601 —_ —_— 7,604,601
Early extinguishment of debt — 7,317,000 — — 7,317,000
Minority Interest — — 214,281 — 214,281
Equity in subsidiaries, net (103,955,117) — — 103,955,117 —
Other 364,938 (394) (119,699) — 244,845
Changes in operating assets and :
liabilities (net of effects of acquisitions):
Accounts receivable, net (47,137,048) 114,143,683 423112 (90,714,635) (23,284,888)
Inventories — (14,299,711) (269,386) — (14,569,097)
Other current assets and
prepaid income taxes (792,708) (1,777,593) — — (2,570,301)
Other assets (899,830) 3,812,120 — — 2,912,290
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (121,087) (9,511,867) 122,100 — (9,510,854)
Income taxes payable 141,841 (330,271) 188,430 — —
Accrued interest payable 2,218,750 (3,153,191) — — (934,441)
Other current liabilities and
unearned revenues — 589,051 (66,134) — 522,917
Net cash used in
operating activities (135,702,948) 123,855,021 534,915 — (11,313,042)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipment (176,592) (8,495,376) (1,238) — (8,673,206)
Payment on purchase of intangible assets, net — (1,760,723) —_ — (1,760,723)
‘Payment for acquired businesses,
net of cash acquired 35,554,711 (70,008,000) — — (34,453,289)
Net cash used in
investing activities: 35,378,119 (80,264,099) (1,238) — (44,887,218)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Borrowings (payments) proceeds
from senior credit facility — 11,792,297 — — 11,792,297
Net payments on senior subordinated notes 2,199,492 (109,516,492) . — — (107,317,000
Net proceeds from senior subordinated notes 96,812,500 50,000,000 — — 146,812,500
Net proceeds from real estate mortgage — — — — —
Purchase of treasury stock (933,293) — — — (933,293)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 2,054,100 — —_ — 2,054,100
Net cash provided by
financing activities: 100,132,799 (47,724,195) — — 52,408,604
Effect of exchange rate changes
on cash and cash equivalents - — 119,699 — 119,699
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH (192,030) (4,133,273) 653,346 _ (3,671,957)
CASH AT BEGINNING OFYEAR (44,791) 3,533,055 1,194,913 —_ 4,683,177
CASH AT END OF YEAR $. (236,821) § (600,218) § 1,848,259 § — $ 1,011,220
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Perry Ellis International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income
For the Twvelve Months Ended January 31, 2003

Non-
Parent Only  Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (loss) $ 10,796,285 8§ 10,109,785 § (11,845) $ (10,097,940) 8§ 10,796,285
Adjustments to reconcile net income
to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization — 2,778,271 4,934 — 2,783,205
Provision for bad debt — 280,620 — — 280,620
Amortization of debt issue cost -— 918,628 — _— 918,628
Amortization of bond discount — 348,741 — — 348,741
Deferred income taxes — 3,371,314 — —_— 3,371,314
Minority Interest — — 88,809 — 88,809
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries, net (14,095,278) 3,997,338 0 10,097,940 —
Other 78,659 — 78,659
Changes in operating assets and
liabilities (net of effects of acquisitions):
Accounts receivable, net 4,645 840 (34,442,471} 396,517 — (29,400,114)
Inventories — (3,399.899) (306,386) — (3,706,285)
Other current assets and prepaid income taxes (96,769) (5,595,256) — — (5,692,025)
Other assets (527,844) (1,518,554) — — (2,046,398)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 225,572 6,474,697 (4,388) — 6,695,881
Income taxes payable (151,616) (1,098,141) (131,794) — (1,381,551)
Accrued interest payable — 865,932 — — 865,932
Other current liabilities and
unearned reveriues (121,500) (592,882) (83,154) — (797,536)
Net cash used in
operating activities 753,349 (17,501,877) 47,307 0 (16,795,835)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipment — (22,076,974) — — (22,076,974)
Payment on purchase of intangible assets, net 78,049 (220,921) (44,829) — (187,701)
Payment for acquired businesses,
net of cash acquired — (25,084,374) — — (25,084,374)
Net cash used in
investing activities: 78,048 (47,382,269 (44,829) —  (47,349,049)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net payments on senior subordinated notes (2,199,492) — — — (2,199,492)
Net (payments) proceeds from senior credit facility — 1,102,953 63,240 — 1,166,193
Net proceeds from senior secured notes — 55,589,250 — — 55,589,250
Net proceeds from real estate mortgage - 11,600,000 — — 11,600,000
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 1,323,303 — — — 1,323,303
Net cash provided by
financing activities: (876,189) 68,292,203 63,240 —_— 67,479,254
Effect of exchange rate changes
on cash and cash equivalents — — 44,829 — 44 829
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH (44,791) 3,408,057 15,933 — 3,379,199
CASH AT BEGINNING OFYEAR — 124,998 1,178,980 —_ 1,303,978
CASH AT END OFYEAR $ (44,791) $ 3,533,055 8§ 1,194913 § — 3 4,683,177




Perry Ellis International, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income
For the Tivelve Months Ended January 31, 2002

Non-
Parent Only  Guarantors Guarantors Eliminations Consolidated
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income (loss) $ 6,607,942 § 6,020,804 § (240,709) $ (5,780,095) $ 6,607,942
Adjustments to reconcile net income
to net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 533,583 5,657,218 — 6,190,801
Provision for bad debts —_ 1,575,000 1,575,000
Amortization of debt Issue cost _— 614,347 — 614,347
Amortization of bond discount — 164,000 —_ 164,000
Deferred income taxes — 1,386,240 1,386,240
Minority Interest — — 83,240 —_ 83,240
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries, net (6,337,049) — 556,954 5,780,095 —
Other (64,250) — (64,250)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(net of effects of acquisitions):
Accounts receivable, net 1,756,449 5,133,878 158,183 7,048,510
Inventories —_ (1,760,752) 232,133 —_ (1,528,619)
Other current assets and prepaid income taxes 41,912 478,875 65,659 —_ 586,446
Other assets 23,102 (643,282) (80,864) — (701,044)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (154,034) (1,279,169) 272,642 (1,160,561)
Income taxes payable — 1,221,446 163,764 — 1,385,210
Accrued interest payable — (406,838) (197,930) — (604,768)
Other current liabilities and
unearned revenues 2,443 507,889 282,022 — 792,354
Net cash provided by
operating activities 2,474,348 18,605,406 1,295,094 — 22,374,848
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of property and equipment — (2,887,440) (34,490) — (2,921,930)
Payment on purchase of intangible assets, net (312,513) 213,585 — — (98,928)
Net cash used in
investing activities: (312,513) (2,673,855} (34,490) — (3,020,858)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net repayments in borrowings under term loan — (16,093,792) (63,240) — (16,157,032}
Purchase of treasury stock (2,177.256) — — — (2,177,256)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 15,421 — — — 15,421
Net cash used in
financing activities: (2,161,835) (16,093,792) (63,240) — (18,318,867)
Effect of exchange rate changes
on cash and cash equivalents —_— (57,503) (18,383) — (75,886)
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH — (219,744) 1,178,981 — 959,238
CASH AT BEGINNING OFYEAR — 344741 — — 344,741
CASH AT END OFYEAR $ — 8 124,997 § 1,178,981 § — 8 1,303,979
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1350 6th Avenue 9th Floor New York, N'Y 10019 wwwgrand-slim.com
1411 Broadway 24th Floor New York, NY 10018 wwwhavanera.com

www.mondodimarco.com
JANTZEN INC.

411 NE 19th Avenue Portland, OR 97232

www.redsand.com
www.axismenswear.com
AXIS MENSWEAR www.natural-issue.com
8500 Higuera Street Culver City, CA 90232

REDSAND
15255 Alton Parkway, Suite 300 Irvine, CA 92618

Concept and design: Suissa Design wwwsuissadesign.com







